
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
CITY COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 

Mayor/Commissioner – Ed Wolf – Seat 1 
Commissioner/Mayor Pro-Tem Pamala Harrison-Bivins – Seat 2 

Robby Strickland – Seat 3
Don C. Clark – Seat 4 
Julian Green – Seat 5 

Bill Ed Cannon – City Manager 
 

Monday, March 11, 2013 
7:00 PM 

City Hall Commission Chamber 
PLEASE TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES AND PAGERS 

Persons with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk’s Department, ADA 
Coordinator, at 352-330-1330, Ext. 102, forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. 

F.S.S. 286.0105A - If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, 
they will need a record of the proceedings, and that for such purpose they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 

made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
The City of Wildwood DOES NOT provide this verbatim record. 

City Hall Commission Chamber - 100 N. Main Street, Wildwood, FL 34785 

 

AGENDA 

 
 THE MEETING IS CALLED TO ORDER BY THE MAYOR 
 INVOCATION 
 FLAG SALUTE 
 

1. TIMED ITEMS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 
a. 7:00 PM – PUBLIC HEARING – 2

nd
 FINAL READING on the adoption of Ordinance O2013-01; an ordinance 

adopting the 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan and the recommended text amendments to the 
Public Facilities, Conservation, Intergovernmental Coordination, and Capital Improvement Elements of 
the Comprehensive Plan. (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
b. 7:00 PM – PUBLIC HEARING – 2

nd
 FINAL READING on the adoption of Ordinance O2013-02, a Text 

Amendment to Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use Element of the adopted Comprehensive Plan which is 
specific to The Villages of Wildwood Development of Regional Impact (DRI). (Attachments – Staff 
Recommends Approval) 

 
c. PUBLIC HEARING – 2

ND
 FINAL READING of Ordinance 02013-06; An ordinance voluntarily annexing 2.67± 

acres of property owned by Hughes Brothers, LLC located just north of the intersection of CR 213/Walker 
Road and SR 44. The property to be annexed is a portion of Parcel G07=133 and is intended to be utilized 
as an office for a construction company (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
d. PUBLIC HEARING – 2

ND
 FINAL READING of Ordinance No. O2013-07 – An Ordinance voluntarily annexing 

an approximate 1-acre piece of property located along CR 466 east of CR 209 owned by Gary Williams. 
The property to be annexed is a portion of Parcel D18=038 and is intended to be utilized for service and 
sales of lawn mowers (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
e. PUBLIC HEARING – 2ND FINAL READING of Ordinance No. O2013-08 – An Ordinance voluntarily 

annexing the north 100’ of Parcel D30=003, Villages of Legacy Park Subdivision, located along CR 222 
west of US 301, omitted from the original annexation because it would have created an enclave 
(Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
 * Quasi Judicial Hearing 

 



P a g e  | 2 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
March 11, 2013 

 

 

 
2. REPORTS AND PUBLIC INPUT / SPECIAL PRESENTATION(S) 

a. Special Presentations 
1. None 
 

b. City Manager 
1. Request to reschedule the Special Called Workshop Meeting to discuss the Champagne Farms Water 

Treatment Plant originally scheduled for March 4
th

.  (Calendars attached) 
 

c. City Attorney 
1.  
 

d. City Clerk 
1. Discussion and/or Action on The Communications Services Tax Agreement for Access to Confidential 

State Tax Information between the City of Wildwood and the Florida Department of Revenue (only an 
update for names of authorized personnel; the only change is updating the City Manager's 
Name)  (Attachments - Staff recommends Approval) 

 
e. Commission Members 

1.  
 

f. Public Forum (10 minute time limit) 
1.  

 
g. Notes and Reports 

1. FYI – Letter of Appreciation from Robert Hannah, President of Wildwood Community Development 
Center, Inc. 

 
3. NEW BUSINESS – ACTION REQUIRED 

a. MINUTES 
1. Minutes of Regular Meeting held on February 25, 2013 (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
  

b. ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (READ ONLY – NO VOTE) 
1. None 
 

c. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 
1. None 
 

d. APPOINTMENTS  
1. None  

 
e. CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS 

1. Discussion/Request for Approval of the First Addendum “Pioneer Agreement” to the Developer’s 
Agreement Between the City of Wildwood and the Word Family, LLC (Attachments – Staff 
Recommends Approval) 

 
f. FINANCIAL 

1. Bills for Approval (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
 

g. GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
1. Discussion/Board Option – Request from multiple buyers for the City to sell a certain portion of 

Millennium Park to facilitate the development of adjacent properties (stormwater retention); 
requesting board direction to set price and authorize sale of the property, decline the sale, or obtain 
a professional appraisal that accurately reflects current market conditions prior to sale; directing the 



P a g e  | 3 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
March 11, 2013 

 

 

proceeds from any sale be deposited back into the Parks and Recreation Dept. as required under the 
conditions of the Millennium Park FRDAP Grant (Melanie Peavy) (Attachments – Board Option) 

 
2. Request for Approval of SP 1301-02 – An Improvement Plan for the Windward at Lakeside Landings 

Plat to subdivide a portion of parcel D21=003 into twenty-five lots with shared infrastructure.  This 
subdivision is a continuation of the Lakeside Landings Planned Development (PD) and reduces the 
number of living units from the conceptual plan from 32 duplexes to 25 single family homes. The 
Special Magistrate recommends approval and favorable recommendation of the Improvement Plan 
to the City Commission subject to approval, exemption, or permitting by all agencies of competent 
jurisdiction.  (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval)  

 
3. Request for Approval of SP 1301-03 – Site Plan approval sought by Harry Harmer to construct a 

4,200 sq. ft. warehouse building on Lot 4 Block A in the South Wildwood Industrial Park with paved 
parking and driveway.  The building will be used for commercial / industrial warehouse space.  The 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable recommendation to the City 
Commission subject to approval, exemption, or permitting by all agencies of competent jurisdiction.  
(Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
4. SP 1302-03 – Villages of Legacy Park – Preliminary Plan - Preliminary Plan approval for the Villages 

of Legacy Park Plat to subdivide parcels D30=003, D30=004, and D30=006 into 112 lots with shared 
infrastructure for single-family detached residences.  The Planning & Zoning Board/Special 
Magistrate gave a favorable recommendation to the City Commission subject to approval, 
exemption, or permitting by all agencies of competent jurisdiction.  (Attachments – Staff 
Recommends Approval) 
 

 
 CLOSE PUBLIC MEETING FOR AN EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

- City Attorney, Jerri Blair – To discuss pending litigation (NO Attachments) 
 

 REOPEN PUBLIC MEETING 

 
4. ADJOURN 

 
IMPORTANT DATES (No Attachments) 

 

a. March 16, 2013 – (Saturday) – Wildwood Rotary’s Ides of March…Madness 5k run/walk – 8:00 AM – 
Starts & ends at City Hall 

 
b. March 23, 2013 – (Saturday) – Opening Ceremonies for Wildwood Dixie Youth – 10:00 AM – 

Millennium Park Ball Fields 
 
c. March 25, 2013  – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
 
d. March 30, 2013 – (Saturday) – 4

th
 Annual Easter Eggstravaganza – 9:00 AM – Millennium Park 

Baseball Fields 
 
e. April 5 & 6, 2013 – (Friday & Saturday) – Relay for Life – Starts at 6:00 PM April 5

th
 – Ends at 12:00 

Noon on April 6
th

 – Wildwood Community Center 
 
f. April 26, 2013 – (Friday) – Tree City USA Commemoration Ceremony – 23 years/Arbor Day – 9:00 

AM – City Hall Front Steps 

 
 
 



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
On Janua
02 which 
Conserva
 
The City r
have bee
recognize
district’s r
water con
 
In summa
 

 A
 C
 E
 In
 U

C
 
Staff reco
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

CITY

CT: Ord

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/IS
ary 14, 2013 t

adopts the 1
ation, Intergov

received two 
n addressed 

e the City’s re
regional wate
nservation hel

ary the amend

Adopt the Wor
Coordinate the

ncourage the
nvestigate stra
Update the 5-
Champagne F

ommends ad

cHugh 
ment Services

Y COMMIS

dinance O2

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

SSUES: 
the City Comm
10-Year Wate
vernmental Co

minor comm
in the amen

equirement to
er supply plan
ps in managi

dments are as

rk Plan into th
e Work Plan w
e use of reuse
ategies to furt
-Year Schedu
arms Water T

doption Ordin

 

 Coordinator 

SSION OF

EXECUT

2013-01: 1
 

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

mission move
er Supply Fac
oordination, a

ents from the
dment.  Polic

o update the W
n update. The
ng the City’s 

s follows: 

he Comprehen
with the South
e water to offs
ther water co
ule of Capita
Treatment Pla

nance O2013

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

0-Year Wa

Adopt

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

ed to transmit
cilities Work P
and Capital Im

e Southwest F
cy 1.3.13 of t
Water Supply
e Work Plan 
water supply 

nsive Plan by
hwest Florida 
set potable wa
nservation pr
l Improveme

ant and transm

3-01. 

ITY OF W

MARY 

ater Supply

tion of Ordin

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

t to the state 
Plan and text

mprovements 

Florida Water
the Public Fa
y Plan within 
was also mo
demand. 

y  reference;
Water Mana

ater demands
ractices; and
nts to includ
mission syste

WILDWOO

y Facilities 

nance O20

TING: M
ting  

 

 
e:   

reviewing ag
t amendment
Elements of 

r Managemen
acilities Elem

18 months o
odified to inc

gement Distr
s; 

e the capital
em. 

OD 

 Work Plan

013-01  

March 11, 20

gencies Ordin
ts to the Pub
the Compreh

nt District. Th
ent has been
of the water m
lude a discus

ict; 

 facilities nee

n 

013 

ance O2013-
blic Facilities, 
hensive Plan. 

he comments 
n tweaked to 
management 
ssion of how 

eded for the 

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
PUBLIC HEARING - 2ND FINAL READING

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text



 
Ordinance No. O2013-01 

10-Year Water Supply Facilities Plan 
1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; ADOPTING THE 10-YEAR WATER SUPPLY 
FACILITIES WORK PLAN; PROVIDING FOR TEXT 
AMENDMENTS TO THE PUBLIC FACILITIES ELEMENT, 
CONSERVATION ELEMENT, INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
COORDINATION ELEMENT, AND CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT OF THE ADOPTED LOCAL 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTION 163.3177(6)(c), FLORIDA STATUTES AND THE 
COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT OF 2011; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS,  the City is required to prepared and adopt a 10-Year Water Supply 
Facilities Work Plan  into the local comprehensive plan pursuant to Section 
163.3177(6)(c), Florida Statutes; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City wishes to adopt the 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work 

Plan and recommended text amendments to the City of Wildwood Comprehensive Plan; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City hereby adopts the 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work 
Plan contained in “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein. 
 

SECTION 2. The text amendments to the Public Facilities, Conservation, 
Intergovernmental Coordination, and Capital Improvements Elements of the City of 
Wildwood Comprehensive Plan are shown in attached “Exhibit B.” The amendments are 
attached hereto and are shown with strikethrough for deletions and underline for 
additions. 
 
 SECTION 3. With the recommendations of the City Commission, the proposed 
amendments are hereby transmitted by the City Commission to the state land planning 
agency.  
 
 SECTION 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.  
 



 
Ordinance No. O2013-01 

10-Year Water Supply Facilities Plan 
2 of 2 

 SECTION 5. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
 
 SECTION 6. This Ordinance, if the amendment is not timely challenged, shall be 
effective 31 days after the state land planning agency notifies the local government that 
the plan amendment package is complete. If timely challenged, this Ordinance shall 
become effective on the date the state land planning agency or the Administration 
Commission enters a final order determining this Ordinance to be in compliance. No 
development orders, development permits, or land uses dependent upon this Ordinance 
may be issued or commenced before it has become effective. If a final order of 
noncompliance is issued by the Administration Commission, this Ordinance may 
nevertheless be made effective by adoption of a resolution affirming its effective status, 
a copy of which resolution shall be sent to the state land planning agency. 
 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2013, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
  
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  
 
 
             
 Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:_______________________ 
     Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 
 
First Reading:      
 
 
Second Reading:      
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
      
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ordinance O2013-01 

 
“Exhibit A” 

 
City of Wildwood 10-Year Water Supply 

Facilities Work Plan 
 



 

 

 

10-
Fa

Yea
acili

De

K

ar W
ties

Pr

City 

evelopment 

Utilitie

Kimley-Horn

Ad

Mar

Wate
s Wo

epared by:

of Wildwoo

Services De

es Departm

n and Associ

dopted on: 

rch 11, 2013

er Su
ork 

d 

epartment

ent 

iates, Inc. 

3 

upp
Plan

ply 
n 

 



 i
 

 

Abbrevia
Section I
  
  
Section I
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
Section I

  

Section I
  
  
Section V
Section V
  
  
  

Section V
 

 
Table 1: 
Table 2: 
Table 3: 
Table 4: 
Table 5: 
Table 6: 
 
Map 1:  
Map 2:  
Map 3:  
 
 

 

ations………
I:  Introd

Purpo
Statu

II:  Potab
Potab
Water
Distri
Wells
Potab
High 
Water
Water

III: Potab
Water
Cham
Capit

IV: Reuse
Existi
Futur

V:  Water
VI: Modif

Public
Conse
Interg
Capit

VII: Concl

Existi
  Potab
 Wells

Water
Water
Potab

Water
Existi
Futur

………………
duction 
ose…………

utory Requir
ble Water D
ble Water Se
r Supply an
ibution Syst
s and Water
ble Water St
Service Pum
r Use Perm
r Quality…

ble Water Pr
r Demand P

mpagne Farm
tal Improvem
e 
ing Conditio
re Condition
r Conservat
fications to 
c Facilities 
ervation Ele
government
tal Improvem
lusions………

ing Potable 
ble Water Pl
s and Water
r Use Perm
r Demand P

ble Water Ca

r Service Ar
ing Facilitie
re Potable W

 

Table

………………

………………
rements……
ata, Invento
ervice Area…

nd Treatmen
tem…………

r Treatment
torage Facil
mping Facil
it……………
………………
rojections an
Projections 2
ms…………
ments 2012/

ons…………
ns……………
tion…………
the Compre
Element……

ement………
tal Coordina
ments Elem
………………

List of T

Water Cust
lants………
r Treatment
it Groundw

Projections 2
apital Impr

rea Boundar
es  
Water Facili

e of Content

………………

………………
………………

ory and Ana
………………
nt Facilities
………………
t Plants……
lities…………
lities…………

………………
………………
nd Capital I
2013-2023…
………………
/2012 – 201

………………
………………
………………
ehensive Pla
………………

………………
ation Eleme

ment…………
………………

Tables and M

tomers……
………………

t Plants……
water Supply
2013-2023…
ovements P

ry 

ities 

ts 

………………

………………
………………

alysis  
………………
s………...……

………………
………………

………………
………………

………………
………………
Improveme

………………
………………
17/2018……

………………
………………
………………

an 
………………

………………
ent…………
………………
………………

Maps 

………………
………………

………………
y Facilities…

………………
Projects…..…

………………

………………
………………

………………
………………

………………
………………
………………
………………

………………
………………
ents 

….……………
………………
….…………

………………
………………

………………

………………
………………
………………

………………
………………

………………
………………
………………

………………
………………
………………

…………..Pa

……………Pa
…….…….Pa

……………Pa
…………...Pa
………….Pa
…………..Pa
…………...Pa
…………...Pa
………….Pa

……………Pa

……………Pa
……………Pa

………….Pa

…………Pag
………...Pag
…………Pag

…………..Pag
………...Pag
…………Pag

…………  Pag
…………..Pag

…………...Pa
…………...Pa
…………..Pa

…………...Pa
………….Pa

……………Pa

age ii 

age 1 
age 1 

age 3 
age 3 
age 4  
age 4 
age 5 
age 5 
age 5 
age 6 

age 7 
age 7 
age 9 

ge 10 
ge 10 
ge 11 

ge 13  
ge 14  
ge 14  
ge 14  
ge 15  

age 3  
age 3 
age 4 
age 6 
age 8 
age 9 



 ii
 

 

ADF:   

AWS:  

CIP:  

CRSA:  

FDEP:  

F.S.:  

GPD:  

GPM:  

ID:  

KHA:  

MCL:  

MDF:  

MGD:   

NERSA:

NWRSA

PWS:  

RWSP: 

SCADA:

SERSA: 

SWFWM

WTP:  

WUP:  

 

Avera

Altern

Capit

Centr

Florid

Florid

Gallon

Gallon

Ident

Kimle

Maxim

Maxim

Millio

 North

A: North

Public

Regio

 Super

South

MD: South

Water

Water

age Daily Fl

native Wate

tal Improvem

ral Regional

da Departm

da Statutes 

ns per Day 

ns per Minu

ification 

ey-Horn and

mum Conta

mum Daily 

on gallons p

heast Region

hwest Regio

c water syst

onal Water S

rvisory Cont

heast Region

hwest Florid

r Treatmen

r Use Perm

Abb

low 

er Supply 

ments Plan

l Service Ar

ment of Envir

ute 

d Associates

aminant Lev

Flow 

er day 

n Service Ar

n Service A

tem 

Supply Plan

trol and Da

n Service Ar

da Water M

t Plant 

it 

breviations

rea 

ronmental P

s, Inc. 

vels 

rea 

Area 

n 

ta Acquisiti

rea 

anagement 

Protection

ion 

District 



 
 

I. 

 

Local go
into the
managem
163.3177
(SWFWM
the Distr
Plan (Wo
the requ

Purpose 

The purp
that will
potable w
and end
Rather, 
adequate
statutory

The Wor
Utility D
and Ass
existing 
the City
examine

A subse
relation 
objective
are need

Statutor

The Wor
water su

F.S. 163

F.S. 163

 

Introduct

overnments 
eir local co
ment distric
7(6)(c). In 
MD) include
rict’s RWSP
ork Plan) h

uirements an

pose of the 
l be needed 
water servi

ding in 2023
the Work 

e water sup
y requireme

rk Plan has
Department 
ociates, Inc
and future

y’s service a
ed.  

quent purp
to the find

es, and polic
ded to imple

ry Requirem

rk Plan has 
upply and fa

.3.77(4)(a):  

.3177(6)(c): 

tion 

are require
omprehensiv
ct approves
July of 20

ed the north
P. As such, 
as been dev
nd guideline

City of Wild
to serve ex
ce area. Th
3.  Howeve
Plan shou

pply is avai
ents are bein

s been prep
with the ad

c. (KHA). T
e water faci
area. Exist

pose of the 
dings of the
cies of the C
ment the re

ments 

been devel
acility plann

Co
the

Re
to 

ed to prepa
ve plans w
s a Regiona
012, the S
hern planni
the City of 

veloped. Thi
es contained

dwood’s Wo
xisting and f
he Work Pla
er, the Work
ld be upda
ilable to the
ng met.  

pared by th
dvice of the

The Work P
ilities. The 
ing water 

Work Plan
e report.  Th
City’s Comp
ecommendat

oped to mee
ning: 

oordinate ap
e SWFWMD

evise the Pu
adopt the 

re and adop
within 18 m
l Water Su

Southwest F
ing region, w
Wildwood 

is Work Pla
d in Florida 

ork Plan is t
future devel

an covers a 
k Plan is n
ated every 
e customers

he City of W
e City’s civil
Plan provide
Work Plan
conservatio

n is to analy
he Work Pl
rehensive P
tions and fi

et the follow

ppropriate a
D’s RWSP 

ublic Faciliti
Work Plan

pt a water 
months aft

upply Plan (
Florida Wa
which inclu
10-Year Wa

an has been 
a Statutes an

to plan for w
lopment wi
ten-year tim

not intende
few years 

s within th

Wildwood’s 
l engineerin
es text, ma
forecasts p

on practices

yze the Cit
lan include

Plan and ide
ndings of th

wing statuto

aspects of th

ies Element
n to meet p

supply faci
ter their r
(RWSP) pu
ater Manag

udes Sumter
ater Supply
created in 

nd the SWF

water sourc
thin the Cit
meframe be
d to be a s
as approp

e service ar

Developme
ng consultan
aps, and ta
potable wat
s within th

ty’s compre
es an analy
entifies whe
he Work Pla

ory requirem

he comprehe

t of the com
projected de

ilities work 
espective w
rsuant to F
gement Dis
r County, w
y Facilities W

accordance 
FWMD’s RW

ces and faci
ty of Wildw

eginning in 
static docum
priate to en
rea and tha

ent Services
nt, Kimley-H

ables to des
ter usage w
he City are 

ehensive pla
sis of the g
ere amendm
an.  

ments (2012

ensive plan 

mprehensive 
emands; inc

plan 
water 
F.S. § 
strict 

within 
Work 
with 

WSP.  

ilities 
wood’s 

2013 
ment. 
nsure 
at all 

s and 
Horn 

scribe 
within 

also 

an in 
goals, 
ments 

2) for 

with 

plan 
clude 



 
 

F.S. 163

F.S. 163

F.S. 163

  

 

 

.3177(6)(d)(

.3177(3)(a)4

.3177(6)(h)1

fac
con

(3): Re
ass
lev

4: Re
com
be 

1: Re
com
coo
Wa

 

cilities need
nservation a

evise the Co
sess current
vels of conse

evise the
mprehensiv
implemente

evise the In
mprehensiv
ordinating 
ater Supply

ded to deve
and reuse m

onservation 
t and projec
ervation, an

Capital 
ve plan to id
ed in the fir

ntergovernm
ve plan to 

the compr
y Authority a

lop alterna
measures to 

Element of
cted water n

nd water sou

Improvem
dentify capit
rst 5 years o

mental Coo
adopt prin

rehensive 
and the SW

ative water 
meet future

f the compre
needs and s

urce protecti

ments Ele
tal improve
of the Work 

ordination 
nciples and
plan with 

WFWMD’s R

supply; ide
e needs 

ehensive pl
sources, exi
ion  

ment of 
ment projec
Plan 

Element of
d guidelines

Withlacoo
WSP 

entify 

an to 
isting 

the 
cts to 

f the 
s for 
ochee 



 
 

II. 

 

The City
the City
family re

Commer

 

The City
connect 
Protectio
stages o
Floridan

Plant 

 
Notes:  Pl
 Pl

 

In 2011 
water, a
Average 
Monthly

 

 

Potable W

y of Wildwoo
y serves app
esidences.  

Typ
Residenti

rcial/Industr

y of Wildwo
to a commo
on (FDEP) 
of a sixth p
n Aquifer. Th

Number 
1 

2 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

lant #6 has been
lant #7 is a futu

the City p
averaging a

Daily (AA
y daily avera

Water Data,

od’s potable
proximately

Table1: E

pe of User 
al Single Fa
rial/Professi
Total 

Wate

ood owns an
on distribut

Public Wa
potable trea
he City’s po

Servic
Ce

Sou

Sou
Nor
Nor
Sou
Nor

n taken offline a
ure water plant i

pumped, tre
approximate
AD) permitt
age is 7,657

, Inventory 

Potable W

e water serv
 4,162 conn

Existing Cit

amily 
ional/Irriga

ter Supply an

nd operates
ion system 
ter System

atment plan
otable water

Table 2: Po

ce Region 
entral 

utheast 

utheast 
rthwest 
rtheast 
utheast 
rthwest 

and is no longer 
in early design s

eated and d
ely 2,144,25
ted withdra
,000 GPD.

and Analys

Water Servic

vice area is s
nections wit

ty Potable W

tion

and Treatme

 five (5) pot
under the 

m (PWS) ID
nt with two
r plants are 

table Water

40

F

Cha

in use 
stages 

distributed 
52 gallons p
awal capac

sis 

ce Area 

shown on M
th the pred

Water Custo

Num

ent Facilitie

table water
Florida Dep

D#6600331. 
o (2) wells 
identified i

r Plants 

801
05 CR 501 (N

Correc
Okahum

SR 44 and 
Fairways Su
Wildwood E
ampagne F

approximat
per day (G

city is 4,98

Map 1. As sh
dominate us

omers 

mber of Met
3,240 
922 

4,162 

es 

r treatment
partment of
The City i
extending 

in Table 2 a

Location 
 Huey Stree
Near Colem
ctional Faci

mpka Service
CR 231 Inte
ubdivision (
Estates (SR 
arms (CR 2

tely 782,652
GPD). The s
80,000 GPD

hown on Tab
sers being s

ters 

t facilities w
f Environm
is in the de
into the L

nd on Map 

et 
man Federal 

lity) 
e Plaza 
ersection 
(CR 127A) 
 44 East) 
31 and I-75

2,000 gallon
system’s An

D and the 

ble 1, 
single 

which 
ental 
esign 

Lower 
2. 

5) 

ns of 
nnual 
Peak 



 
 

The inte
maintain
the wate

The City
treatmen
are unde
storage t
tank, fiv
consistin
Map 2 id

 

F

Pl
Pl

Pl

Pl
Pl

Notes: The 
capacity. 

Plant #7
wells co
Septemb
to meet t

The City
working 
requirem

 

erconnected
ned water m
er treatment

y’s potable 
nt facilities 
er design), 
tank, one (

ve (5) high s
ng of high s
dentify the C

acility 

lant #1 
lant #2 

 
lant #3 

 
lant #4 
lant #5 
well pump valu

7 (Champag
nstructed o

ber 2010 aft
the statutor

o Condi
Aquif
 

o Condi
 

y is a memb
with the D

ments of the

d distributi
mains rangi
t facilities t

We

water distr
consisting 
one (1) 500
1) 500,000 
service pum
service pum
City’s potab

Table 2

W
We

High Se
We

High Se
W
W

ues are SWFWM

gne Farms)
on-site (per
ter being dr
ry definition

ition 1: The
fer and the L

Tests indi
ition 2: The 

Tests indi

ber of the W
Director in a
e WUP’s con

Distrib

ion system 
ng in size fr
hat serve th

Wells and Wa

ibution faci
of seven (7)

0,000 gallon
ground stor

mps, three (
mps and a 5

le water we

2: Wells and

 

Well Pump
ell Pumps (2
ervice Pump

ell Pumps (2
ervice Pump

Well Pump
Well Pump
MD permitted wi

 is in the e
mitted by t

rilled into th
n of an AWS

ere must n
Lower Flori
icate the we
water qual

icate the wa

Withlacooch
an effort to 
nditional req

ibution Syste

consists o
from 2” to 1
he City are p

ater Treatme

ilities are c
) active well

n elevated st
rage tank, 
3) hydro-pn

500,000 gall
ells and trea

d Water Tre

Pea

2) 
ps (4)
2) 
ps (1)

ithdrawal capac

early design
the SWFW
he Lower F
S source, the

not be a con
idan Aquifer
ells meet the
lity is requir
ater quality 

hee Regiona
have SWFW

quirement o

tem 

of approxim
6” in diame
permitted t

ment Plants

connected to
ls, five (5) i
torage tank
 one (1) 25

neumatic ta
lon ground 
atment plan

eatment Pla

ak Month A
(MGD) 
0.92275 

3.075 
5.04 

0.563186
0.7344 

0.379609
0.14022 

cities. The High 

n stages. T
WMD). These
Floridan Aqu
ey must me

nnection be
r. 
e criteria. 
red to be “br
does not m

al Water Su
WMD accep

of an AWS s

mately 85.4
eter. The Ci
through the 

o five (5) w
inactive wel
k, one (1) 1
5,000 gallon
anks and a 

storage tan
nts. 

ants 

ADF 

Service Pump v

There are pr
e wells wer
uifer. In ord
et two (2) co

etween the 

rackish.”  
eet the crite

upply Autho
pt the wells
source. 

4 miles of 
ity’s operati
FDEP.   

ater supply
lls (two of w
,000,000 gr

n ground sto
re-pump st
nk. Table 3

ADF  
(MGD) 
0.600 
2.000 
3.276 
0.366 
0.477 
0.246 
.0912 

values are rated

resently tw
re complete
der for the 
onditions. 

Upper Flor

eria. 

ority and sta
s as meeting

City 
ion of 

y and 
which 
round 
orage 
ation 

3 and 

d pump 

wo (2) 
ed in 
wells 

ridan 

aff is 
g the 



 
 

It was n
2012. Ho
The City
off-line w
Plaza of 

Upon com
#5 will b
approxim
#3, #4, a
MGD).   

The City
gallons a
2,500,00

The City
3,500 GP
station r
plants t
emergen

The con
distribut
as a sour
The City
WUP au
quantitie

 

A modifi
2013. Th
withdraw
Table 4. 

 

 

noted in the 
owever, onl
y and the Fl
within the 
the Florida

mpletion of
be taken of
mately 36 m
and #5, Pla
 

y has three 
and one (1)

00 gallons.   

y has a tota
PM; one (1)
rated at a t
to a centra
ncy notificat

struction, o
tion facilitie
rce of raw w
y’s Water U
uthorizes t
es: 

 Annu
 Peak 

ication to th
his modific
wal. The g

previous u
y Plant #6 
orida Turnp
next 24 – 

a Turnpike. 

f the design
ff-line. The 

months. Upo
ant #7 will 

P

(3) ground 
) 500,000 g

H

l of eight (8
) at Plant #
total of 2,9

al Supervis
tion to the o

operation a
es are permi
water supply

Use Permit (
the withdra

ual Average 
Month Aver

he City’s W
ation made

groundwater

 

update that 
has been ta

pike Enterp
30 months.

, permitting
constructio

on completio
supply a s

Potable Wat

storage tan
gallon eleva

High Service

8) high servi
#3 rated at 
50 GPM. T
ory Contro
perator on c

Water Us

nd mainten
itted throug
y for treatm
(WUP) num
awal of gr

Daily Flow
rage Daily F

UP was iss
e no chang
r supply fa

Plants #4 a
aken off-lin

prise are pre
. Plant #3 i

g and constr
on of Plant 
on of constr
significant 

ter Storage F

nks, two (2) 
ated storage

e Pumping F

ice pumps, 
510 GPM a

The City is 
ol and Data
call. 

Use Permit (W

nance of th
gh the FDE

ment is gove
mber 200081
roundwater 

(ADF) – 4,9
Flow – 7,65

ued on Jan
es to the A

acilities gov

and #6 wou
ne while Pla
esently in ne
is located a

ruction of P
 #7 is antic

ruction and 
portion of 

Facilities 

500,000 ga
e tank for

Facilities 

four (4) at P
and three (
working on
a Acquisiti

(WUP) 

he City’s w
P, but the w

erned and pe
135.009 was

for public

980,000 GPD
7,000 GPD

nuary 25, 20
ADF withd
verned by 

uld be off-lin
ant #4 rema
egotiations 
at the Okah

Plant #7, bo
cipated to b
the abando
the City’s d

allons and o
a total stor

Plant #2, ra
3) at the C

n connecting
ion (SCADA

ater treatm
withdrawal 
ermitted by
s issued by 
c supply in

D 

012 and exp
drawal or th

the WUP 

ne by Septe
ains operati
to take Plan
humpka Se

oth Plant #4
be complete

onment of P
demand (1.

one (1) 1,000
rage capaci

ated at a tot
CR 214 Re-P

g the treat
A) system 

ment plants
of ground w

y the SWFW
SWFWMD

n the follo

pires on Jul
he Peak M
are outline

mber 
ional. 
nt #3 

ervice 

4 and 
ed in 
lants 
.6408 

0,000 
ity of 

tal of 
Pump 
ment 
with 

s and 
water 

WMD. 
. The 

owing 

ly 29, 
Month 
ed in    



 
 

Water Pl
N

Hue
Tu
Tu

P
P

Police De
Wes

WW Cou
Wildwoo
WW Cou
Wildwoo

Fairw
Champa
Champa

Total
Notes: 
*: W
**: W
^: W
^^: W

pl

 

The City
permitti
Champa
indicate 

 

Maintain
compone
water su
organic a
As a res
water qu
regulatio

 

 

 

Tab

lant Common
Name 

 
y Street* 
rnpike* 
rnpike* 

Prison* 
Prison* 
epartment*,^
t Well1,4 

untry Resort –
od Estates*,^
untry Resort –
od Estates*,^
ways*,^^ 
agne Farm**
agne Farm**
l Quantity 

Wells produce from 
Wells produce from 
Wells produce from 
Wells produce from 

aced in production

y’s consulta
ng and co

agne Farm 
there is no 

ning high w
ents of the w
upply is belo
and inorgan
sult Plant N
uality produ
ons for the p

ble 4: Water

n Water 
Plant 

Number 
 
1 
3 
3 
2 
2 

^  
4 

– 
^ 

6 

– 
^ 

6 

5 
* 7 
* 7 

 

the Upper Florida
the Lower Florida
the Upper Florida
the Upper Florida

n. 

ant, KHA h
onstruction 

wells were
connection 

water qualit
water treatm
ow the Max
nic contamin
Nos. 2 & 3 
uced by all 
production o

r Use Perm

Well I

SWFWM
6 
12 
13 
14 
15 
18 
19 
20 

21 

22 
29 
30 

 

an Aquifer 
an Aquifer and are
an Aquifer and are
an Aquifer and ar

has develop
of the Ch

e construct
between th

Wa

y is a prior
ment faciliti
ximum Cont
nates with 
have aerati
five (5) wa

of safe drink

it Groundw

I.D. Number

MD City
11

SP-
SP-
SE-
SE-

18
WW-
WE-

WE_

FW-
CF-
CF-

e not in service at 
e no longer in use.
re scheduled to be 

ped a prelim
hampagne 
ed into th
e Upper and

ater Quality

ity for the C
ies are in go
taminate Le
the exceptio
ion treatme

ater treatme
king water.

 

water Supply

W

y 
 60
2 16
1 19
1 1,0
2 1,0
 2
44 24
-1 1

_2 1

-1 9
1 82
2 82

4,9

this time 
 
taken out of serv

minary des
Farm Wat
e Lower F
d Lower Flo

y

City of Wild
ood operatin
evels (MCL)
on of sulfid
ent facilities
ent plants m

y Facilities 

WUP 
ADF 

 
00,000 
69,100 
97,200 
000,000 
000,000 
2,000 
46,900 

16,100 

16,700 

91,200 
20,400 
20,400 
980,000 

vice upon the Cham

sign report 
ter Treatm
Floridan Aq
oridan aquif

dwood. Curr
ng condition
) for all cur

des at plant 
s for the su
meets all st

WUP
Peak Mon

ADF
 

922,750
259,991
303,195

1,537,50
1,537,50

3,075
379,609
24,754

25,676

140,220
1,261,36
1,261,36
7,657,00

mpagne Farm wel

for the de
ent Plant.

quifer and 
fers.  

rently, all m
n. The City’s
rently regu
numbers 2

ulfides. Fini
tate and fe

nth 

0 
1 
5 
00 
00 

9 
4 

6 

0 
65 
65 
00 

lls being 

esign, 
The 

tests 

major 
s raw 
lated 
 & 3. 
ished 
deral 



 
 

III: 

The City
page. Th
includin
Next, th
not utili
believes 
assigned
smaller, 

Buildout
the Tabl
MGD wh

The esti
trends th
to believ
Villages,
commun

Over the
WTP an
Kimley H
for the n

The repo
meet the
in phase
provide 
span of t

  

 

Potable W

y’s 10-Year W
he projectio
g the Colem
e City accou
zed as a res
are on the

d to these p
infill projec

t scenarios h
le).  As show
hich represe

mates show
he City has 
ve substant
, available 

nity will to g

e last few y
nd transmis
Horn and A

new WTP an

ort indicate
e projected 
es. The first
4.5 MGD w

the Work Pl

Water Proje

Wat

Water Dem
ons were de
man Federa
unted for th
sult of execu
e horizon w
projects is 
cts within ea

have been c
wn in Table

ents a 58% i

wn in Table
been exper

tial and fas
infrastruc

grow.  

years, the C
sion system

Associates c
nd transmis

es the ultim
20-year dem
t phase wou
which shoul
lan. The sec

ctions and C

ter Demand

mand Project
eveloped by
al Correctio
he amount o
uted Develo

were also a
minimal. L
ach service 

calculated at
e 5, the Cit
increase in c

e 5 may be 
riencing ove
st-paced gr
cture that

Cham

ity of Wildw
m for the w
completed th
sion system

mate design 
mands. How
uld include 
ld be able t
cond phase w

Capital Imp

d Projections

tions (ADF)
y first ident
onal Facility
of committe
oper’s Agree
accounted fo
Lastly, estim
region. 

t 5 and 10 y
ty’s total pr
current dem

conservativ
r the last fe
owth is im
can accom

mpagne Farm

wood has be
ells at Cha
he Champa

m.   

capacity w
wever, the W

the constru
to accommo
will commen

provements

ns 2013-2023

 are shown 
tifying the 
y, the City

ed capacity 
ements.  Kn
or. Howeve
mates were

year increm
rojected wat
mand.     

ve and are 
ew years.  H

mminent du
mmodate g

rm 

een plannin
ampagne Fa
agne Farm 

will be 6.0 M
WTP will be
uction of th
odate the a
nce when w

3 

in Table 5 
existing se

y’s largest u
that has be

nown projec
er, the amo
e forecasted

ments (shown
ter demand

based on cu
However, th
e to the pr

growth, and

ng and prep
arm. In Nov
Preliminary

MGD which
e designed 

he necessary
nticipated g

warranted. 

on the follo
erved popul
utility custo
een reserved
cts that the
ount of buil
d to accoun

n as “% Bui
d in 2023 is

urrent econ
he City conti
roximity to
d political 

paring for a
vember of 2
y Design Re

h is sufficie
and constru
y componen
growth over

owing 
ation 
omer. 
d but 

e City 
ldout 

nt for 

ilt” in 
 3.62 

nomic 
inues 

o The 
and 

a new 
2012, 
eport 

nt to 
ucted 
nts to 
r the 



 

  

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

  
S

E
R

V
IC

E
A

R
E

A
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

S
 W

IT
H

  
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

D
C

A
P

A
C

IT
Y

F
U

T
U

R
E

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
S

 

  

   

AR

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
R

E
A

 

Existing Served 
Coleman Prison 
Infill 1 (City, Nor

Infill 2 (City, We

Infill 3 (City, Eas

Infill 4 (West SR

Infill 5 (East SR 

Infill 6 (US 301, 
Infill 7 (CR 501) 

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 

301 S. Office Com

Amprop Corners

CFUS (IMRT Ce
Harry Harmer In
Hi-End Developm

Homes in Partne

Lake Andrew Pr

Lakeside Landin
Maricamp, LLC 
Mercantile Bank
Oxford Crossings

Parkwood Sumte
Triumph South  
Turkey Run 
Turkey Run (Fut

Landstone DRI 

Wildwood Spring

Southern Oaks D

Tradewinds Villa

Wildwood Crossi

Quadventure 

O'Dell PD 

Monarch Ranch 

Sumter LLC 

Lee Capital 

Total 

REA 

Area 

rth) 

est) 

st) 

R 44) 

44) 

South of Turnpike) 

mplex 

s, Inc. 

enter) 
ndustrial Park 
ment 

ership 

eserve 

ngs 

k 
s Partnership 

er Properties 

ture) 

gs DRI 

DRI 

age PD 

ings 

Table

Current (20
Population ERU

8,324 4,16

7,500 3,48
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

0 0
0 0
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

15,824 7,65

e 5: Water Dem

013) 
Us GPD % 

2 1,061,310 

8 1,046,512 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 2,107,822 

mand Projection

201
Built Population

81 8,754 

100 7,500 
68 2,224 

24 261 

55 1,524 

15 20 

10 147 

23 132 

52 72 

25 8 

25 67 

25 12 

25 3 
25 230 

25 10 

25 109 

25 59 

25 93 
25 1 
25 278 

100 99 
25 20 
25 37 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

  21,660 

ns for 2013-2023

18 
ERUs GPD

4,377 1,116,12

3,488 1,046,51
967 290,087

113 33,991

663 198,809

9 2,635

64 19,148

57 17,243

31 9,443

3 998 

29 8,775

5 1,575

2 450 
100 30,000

4 1,275

48 14,250

26 7,725

41 12,150
0 105 

121 36,225

43 12,900
9 2,550
16 4,875

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

10,216 2,867,84

3 

% Built Pop

20 86 

12 100 
7 79 

1 42 

9 67 

44 

8 31 

3 41 

64 

50 

50 

50 

50 
0 50 

50 

0 50 

50 

0 50 
50 

5 50 

0 50 
50 
50 

50 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

41   2

2023 
pulation ERUs 

9,352 4,676 

7,500 3,488 
2,571 1,118 

462 201 

1,832 796 

59 26 

475 207 

239 104 

89 39 

15 7 

135 59 

24 11 

7 3 
460 200 

20 9 

219 95 

118 52 

186 81 
2 1 

555 242 

49 22 
39 17 
75 33 

472 205 

958 417 

339 147 

537 233 

95 41 

25 11 

39 17 

83 36 

259 112 

61 26 

99 43 

27,449 12,772

GPD 

1,192,362 

1,046,512 
335,374 

60,235 

238,930 

7,748 

62,009 

31,200 

11,583 

1,995 

17,550 

3,150 

900 
60,000 

2,550 

28,500 

15,450 

24,300 
210 

72,450 

6,450 
5,100 
9,750 

61,500 

124,995 

44,160 

69,990 

12,375 

3,270 

5,145 

10,770 

33,735 

7,920 

12,975 

3,621,142 



 
 

In order
improvem
Champa
listed re
Plan.  

 

  

The prel
system. A
addition
24” wate
estimate
costs rep
report. 

These pr
sources f

 F
 S
 W
 C

 

 

r to address
ment proje

agne Farm W
epresent the

T

De
Champ

WTP
Champ

Tran
System
extens
Champ

Tran
System
exten

214
inte

liminary de
An analysis
al infrastru

er main exte
ed cost of th
present the

rojects are 
for the need

Florida Rura
State Revolv
Water and W
Connection a

Capital 

s future pot
cts that ar

WTP and tr
e potable w

Table 6: Pota

scription 
pagne Farm

P (Phase 1) 
pagne Farm
nsmission 
m: 24” Main
ion to SR 44
pagne Farm
nsmission 
m: 24” Main
nsion to CR 
4/CR 209 
ersection 

esign report
s was perfor
ucture. In a
ensions need

he three imp
e Engineer’

currently u
ded improve

al Water Ass
ving Fund L
Waste Dispo
and Transm

l Improveme

table water 
re necessar

ransmission
water compo

able Water 

Ti
m 

FY 

m 

n 
4 

FY 

m 

n 
FY 

t included a
rmed to iden

addition to t
ded to conn

provements 
’s Opinion 

unfunded.  H
ements. Pote

sociation Lo
oan Program
sal Loan an

mission Infra
 

ents 2012/20

needs with
ry. The thr
 system and

onent of the

Capital Imp

imeframe 

2015/2016

2015/2016

2015/2016

an extensiv
ntify the loc
the costs of
ect the new
listed in Ta
of Cost con

However, th
ential fundi

oan Program
m – Drinkin

nd Grant Pr
astructure E

013 – 2017/2

hin the serv
ree projects
d are includ
e City’s ove

provements

$

$

$

e analysis o
cation and m
f constructin

w WTP to the
able 6 is at e
ntained wi

he City is e
ing sources 

ms 
ng Water 
ogram 

Extension fe

/2018 

vice area, t
s are assoc
ded in Table
erall Capita

s Projects 

Cost 

$8,238,000 

$4,206,000 

$5,814,000 

of the exist
magnitude 
ng the WTP
e existing sy
estimated $
ith the pre

exploring po
include: 

ees (impact 

here are ca
ciated with
e 6. The pro

al Improvem

ting distribu
of the neces

P, there are
ystem. The 

$18,258,000
liminary de

otential fun

fees)   

apital 
h the 
ojects 
ments 

ution 
ssary 
e two 
total 
. The 
esign 

nding 



 
 

IV. 

The Cit
effective
The Vill
Country 

 T
su
a 
su

 T
a 
2
co
 

The City
reuse is 

The Cit
Memora
undeterm
water sy
will the r

Presentl

 

 

 

Reuse 

ty will con
ly using reu
lages Water
Club to sup

The agreeme
upplied is o
minimum o

upplying ap
The original 

supplemen
1, 2001. Th
ourse. Prese

y is presentl
being used 

ty has sold
ndum of U
mined quan
ystem for ir
reuse system

ly there are 

ntinue its 
use water fo
r Conserva
pply reuse w

ent with th
n a sliding 
of 1.5 MGD 
pproximatel

agreement 
ntal agreeme
ese agreem
ently the Ci

ly producing
by the Sham

d reservati
Understandi
ntity of reuse
rrigation pu
m. 

no expansio

 

Existin

commitmen
or non-potab
tion Author

water for us

he Authority
scale, this b
and a maxi
y 1.124 MG
with the R

ent with Br
ents were fo

ity is averag

g an averag
mrock Indus

Futur

ons for an
ng with th
e. New deve

urposes whe

ons planned

ing Conditio

nt to reduc
ble uses. Cu
rity, LLC (
e on the res

y sunsets o
being the 8th

imum of 2.0
GD. 
Rolling Hills 
rass Boys En
for the City 
ging supplyi

e of 1.552 M
strial Park 

 

re Condition

n additiona
he Landston
elopment is 
en available

d in the 5-ye

ons 

ce potable 
urrently the
(the Author
spective golf

on July 7, 2
h year of the
0 MGD. Pres

 Country C
nterprises w
to supply 0
ing approxim

MGD of reus
and several

ns 

al 0.447 M
ne developm
required to

e. As growth

ear capital i

groundwat
e City has a
rity) and th
f courses. 

2014. The a
e agreement
sently the C

lub is dated
was entered
0.3 MGD of 
mately 0.18

se water. Th
l small City

MGD of reu
ment to sup
o connect to
h in the Cit

improvemen

ter demand
agreements 
he Rolling 

amount of r
t which req

City is avera

d April 11, 1
d into on Oct
reuse to the

854 MGD. 

he balance o
y owned site

use and h
pply it wit
 the City’s r
ty occurs, s

nts plan. 

d by 
with 
Hills 

reuse 
uires 
aging 

1994; 
tober 
e golf 

of the 
es. 

has a 
th an 
reuse 
so too 



 
 

V. 

The SW
resource
in essenc
increase 

As stated

The oppo
The RW
MGD) of
water co
amount 
potable w

The City
also em
developm

 P
 Ir

a

 A
 R

 

Water Co
 

WFWMD’s R
es more effic
ce a water s
the amoun

d in the RW

“Wat

ortunity for
WSP anticipa

f savings co
onservation 

of potable 
water dema

y’s Compreh
mphasize co
ment and re

Promote com
rrigation pla
nd contain w

o Rain 
o Check
o A min
o A m

buildi
o No di
o Water
o Micro
o Turf 

irriga
o Recla

lieu o
o High 

soils 
surviv

All irrigation
Reuse water 

onservation 

RWSP place
ciently, futu
source for th
t of water s

WSP: 

ter conserva
the prima

r future sav
ates that 2
oming from
strategies 
water used

ands as well

hensive Pla
onservation

edevelopmen

mpact develo
aced in new
water wise 
sensors for 
k values to p
nimum sepa
inimum se
ings/vertica
rect spray o
r conveyanc

o-irrigation r
grass, annu

ation zones f
imed water
f potable wa
water use z
and requir

ve) are limit
n practices s

must be ut

ed an emph
ure demand
he City.  Pr
avings thro

ation in the 
ary source o

vings throug
0.4 MGD c

m public sup
within the 
d for lands
 as assist th

an, Land De
n.  These 
nt to contain

opment that
w developme

irrigation sy
automatic s
prevent low
aration of 4”
eparation 

al structures
on to walkw
ce systems w
required for
uals flower
from tree, sh
r, surface wa
ater if avail
zones (plant
re supplem
ted to 33% o
shall be in a
ilized for irr

hasis on wa
d can be red
rograms and
ugh conserv

public supp
of water sav

gh conserva
ould be sav
ppliers like 
City, espec
cape irrigat

he District i

evelopment 
regulation

n water con

t utilizes res
ent is requir
ystems whi
shutoff; 

w head drain
” between di
of 12” be

s; 
ways and pav
with a veloc
r tree, shrub
s, and vege
hrub, and g
ater, or stor
lable; 
ts and turf 

mental wate
of the total l
accordance w
rigation if a

ater conser
duced and of
d facility up
vation. 

ply sector wi
vings in the 

ation within
ved by 203

the City o
cially progra
tion, will c

in reaching 

Regulation
ns and sta
nservation fe

sources effic
red to be Flo
ich shall uti

nage; 
istribution e
etween dis

vement; 
city of five (5
b, and groun
etable gard

groundcover
rmwater sh

types which
er in addit
landscaped 
with the SW
available 

rvation. By 
ffset. Water

pgrades with

ill continue 
district.” 

n the Distri
0 with the 

of Wildwood
ams aimed 
continue to 
their projec

ns, and Cod
andards re
eatures incl

ciently; 
orida Friend
ilize: 

equipment 
tribution e

5) feet per s
ndcover bed

dens are to 
r areas; 
hall be used 

h are associ
tion to nat

area 
WFWMD’s re

utilizing w
r conservati
hin the City

to be 

ct is signifi
majority (1

d. Implemen
at reducing
curb the C

ctions. 

de of Ordina
equire all 
uding: 

dly Landsca

and paveme
equipment 

second or les
ds; 

be on sepa

for irrigati

iated with m
ural rainfa

egulations

water 
ion is 
y will 

icant. 
18.91 
nting 
g the 
City’s 

ances 
new 

aping 

ent 
and 

ss 

arate 

on in 

moist 
all to 



 
 

 P
in

 P

Utilizing
increase 
impleme
recogniz
efforts b
impleme
advance 

 

 

Promotion of
n all Planne

Promotion of

g technology
its usage o

ent a water
e a leak on 

by reducing 
ented over 

sooner shou

f low flow f
ed Developm
f  water star

y can also 
of water con
r meter rep
the custome
the amoun
the mediu

uld funding

 

facets, show
ments) 
r appliances

have a pos
nservation a
placement 
er’s side of t
nt of water 

um term (5
g become ava

wer heads, a

s (required i

sitive impac
as a water s
program w
the meter. T
lost throug

5-10 year t
ailable. 

and toilets w

in all Plann

ct on water
source. In th

with meters 
This technol
gh leaks. T
timeframe), 

within stru

ned Develop

r usage an
he future, t

having th
logy will bo

This program
but that 

uctures (requ

pments) 

nd help the 
the City pla
he technolog
oost conserv
m will likel
timeframe 

uired 

City 
ans to 
gy to 
ation 
ly be 
may 



 
 

VI. M

The City
availabil
coordina
recomme
requirem

Public F

 D
th

 C
d
su

 C
W

 C
th
im

 

 
Modification

 

y’s 2035 Com
lity of wa

ation with 
endations a

ments 

acilities Ele

Delete Policy
he SWFWM

Create Polic
distribution 
sufficient fun
Create new 
Work Plan: 

o Policy
Year 
2012. 
issues
serve 
City 
South
suppl
five y
Capit
Facili

o Policy
Work

o Policy
expan
and d

o Policy
Mana
Distri

Create Objec
the use of 
mplement th

s to the Com

mprehensiv
ater supply

the Southw
are made 

ement: 

y 1.3.9 conc
MD updating
cy 1.3.12 “
facilities, t

nds to provi
policies to 

y 1.3.13 The
Water Sup
The Work 

s that pert
existing an

shall revie
hwest Florid
y plan at le

years of the
tal Improvem
ities Elemen
y 1.3.14 The
 Plan on an
y 1.3.15 Th
nsion and u
distribute po
y 1.3.16 Th
agement Dis
ict’s Region
ctive 1.11 “T

reuse wat
he objective

mprehensiv

ve Plan cont
y and faci
west Florid
to ensure 

cerning upd
g the RWSP
“The City s
take steps t
ide water to 
adopt and 

e City here
pply Faciliti
Plan shall c
ain to wate
nd future d

ew and upd
da Water M
east every f
e Work Plan
ments Plan
nt and the C
e City shall

n annual bas
e Work Pla

upgrade of f
otable water
he City sha
strict to as
al Water Su
The City wi
ter and co
e: 

e Plan  

tains goals, 
ilities, wat
da Water M
the Compr

ating the P
P. 
shall main
to reduce d

o meet existi
implement

eby adopts b
ies Work P
cover a 10 y
er supply f
developmen
date the W
anagement 
five years. 
n shall be i
 update to e

Capital Imp
l assess the
sis. 
an shall be 
facilities use
r to meet fu
ll coordinat
sure the co

upply Plan.
ill strive to 
onservation 

objectives 
ter conserv
Managemen
rehensive P

Public Facili

ntain adequ
demand for 
ting and futu
t the 10-Yea

by reference
Plan (Work 
year plannin
facilities an

nt within th
Work Plan 

District’s u
Any change
included in
ensure cons
rovements 

e effectivene

used to pr
ed to withd

uture needs.
te with the
onsistency o

offset potab
programs.

and policies
vation, wat
nt District.
Plan meets

ities Elemen

uate water 
potable wa

ure needs.” 
ar Water S

e the City o
Plan) date

ng period an
nd requirem
he City’s se
within 18 

update to th
es to occur 

n the annua
sistency bet
Element. 
ess and per

rioritize and
draw, transm
 

e Southwest
of the Work

ble water de
.” Create n

s concerning
ter reuse, 
. The follo
s the statu

nt as a resu

treatment
ater, and se

Supply Faci

of Wildwood
d Decembe
nd shall add

ments neede
ervice area.

months of
he regional w

within the 
al update to
tween the P

rformance o

d coordinate
mit, treat, s

t Florida W
k Plan with

demands thr
new policie

g the 
and 

owing 
utory 

ult of 

t and 
ecure 

ilities 

d 10-
er 15, 
dress 
ed to 
. The 
f the 
water 
 first 
o the 

Public 

of the 

e the 
store, 

Water 
h the 

rough 
es to 



 
 

 
Conserva

 C
co

 
Intergov

 C
W
F

Capital I

 C
W
Im
W

 C
th
T
th

 M
p
 

 

 

 

o Policy
netwo
for irr

o Policy
conne

o Policy
suppl
surfac

o Policy
Mana
regula
used. 

ation Eleme
Create new P
onserve wat

vernmental 
Create new 
Water Mana
Facilities Wo

Improvemen

Create new P
Work Plan 
Improvemen
Work Plan.” 
Create new 
the Work Pl
This schedul
the capital p
Modify the 5

rojects iden

y 1.11.1 Th
ork to serve
rigation. 
y 1.11.2 The
ect to the Ci
y 1.11.3 In
ied from a v
ce water wh
y 1.11.4 T
agement Di
ations and p

ent: 
Policy 1.4.5
ter.” 

Coordinatio
Policy 1.2.

agement Dis
ork Plan wit

nts Element

Policy 1.1.6
(Work Plan

nts to includ
”

Policy 1.1.7
lan shall be
le shall be u

projects with
5-Year Sche
ntified in the

 

he City sha
e additional 

e City shall
ity’s reuse w
n addition 
variety of a
here permitt
The City 
istrict’s wa
programs de

5 “The City 

on Element:
11 “The Ci

istrict to ass
ith the Distr

t: 

6 “The City 
n) annually
de related w

7 “Capital I
e included i
updated ann
h the capital
edule of Cap
e Work Plan

all expand 
large users

l require ne
water system

to groundw
lternative s
ted. 
shall supp
ter reuse p
esigned to i

shall contin

 
City shall co
sure the con
rict’s Region

shall review
y together w

work projects

Improvemen
in the 5-Yea
nually, as ne

al projects id
pital Impro
n. 

the reuse 
s and contin

ew developm
m when ava
water, futu

sources, incl

port the S
projects an
increase the

nue to inves

oordinate w
nsistency of
nal Water Su

w the 10-Ye
with the 5
s identified 

nts identifie
ar Schedule

necessary, to
dentified in t
ovements to

water syst
nue to reduc

ment and re
ailable. 
ure water 
luding recla

Southwest 
nd impleme
e volume of 

stigate strat

with the Sou
f the 10-Yea

Supply Plan.

Year Water S
5-Year Sche

d in the first 

ied in the fi
e of Capital
o maintain c
the Work Pl
o include th

tem distribu
ce potable w

edevelopme

needs shal
aimed water

Florida W
entation of 
reclaimed w

ategies to fur

outhwest Flo
ar Water Su
.” 

Supply Faci
edule of Ca
t five years o

irst five yea
l Improvem
consistency 

Plan.” 
he potable w

ution 
water 

ent to 

ll be 
r and 

Water 
new 

water 

urther 

lorida 
upply 

ilities 
apital 
of the 

ars of 
ments. 
y with 

water 



 
 

VII. C

 

The 10-Y
163.3177
Supply P
over the 

The follo

 T
w

 T
M

 T
en

 T
 T

a
 T

 

 

Conclusion 

Year Water 
7(6)(c) and 
Plan. The W
next ten ye

owing are th

The City pu
water per ye
The system’
Monthly dail
The construc
nsure adequ

o The f
to pro
growt

o Total 
$18,2

The City sho
The City’s re

nd 
The Compreh

Supply Fac
the Southw

Work Plan d
ears.  

he key findin

umps, treats
ar, averagin
s Annual A
ly average i
ction of the 
uate water s
first phase w
ovide 4.5 M
th over the s

unfunded
58,000.  

ould explore
egulations 

hensive Pla

cilities Work
west Florid
demonstrat

ngs and rec

s, and distr
ng approxim
Average Da
s 7.65 MGD
Champagne
supply over
would inclu

MGD which 
span of the 
d infrastru

 and encour
and standa

an should be

k Plan has b
a Water M
es how the 

ommendati

ributes app
mately 2.14 
aily (AAD) 
D; 
e Farm WT
 the life of t

ude the cons
should be 

Work Plan.
ucture im

rage the exp
ards contain

e amended t

been drafte
Management

 City inten

ions of the W

proximately 
MGD per d
capacity is

TP and distr
the Work Pl
struction of
able to acc

.   
mprovements

pansion of it
n strong wa

to include th

ed in accord
t District’s 

nds to meet 

Work Plan: 

782.652 m
ay; 

s 4.98 MGD

ribution syst
lan; 
f the necess
commodate 

s (FY 20

ts reuse sys
ater conserv

he recomme

dance with F
Regional W
water dem

million gallo

D and the 

tem is need

sary compon
the anticip

015/2016) 

stem; 
vation pract

endations. 

F.S. § 
Water 
mands 

ns of 

Peak 

ded to 

nents 
pated 

total 

tices; 



S
R

   93

S
R

   
35

SR   4
4

SR   91

S
R

  4
7

1

SR   48

SR  500

S
R

  4
7

5

S
R

   
35

S
R

   
35

CR  466

CR   48

CR  470

CR   44A

C
R

  4
75

CR  476

CR  468

CR  466A

C
R

  2
09

CR  462

CR  472

C
R

  469C
R

  4
78

CR  104

C
R

  1
01

CR  202

CR  476A

CR  462

C
R

  4
75

CR   48

CR   
48

C
R

  4
70

C
R

  475

C
R

  4
62

C
R

  470

CR  476

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

December  2012 Map 1

Water Service Area Boundary
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 5,700 11,400

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\W
ate

rse
rvi

ce
bo

un
da

ry.
mx

d -
 12

/11
/20

12
 1:

20
:51

 P
M 

- to
ne

al

Legend
Water Service Area Boundary

Wildwood

Parcels



!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(

37PS

]]

Fairways WTP

Huey Street
WTP

Okahumpka Service Plaza
WTP

CR 501 WTP

West Well
WTP

CR 214 WTP

CR  466

CR   44A

CR  468

C
R

  2
09

CR  475

CR  462

CR  466A

CR  472

CR  104

C
R

  1
01

C
R

  470

CR  202

C
R

  4
62

C
R

  475

CR  462

S
R

   93

SR   44

SR   91

S
R

   
35

S
R

   35

S
R

   
35

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

December  2012 Map 2

Existing Facilities
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 3,250 6,500

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\E
xis

tin
g F

ac
ilit

ies
.m

xd
 - 1

2/1
1/2

01
2 1

:24
:42

 P
M 

- to
ne

al

Legend
]] Water Tower

37PS Repump Station

!( Existing Wells

Water Main
Diameter

16" Water Main

12" Water Main

10" Water Main

8" Water Main

8" Water Main (Dry)

6" Water Main

4" Water Main

2" Water Main

City of Wildwood



!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(

!(!(

!( !(

!(

!(!(

!(
!(

!(

37PS

]]

Future Champagne
 Farms WTP

^

Proposed connection 
option 1

Proposed connection 
option 2

West Well WTP
Fairways WTP

Huey Street WTP

Okahumpka WTP

CR 501 WTP

CR 214 WTP

CR  466

CR   44A

CR  470

CR  468

C
R

  2
09

C
R

  4
75

CR  462

CR  466A

CR  472

C
R

  1
01

C
R

  4
62

C
R

  475

C
R

  470

CR  462

S
R

   93

SR   44

SR   91

S
R

   
35

S
R

   35

S
R

   
35

WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

December 2012 Map 3

Future Facilities
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.cityofwildwood.com

I
0 3,250 6,500

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS

\M
ap

s\F
utu

re 
Fa

cil
itie

s.m
xd

 - 1
2/1

1/2
01

2 1
:26

:12
 P

M 
- to

ne
al

Legend
WTPs

Proposed Water Main
24" Water Main

Water Main
Diameter

16" Water Main

12" Water Main

10" Water Main

8" Water Main

8" Water Main (Dry)

6" Water Main

4" Water Main

2" Water Main

37PS Repump Station

]] Water Tower

!( Existing Wells

City of Wildwood



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ordinance O2013-01 

 
“Exhibit B” 

 
Text Amendments to the Public Facilities, Conservation 

Intergovernmental Coordination, and Capital Improvements Elements 
of the City of Wildwood Comprehensive Plan 

 



 
 

77

Chapter 4 
 

PUBLIC FACILITIES ELEMENT 
 

Goals, Objectives and Policies 
 

Any and All Florida Statutes, Florida Administrative Code Regulation or Other 
Regulations Referenced in this Element Shall he Enforced as it Existed on the Date 
of Adoption or Amendment of this Element and are to Include any Amendments to 
the Referenced Regulation, Statute or Code Adopted After the Date of Adoption or 
Amendment of this Element. 

GOAL 1 Needed public facilities shall be provided in a manner which protects 
investments in existing facilities and promotes orderly, compact urban growth. 

Objective 1.1  The City shall enforce procedures to ensure that adequate public facility 
capacity is available or will be available when needed to serve the development. 

Policy 1.1.1  The following level of service standards are hereby adopted and shall be 
used as the basis for determining the availability of facility capacity and the demand 
generated by a development: 

Sanitary Sewer  250 gallons per day per ERC 
Potable Water  300 gallons per day per ERC 
Solid Waste 2.04 lbs/capita/day (in accordance with the 

level of service established by the County – 
Source: Sumter Utilities Element Policy 
4.3.1.2  

Drainage/Stormwater Facilities shall be designed to accommodate the 25-
year, 24-hour design storm to meet the water quality and quantity 
standards that follow: 

a. Water Quantity     Peak post-development runoff shall not exceed 
peak pre-development runoff rates. 

b. Water Quality Treatment of stormwater runoff shall be 
required for all development, redevelopment and, when expansion 
occurs, existing developed areas. The stormwater treatment system 
or systems can be project specific, serve sub-areas within the City 
or be a system to serve the entire City. Regardless of the area 
served and in accordance with Chapter 62-25, F.A.C., the 
stormwater treatment systems must provide a level of treatment for 
the runoff from the first one (1) inch of rainfall for projects in 
drainage basins of 100 acres or more, or as an option for projects 
with drainage basins less than 100 acres, the first on-half (1/2) inch 
of runoff in order to meet receiving water quality standards of 
Chapter 62¬302, Section 62-302,500, F.A.C. Stormwater 



 
 

78

discharge facilities shall be designed so as to not lower receiving 
water quality or degrade the receiving water body below the 
minimum conditions necessary to assure the suitability of water for 
the designated use of its classification as established in Chapter 62-
302, F.A.C. It is intended that all standards in these citations are to 
apply to all development and redevelopment and that any 
exemptions or exceptions in these citations including project size 
thresholds, are not applicable. 

Infill residential development within improved residential areas or 
subdivisions existing prior to the adoption of this comprehensive 
plan, must ensure that its post-development stormwater runoff will 
not contribute pollutants which will cause the runoff from the 
entire improved area or subdivision to degrade receiving water 
bodies and their water quality as stated above. 

In order to ensure that level of service standards are maintained, 
methodologies for determining available capacity and demand 
shall incorporate appropriate peak demand coefficients for each 
facility and for the type of development proposed. 

Policy 1.1.2 All improvements for replacement, expansion, or increase in capacity of 
facilities shall be compatible with the level of service standard for the facilities.  

Policy 1.1.3 The City shall develop procedures to update facility demand and capacity 
information as development orders are issued. 

Policy 1.1.4 The City shall prepare annual summaries of capacity and demand 
information for each facility. 

Policy 1.1.5 The City shall enforce the public works manual for the design of water 
systems as well as other public systems; consideration of the standards provided in the 
Sumter County Water Supply Master Plan prepared by the WRWSA shall be made for 
inclusion in the adopted manual.  Further consideration of the SWFWMD rules provided 
in Florida Statutes 120 and 373 and Florida Administrative Code 40D and 4D will also be 
given during preparation of updates to the public works manual for design of water 
systems. 

OBJECTIVE 1.2 The City will maintain a five-year schedule of capital 
improvement needs for public facilities, to be reviewed and updated annually in 
conformance with the Capital Improvements Element. 

Policy 1.2.1 Proposed capital improvement projects will be evaluated and ranked 
according to the following priority level guidelines. 



 
 

79

Level 1  Whether the project is needed to protect public 
health and safety, to fulfill the City's legal 
commitment to provide facilities and services, or 
to preserve or achieve full use of existing 
facilities. 

Level 2  Whether the project increases efficiency of use 
of existing facilities, prevents or reduces future 
improvements costs, provides service to developed 
areas lacking service or promotes infill 
development. 

Level 3 Whether the project represents a logical extension 
of facilities and services within a designated 
service area. 

OBJECTIVE 1.3 The City of Wildwood shall provide water services to meet 
the existing and projected demands identified in this element, the Comprehensive 
Plan, and the Capital Improvements Element. 

Policy 1.3.1 All identified potable water improvement projects will be scheduled 
according to rank during the annual budget process. 

Policy 1.3.2 The City shall determine at least annually whether new water wells are 
needed and/or whether existing wells need to be abandoned and capped. Funds as 
needed will be scheduled through the annual budget process. 

Policy 1.3.3 The City shall monitor and repair and/or replace water distribution lines 
as needed. Funds for repair and/or replacement of water distribution lines will be 
scheduled as part of the annual budget process. 

Policy 1.3.4 Projects to correct existing deficiencies shall be given priority in the 
formulation and implementation of City programs. 

Policy 1.3.5 No permits shall be issued for new development which would result 
in an increase in demand on deficient facilities prior to completion of improvements 
needed to bring the facility up to standard. 

Policy 1.3.6 Extension of water lines for new development shall be made consistent 
with the Future Land Use Element and scheduled during the annual budget process. 

Policy 1.3.7 The City shall extend water lines to existing subdivisions when it is 
economically feasible. However, the City will extend water lines, when 
requested, if the subdivision is owned by an individual or group of individuals and 
the owner(s) are willing to pay for costs of expansion. 



 
 

80

Policy 1.3.8 The City shall locate new wellfields so as to protect the quality of ground 
and surface water. 

Policy 1.3.9     This element shall be reviewed and revised within 18 months as 
required by s. 373.0361(7), Florida Statue (F.S.) and s.163.3177(6)(c), F.S. after the 
Southwest Florida Water Management District approves an updated regional water 
supply plan.  The review and revisions should include: 

1. Identification and incorporation of the alternative supply project(s) selected by 
the City from the projects identified in the updated regional water supply plan, or an 
alternative project proposed by the City. 
2. Identification of traditional and alternative water supply projects, bulk sales 
agreements, and the conservation and reuse programs necessary to meet current and 
future water use demands within the City’s service area. 
3. An updated water supply facilities work plan for at least a 10-year planning 
period for constructing the public, private, and regional water supply facilities 
identified in the element as necessary to serve existing and new development. 

Policy 1.3.109 The City shall ensure that adequate water supplies and facilities are 
available to serve new development no later than the date on which the City anticipates 
issuing a certificate or occupancy and consult with the applicable water supplier prior 
to approving a building permit, to determine whether adequate water supplies will be 
available to serve the development by the anticipated issuance date of the certificate of 
occupancy per 163.3180(2)(a), F.S. 

Policy 1.3.1110 The City shall continue to coordinate with SWFWMD, Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection, and other public and private utilities to 
investigate, develop and implement use of stormwater and water reuse as alternatives to 
the use of groundwater for irrigation purposes. 

Policy 1.3.1211 In coordination with the Conservation Element, continue to 
implement conservation initiatives through development of surface water and storm water 
irrigation sources for either direct irrigation and or to serve as reclaimed water 
augmentation sources associated with the public reclaimed water system.  

Policy 1.3.12 The City shall maintain adequate water treatment and distribution 
facilities, take steps to reduce demand for potable water, and secure sufficient funds to 
provide water to meet existing and future needs. 

Policy 1.3.13 The City hereby adopts by reference the City of Wildwood 10-Year Water 
Supply Facilities Work Plan (Work Plan) dated December 15, 2012. The Work Plan shall 
cover a 10 year planning period and shall address issues that pertain to water supply 
facilities and requirements needed to serve existing and future development within the 
City’s service area. The City shall review and update the Work Plan within 18 months of 
the Southwest Florida Water Management District’s update to the regional water supply 
plan. Any changes to occur within the first five years of the Work Plan shall be included 



 
 

81

in the annual update to the Capital Improvements Plan update to ensure consistency 
between the Public Facilities Element and the Capital Improvements Element. 
 
Policy 1.3.14 The City shall assess the effectiveness and performance of the Work Plan 
on an annual basis. 
 
Policy 1.3.15 The Work Plan shall be used to prioritize and coordinate the expansion and 
upgrade of facilities used to withdraw, transmit, treat, store, and distribute potable water 
to meet future needs. 
 
Policy 1.3.16 The City shall coordinate with the Southwest Florida Water Management 
District to assure the consistency of the Work Plan with the District’s Regional Water 
Supply Plan. 

OBJECTIVE 1.4 The City shall implement an education program for the public on 
the conservation of water. 

Policy 1.4.1 The City will coordinate with the SWFWMD in order to educate home 
owners and businesses on water saving devices and methods. 

Policy 1.4.2    The City shall develop a City government website to assist with public 
education by 2013 as agreed per the Conservation Plan submitted to the SWFWMD 
in 2007 as part of the Water Use Permitting process. 

OBJECTIVE 1.5  The City of Wildwood shall provide sanitary sewer services 
to meet existing and projected demands identified in this element, the Comprehensive 
Plan, and the Capital Improvements Element. 

Policy 1.5.1 All identified sanitary sewer improvement projects shall be scheduled 
during the annual budget process. 

Policy 1.5.2  The City shall monitor and repair and/or replace sewer distribution 
lines as needed. Funds for repair and/or replacement of sewer distribution lines will be 
scheduled as part of the annual update of the Capital Improvements Element. 

Policy 1.5.3 Projects to correct existing deficiencies shall be given priority in the 
formulation and implementation or City programs. 

Policy 1.5.4 No permits shall be issued for new development which would result 
in an increase in demand on deficient facilities prior to completion of improvements 
needed to bring the facility up to standard.  

Policy 1.5.5 Extension of sewer lines for new development shall be made consistent with 
the Future Land Use Element and scheduled for during the annual budget process. 



 
 

82

OBJECTIVE 1.6 The City of Wildwood shall coordinate with the County in 
order to meet the existing and projected solid waste demand needs identified in this 
element, the Comprehensive Plan, and the Capital Improvements Element. 

Policy 1.6.1 The City shall coordinate with Sumter County on the extension of, or 
the increase in capacity of solid waste facilities to meet future needs based on the 
projected future demand on County facilities. 

Policy 1.6.2 Projects to correct existing deficiencies shall be given priority in the 
formulation and implementation of City programs. 

Policy 1.6.3 The City of Wildwood shall coordinate with the County in 
monitoring existing wells in the vicinity of abandoned landfill sites in order to prevent 
potential groundwater contamination from the abandoned landfills. 

OBJECTIVE 1.7 Adequate stormwater drainage will be provided to afford 
reasonable protection from flooding and to prevent degradation of the quality of 
receiving waters. 

Policy 1.7.1 The City shall enforce Land Development Regulations to provide for 
protection of natural drainage features and ensure that future development utilizes 
stormwater best management practices. 

Policy 1.7.2 The City shall utilize the following policies in planning for the 
drainage system. These policies shall also become a part of the development 
regulations of the City: 
a. New developments are required to manage runoff so that post-development runoff 
rates, volumes, and pollutant loads do not exceed pre-development conditions. 
b. Stormwater engineering, design and construction standards for on-site systems 
are to be in conformance with Chapter 40D-4 and 40D-40, F.A.C. 
c. Erosion and sediment controls are to be used during development. 
d. Developer/applicant will obtain relevant stormwater management permits from 
SWFWMD prior to receiving final approval from the City of Wildwood. 
e. Periodic inspection and maintenance of on-site systems shall be required of the 
entity that has the legal responsibility under the MSSW, ERP, and stormwater 
management permits issued by the SWFWMD and or the owner(s) of the property 
upon which said system resides. 

Policy 1.7.3 The natural functions of the floodplain areas shall be protected by 
ensuring no net loss of flood storage capacity. 

OBJECTIVE 1.8 The City shall adopt a comprehensive Stormwater Management 
Plan by the year 2014. 

Policy 1.8.1 The City shall acquire the necessary analysis and data to identify all 
existing public and private drainage facilities. At a minimum the data shall include: 



 
 

83

a. The entity having operational responsibility 
b. The geographic service area 
c. Design capacity 
d. Existing demand 
e. Existing level of service 
f. Evaluation of general performance 

Policy 1.8.2 The Stormwater Management Plan shall establish criteria for the 
following: 
a. Elimination of identified problems 
b. Establishment of City wide requirements specific for each watershed area 
c. Guidelines for existing and proposed development to implement the overall plan 
d. Responsible entity for construction of necessary improvements to maintain the 
adopted level of service. 
e. Timetables for improvement completion in relation to development 
approval. 

OBJECTIVE 1.9 The functions of natural groundwater aquifer recharge areas within 
the City will be protected and maintained. 

Policy 1.9.1 The City shall map areas within the City having high aquifer recharge 
potential, based on data from SWFWMD. 

Policy 1.9.2 The City shall protect areas identified as having high recharge potential 
through implementation of the following standards and guidelines: 
a. Maximum impervious surface restrictions shall be consistent with the 
protection of functional values; 
b. Land alterations in conjunction with development shall not include the removal 
of high permeability soils and/or replacement with lower permeability soils; 
c. To the maximum extent feasible, open space/native vegetation shall be 
preserved; 
d. Commercial or industrial uses which store or handle hazardous 
materials/wastes shall be restricted; 
e. Stormwater detention systems shall be designed to provide maximum 
aquifer recharge; and 
f. New development and redevelopment shall not reduce aquifer recharge 
quality or quantity (volumes and rates) and subsurface storage and flows should simulate 
predevelopment conditions. 

OBJECTIVE 1.10 The City shall maintain the quality and quantity of the City’s 
potable water system supply. 

Policy 1.10.1 The City shall locate and operate the potable water system raw water 
supply withdrawals/sources in such a manner as to minimize the potential of adverse 
impacts to legal users as identified by the SWFWMD and adverse environmental 
impacts to water resources.  



 
 

84

Policy 1.10.2 The City shall protect existing and future potable water wellfields 
through implementation of the following standards and guidelines: 

a.   Existing and future public water supply wells (both publicly and privately 
owned) shall be clearly depicted on the FLUM map or map series; 

b.  To protect public water supplies from possible contamination, the City shall 
establish wellhead protection zones as follows: 

1. In the area defined by a circle around the wellhead with a radius of 
500', all proposed development around existing wells shall be connected to a 
central water and sanitary sewer system. 
2. All future wells shall have a no development zone consistent of a 500' 
radius from the wellhead. 
3. Existing development within 500' of a public water wellhead, not 
currently connected to central water and sewer facilities, shall be required to 
connect within one year after being notified that such facilities are available; 
and, 

4. In the additional area defined by a secondary circle around the wellhead 
with a radius of 100', per FDEP requirements in Florida Administration Code 
Chapter 62-555.312, the following development activities are prohibited: 

 landfills; 
 facilities for bulk storage, handling or processing of materials on 

the Florida Substance List with the exception of sodium 
hypochlorite solution; 

 activities that require the storage, use or transportation of 
restricted substances, agricultural chemicals, petroleum products, 
hazardous toxic waste, medical waste, etc.; 

 feedlots or other commercial animal 
facilities; 

 wastewater treatment plants, percolation ponds and similar 
facilities; 

 junk, salvage or scrap yards; 
 industrial waste land application areas; 
 graveyards; 
 landscape nurseries; 
 oil and gas production wells; 
 drainage or injection wells; 
 train / airport fueling, maintenance, or 

storage yards; 
 mines (active or abandoned); and 
 excavation of waterways or drainage facilities which intersect the 

water table. 



 
 

85

5. In the additional area defined by a tertiary circle around the wellhead 
with a radius of 50’, per FDEP requirements as noted in Florida Administrative 
Code (F.A.C.) Chapter 62-555.312, the following development activities are 
prohibited: 

 above ground storage tanks that are not regulated under Chapter 
62-761, F.A.C but are used for bulk storage of a liquid pollutant 
or hazardous substance (as defined in Chapter 62-671, F.A.C.) 
other than sodium hypochlorite solution; fertilizer, herbicide, or 
pesticide application areas that are not under the ownership or 
control of the supplier of water at agricultural sites, golf courses, 
nurseries, and parks; 

 railroad tracks; 
 stormwater detention or retention basins; 

and  
 surface water. 

 
Policy 1.10.3 Wellhead protection areas will be regulated during rezonings and special 
exceptions to exclude activities which may contaminate the well sites. The following uses 
are prohibited in addition to those listed in Policy 1.10.2 unless adequate measures are 
implemented to insure wellhead protection to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, FDEP, 
SWFWMD and appropriate City officials.  Note that an exception to F.A.C. Chapter 62-
555.312 would need to be applied for and approved in order for FDEP and/or SWFWMD 
to allow. 

 
a. Sanitary landfills; 
b. Industrial landfills or other surface impoundments; 
c. Wastewater treatment facilities not required to install FDER contaminant monitoring 
wells, except for single-family residential on site wastewater disposal facilities. However, 
no septic systems shall be located within 200 feet of any public well; 
d. Facilities that produce, use or store hazardous materials at or above established 
threshold amounts listed in Title Ill of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization 
Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C. s. 11001, et. seq. (SARA) and the Florida Hazardous Materials 
Emergency Response and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1988, Chap. 252, Part II, 
F.S.; 
e. Junkyards or salvage operations; 
f. Mines; 
g. Airport/refueling facilities; 
h. Transportation facilities including railroads, arterial and collector roads, and pipelines 
that may be used to transport pollutants or contaminants; and 
i. Excavation of waterways or drainage facilities that intersect the water table. 
Stormwater management systems constructed under SWFWMD permits and not 
discharging contaminants are exempt. 
 



 
 

86

Policy 1.10.4 To ensure adequate future potable water supplies are available the City 
shall establish via ordinance water conservation practices which are consistent with the 
City’s Conservation Element Policies. 

Policy 1.10.5 Wellhead protection areas are regulated per FDEP requirements, F.A.C. 
Chapter 62-555.312, such that for wells connected to a community water system on or 
after August 28, 2003, continuing protection of the well from the sanitary hazards 
described in Policies 1.10.2 and 1.10.3 shall be provided during the entire useful life of 
the well through one of the following means: 

a. Ownership by the City/water supplier of all land 
within 100 feet of the well; 

b. Control by the City/water supplier of all land within 100 feet of the well via 
easements, lease agreements, or deed restrictions that appropriately limit use of the land; 
c. Wellhead protection, zoning, or other land use regulations that appropriately limit 
use of all land within 100 feet of the well; 
d. New wells shall be located on their sites in such a manner that the wells are in 
an area free from, or least subject to, inundation with surface drainage and flood water; 
and  
e. To the extent practicable, new wells shall be located on their sites in such a 
manner that the wells are “upstream” from on-site or off-site sanitary hazards when 
considering the direction of ground water movement. 

 
OBJECTIVE 1.11 The City will strive to offset potable water demands through the use 
of reuse water and conservation programs.  
 
Policy 1.11.1 The City shall expand the reuse water system distribution network to serve 
additional large users and continue to reduce potable water for irrigation. 
 
Policy 1.11.2 The City shall require new development and redevelopment to connect to 
the City’s reuse water system when available. 
 
Policy 1.11.3 In addition to groundwater, future water needs shall be supplied from a 
variety of alternative sources, including reclaimed water and surface water where 
permitted. 
 
Policy 1.11.4 The City shall support the Southwest Florida Water Management District’s 
water reuse projects and implementation of new regulations and programs designed to 
increase the volume of reclaimed water used. 



 
 

87

Chapter 5 
 

CONSERVATION ELEMENT 
 

Goals, Objectives and Policies 
 

Any and All Florida Statutes, Florida Administrative Code Regulation or Other 
Regulations Referenced is this Element Shall be Enforced as it Existed on the Date 
of Adoption or Amendment of this Element and are to Include any Amendments to 
tie Referenced Regulation, Statute or Code Adopted After the Date of Adoption or 
Amendment or this Element. 
 
GOAL 1 Conserve, protect and manage the natural resources of the City of 
Wildwood to ensure that resources are used efficiently to maintain the highest 
environmental quality practicable while respecting individual property rights. 

 
 

AIR QUALITY 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.1 The City shall meet or exceed the Air Quality Standards 
established by the FDEP. 

 
Policy 1.1.1 The City shall continue to plan for transportation alternatives to gasoline-
powered automobiles by planning efficient pedestrian and bicycle systems and by 
evaluating future feasibility for multi-modal systems, including bus and passenger rail 
transit, and by adapting streets, and parking structures to facilitate the use of alternatively 
powered vehicles such as electric and hybrid cars. 

 
Policy 1.1.2 The City shall continue to enforce the prohibition on open burning of trash 
and debris. 

 
Policy 1.1.3 The City shall make an effort to promote public awareness about mass 
transit, car-pooling, bikeways, park-n-ride lots, and other alternative transportation modes 
as a means to reduce automobile emission pollution. 

 
Policy 1.1.4 Construction or clearing activities that expose, destabilize, or otherwise 
alter soil shall be required to implement best management principles and practices for soil 
protection to reduce wind-related soil erosion and dust particles as air pollutant. 

 
Policy 1.1.5 The City shall maintain a tree protection ordinance to sustain natural 
vegetative filters for air pollution. 

 
Policy 1.1.6 The City shall participate in air quality public information programs and 
shall encourage alternative forms of transportation. 
 
 



 
 

88

SURFACE WATER 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.2 The City shall enforce Land Development Regulations to protect 
the flood storage capabilities of surface water bodies so as to minimize damage from 100-
year flood events. 
 
Policy 1.2.1 The City shall incorporate into its Floodplain Ordinance the provision that 
any impacting activity within the 100-year flood elevation must be mitigated by 
compensating storage on site as directed and approved by SWFWMD. 

 
Policy 1.2.2 The City shall individually meter all City withdrawals from surface 
waters. The meter readings from each withdrawal facility shall be reported to the 
SWFWMD on a monthly basis.  

 
Policy 1.2.3 Wetlands, lakes, and other surface waters may not be adversely impacted 
as a result of the ground water use authorized by the SWFWMD Water Use Permit issued 
to the City. 

 
Policy 1.2.4 The City shall mitigate any adverse impact to environmental features or 
offsite land uses as a result of the City’s water withdrawals. When adverse impacts occur 
or are imminent, the City shall avoid or mitigate the impacts by reducing the water 
withdrawals at appropriate locations. Adverse impacts include: 
 
a. Significant reduction in levels or flows in water bodies such as lakes, 
impoundments, wetlands, springs, streams or other watercourses; 
b. Sinkholes or subsidence caused by reduction in water levels; 
c. Substantial, ongoing damage to the habitat of 

endangered or threatened species. 
 

Policy 1.2.5 The City shall adopt design criteria for stormwater management practices 
that: 
 
a.  Minimize the leaching or discharge of nutrients and pollutants; and 
b.  Require stormwater to be treated at 1.5 times the standard for discharges directly 
to an Outstanding Florida Water (OFW).  
 
 

GROUND WATER 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.3 The City shall conserve, use best management techniques, and 
protect future and existing groundwater resources for potable water usage. 
 
Policy 1.3.1 The City, working in conjunction with the SWFWMD, shall cooperate to 
plug existing unused public supply wells within the City to avoid ground water 
contamination. 

 



 
 

89

Policy 1.3.2 The City shall meter its ground water withdrawals from its own facilities. 
The meter readings shall be reported to the SWFWMD.  
 
Policy 1.3.3 The City shall mitigate any adverse impact to existing legal uses as 
documented by the SWFWMD caused by withdrawals from City facilities. When adverse 
impacts occur or are imminent, the City will avoid or mitigate the impacts by reducing 
the withdrawals at appropriate locations. Adverse impacts include: 
 
a. A reduction in water levels which impairs the ability of the well to produce water; 
b. Significant reduction in levels or flows in water bodies such as lakes, 
impoundments, wetlands, springs, streams or other watercourses; or 
c. Significant inducement of natural or manmade contaminants into a water supply 
or into a usable portion of any impacted aquifer system. 
 
Policy 1.3.4 The City shall mitigate any adverse impact to environmental features or 
offsite land uses as a result of withdrawals from City facilities. When adverse impacts 
occur or are imminent, the City will avoid or mitigate the impacts by reducing the 
withdrawals at appropriate locations. Adverse impacts include: 
 
a. Significant reduction in levels or flows in water bodies such as lakes, 
impoundments, wetlands, springs, streams or other watercourses; 
b. Sinkholes or subsidence caused by reduction in water levels; 
c. Substantial, ongoing damage to the habitat of endangered or threatened species. 

 
Policy 1.3.5 As part of the required reasonable assurance that the City's current and 
future increased withdrawals will not result in adverse environmental impacts to the 
water resource, the City shall develop an Environmental Monitoring Plan.  The City shall 
coordinate with the SWFWMD in developing the Monitoring Plan and it shall identify 
specific wetland and water level monitoring sites and include details and frequency of 
required data collection. The data collected will serve as a basis for environmental 
evaluation of future withdrawal requests. The wetland(s) to be monitored shall be 
evaluated using SWFWMD's Wetland Assessment Procedure (WAP) with appropriately 
located piezometers and staff gauges in wetlands near the City's authorized wells. 
 
Policy 1.3.6 To avoid possible contamination, the City will require abandoned 
underground storage tanks and other potential pollution sources to be located prior to 
finalizing a development plan. New well fields should be permitted only after 
consideration of known or potential pollution sources in the area surrounding the 
proposed site and sufficient buffer is provided for the area of influence of the proposed 
well. 

 
Policy 1.3.7 Prior to development authorization, proposed potentially deleterious land 
uses shall demonstrate through accepted engineering practices that the quality and 
quantity of the ground water will not be adversely affected. 

 



 
 

90

Policy 1.3.8 The City shall protect existing and future potable water wellfields 
consistent with Policy 1.10.2 of the Public Facilities Element. 

 
Policy 1.3.9  The City shall develop standards and restrictions for activities and land 
uses within a Wellhead Protection Zone (WPZ) for domestic potable water wells, 
defined as a 500-foot radius from a public well.  Standards for existing activities within a 
WPZ may include increased water monitoring or increased safety features for petroleum 
storage tanks.  At a minimum, the City shall prohibit Industrial and intensive 
Commercial Future Land Use Map designations, as well as hazardous waste generators 
and storage sites, solid waste disposal sites, gas stations, septic tanks, and single-lined 
petroleum storage tanks within the 500-foot WPZ.  The City shall revise the WPZ should 
the potable water supply entities establish stricter protection standards. 

 
Policy 1.3.10  The City shall work with the State, as required by the Safe Drinking Water 
Act, to map WPZs and develop land use controls that will provide protection from 
contamination for these areas, and will maintain its existing Geographical Information 
Systems mapping database of the highest water recharge areas to aid developer and 
reviewers in determining the impacts of development on the natural recharge 
characteristics of the land.   

 
Policy 1.3.11 As part of the required reasonable assurance that the City's current and 
future increased ground water withdrawals will not result in adverse environmental 
impacts to water resource, the City shall develop an Environmental Monitoring Plan.  
The City shall coordinate with the SWFWMD in developing the Monitoring Plan and it 
shall identify specific wetland and water level monitoring sites and include details and 
frequency of required data collection. The data collected will serve as a basis for 
environmental evaluation of future withdrawal requests. The wetland(s) to be monitored 
shall be evaluated using SWFWMD's Wetland Assessment Procedure (WAP) with 
appropriately located piezometers and staff gauges in wetlands near the City's authorized 
wells. 

 
WATER CONSERVATION 

 
OBJECTIVE 1.4 The City shall comply with SWFWMD water conservation 
regulations. 
 
Policy 1.4.1 The City shall continue to cooperate with the SWFWMD to conduct water 
conservation programs. 

 
Policy 1.4.2 The City shall adopt a water conserving rate structure by 2009. Within six 
months of adoption, the City shall submit a report to the SWFWMD on the rate structure 
that includes but is not limited to a description of the structure, how each component is 
designed to promote water conservation among the City’s customers, and how it is 
expected to reduce the City's gross per capita water use. After the first report submitted, 
an update on the rate structure and a summary of its effectiveness shall be included in an 
Annual Report by April 1 of each year. 



 
 

91

 
Policy 1.4.3 By August 1, 2009, the City shall submit a report on water conservation 
plan progress including a description of the current conservation measures and progress 
towards achieving conservation of water per the conservation plan submitted to the 
SWFWMD as part of the Water Use Permitting effort. After the first report is submitted, 
an update on the conservation plan and a summary of its effectiveness shall be included 
in an Annual Report to be submitted to the SWFWMD by April 1 of each year. Updates 
shall address the following activities: 
 
a. Adoption of stricter landscape ordinance language which promotes standard City-
wide conservation practices and the use of “Florida Friendly” landscaping as 
recommended by the University of Florida and the SWFWMD. 
b. Adopt ordinance language requiring alternative irrigation via a dual piping system 
for all new development regardless of proximity to reclaimed system.   
c. Adoption of the 2004 Florida Building Code – Plumbing section and subsequent 
future amendments by reference. 
d. Adoption of Water Shortage Restrictions and Penalties and Enforcement 
Provisions in coordination with the SWFWMD Water Shortage Restrictions. 
e. Develop a City government website to assist with public education including 
water conservation. 
f. Continue a residential per capita of less than 150 gpdc (Coleman Prison 
population and flows excluded). 
g. Continue tracking water loss estimates associated with water main breaks, main 
flushing and fire flow events. 
h. Continue enforcing connection to public utilities: water, sewer, and reclaimed. 
i. Continue the development of Alternative Resources for irrigation. 
j. Continue to convert City properties to reclaimed irrigation from potable irrigation 
supplies. 
k. Continue participation in the Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority. 
l. In cooperation with the SWFWMD, assist in enforcing the current and future 
landscape watering restrictions for commercial and residential areas. 

 
Policy 1.4.4 All development shall comply with applicable water conservation 
programs. 
 
Policy 1.4.5 The City shall continue to investigate strategies to further conserve water. 

 
FLORA, FAUNA, WETLANDS, WATERBODIES, AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

 
OBJECTIVE 1.5 The City shall conserve, appropriately use, and protect endangered, 
threatened, and species of special concern and their habitats through enforcement of the 
following policies and Land Development Regulations. 
 
Policy 1.5.1  The City recognizes the existence and strategic value of habitat within 
the City for federal and state listed species of flora and fauna.  The City shall 
participate in and support the efforts on the part of the USFWS, FWC, SWFWMD, 



 
 

92

ACOE and Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Affairs to protect and 
conserve these resources.   

 
Policy 1.5.2 Applications for development must include a complete listed species 
study and field surveys of habitat of listed species.  The City shall adopt land 
development regulations within one year of adoption of this comprehensive plan 
amendment which specify the level of detail required for such field studies.  The 
level of detail may vary by size of parcel and whether the property has been 
previously altered. Development impacts to listed species will be avoided when 
possible. 
 
Policy 1.5.3 Proposed development projects which are determined to contain listed 
species will be prohibited unless a permit and mitigation plan has been approved by 
the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FFWCC) and/or the U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 

 
Policy 1.5.4   Protection of listed species and their habitats shall be addressed in the 
development review process and conditions of approval. Protective measures can 
include clustering of development away from habitats occupied by listed species, the 
use of vegetated buffers, and on and off-site mitigation. The City shall encourage the 
maintenance of wildlife corridors and prevention of habitat fragmentation by 
coordinating development proposals which impact listed species and identified 
associated habitat with the FFWCC. 

 
Policy 1.5.5 The City shall use one or more of the following methods to protect 
endangered, threatened and rare species and their habitat: 

 
a. Consult with the FGFWFC to determine alternative mitigation practices to 
conserve species and habitat; 
b. Utilization of MID, cluster development and other flexible regulatory techniques 
to work with private developers in conserving habitat and species; 
c. Fee simple acquisition through dedication and the use of conservation easements. 
 

NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.6 The City shall protect the following natural resources from the 
adverse impacts of development through implementation of a series of policies which 
specifically address these resources: soils, native vegetative communities, listed species, 
water quality and quantity, wildlife habitats, floodplains, wetlands, and other 
environmentally sensitive lands. 
 
Policy 1.6.1 The City shall require that all applications for development orders or 
permits contain information on the site's natural resources at a level of detail and 
specificity to enable the City to determine required protective measures. 

 



 
 

93

Policy 1.6.2 The City shall require that new development use Natural Resource 
Conservation Service and Florida Department of Environmental Protection Best 
Management Practices to control soil erosion and unconfined emissions and to prevent 
stormwater runoff from adversely impacting surface water quality. 

 
Policy 1.6.3 The City shall adopt land regulations to protect viable native vegetative 
communities identified in the Florida Natural Areas Inventory through the 
implementation of the following standards and guidelines: 
 
a. Where feasible, development shall be clustered to avoid destruction of native 
vegetation; 
b. The use of native vegetation shall receive priority in meeting, buffering, 
landscaping and open space requirements; and 
c. The City shall encourage the removal of exotic species. 

 
Policy 1.6.4  The City shall actively enforce National Pollution and Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) BMPs.  The City, when performing site visits, shall 
inspect for proper placement and maintenance of BMPs, and will require applicants 
to submit an erosion control plan and any required NPDES permits.   

 
Policy 1.6.5  The City shall require that all golf courses implement one or more 
BMPs specific to golf course maintenance shown on FDEP’s list of BMPs web site.   

 
OBJECTIVE 1.7  The City shall protect the 100-Year Floodplain so they are 
protected and maintained from causing net loss of flood storage capacity. 
 
Policy 1.7.1  The City shall incorporate into its Floodplain Ordinance the provision 
that any impacting activity within the 100-year flood elevation must be mitigated by 
compensating storage on site as directed and approved by SWFWMD. 

 
Policy 1.7.2 The City shall protect floodplains as identified by FEMA and shown on 
Future Land Use Map 1-3.  The natural functions of these floodplains shall be protected 
through implementation of the following standards and guidelines: 
 
a. Precise delineation of floodplains shall be determined for new development 
through site specific studies and field determinations; 
b. Require all proposed development to be located on the non-floodplain portions of 
the site if feasible. Where proposed development areas lie entirely within the 100 year 
floodplain, all structures shall be required to be elevated with the first floor elevation at 
least 18" above the 100 year base flood elevation; 
c. Dredging and filling of lands within the floodplain shall be discouraged except for 
fill allowed in conjunction with minimal access ways and with a minimum amount 
beneath structures, will be limited by land development regulations protecting the 
direction and rate of historical flows on the property. All fill within the floodplain 
requires compensatory on site storage meeting FEMA standards; 



 
 

94

d. Maximum density for development in floodplains is one dwelling unit per five 
acres. Where central water and sewer facilities are utilized and floodplain compensation 
is provided, the allowable density may be increased to be compatible with the adjacent 
designated land uses; and 
e. Land uses which require the storage, generation or use of hazardous materials or 
waste are prohibited in floodplains; 
f. Roads, bridges, and other similar public facilities shall not be located within the 
floodplains, except where no reasonable alternative exists. 
 

WETLANDS 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.8 The City shall protect wetlands from the adverse impacts of 
development through implementation of a series of policies and land development 
regulations which will maintain their ecological function. Wetlands are defined as being 
lands which are inundated or saturated by surface water or ground water at a frequency or 
duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do or would support, 
a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions.  
Wetlands include both jurisdictional and non jurisdictional wetlands as determined by 
SWFWMD and ACOE. 

 
Wetlands and the natural functions of wetlands shall be protected and conserved.  The 
adequate and appropriate protection and conservation of wetlands shall be accomplished 
through a comprehensive planning process which includes consideration of the types, 
values, functions, sizes, conditions and locations of wetlands, and which is based on 
supporting data and analysis.  
 
Future land uses which are incompatible with the protection and conservation of wetlands 
and wetland functions shall be directed away from wetlands.  The type, intensity or 
density, extent, distribution and location of allowable land uses and the types, values, 
functions, sizes, conditions and locations of wetlands are land use factors which shall be 
considered when directing incompatible land uses away from wetlands.  Land use shall 
be distributed in a manner that minimizes the effect and impact on wetlands.  The 
protection and conservation of wetlands by the direction of incompatible land use away 
from wetlands shall occur in combination with other goals, objectives and policies, in the 
comprehensive plan.  Where incompatible land uses are allowed to occur, mitigation shall 
be considered as one means to compensate for loss of wetlands functions.  
 
a.   Jurisdictional wetlands are a part of or are naturally connected to a water body which 
is designated by the SWFWMD or the FDEP as an area of regional ecological 
significance such as Outstanding Florida Waters or Aquatic Preserves, and surface waters 
that have been classified as Class I (Potable Water Supplies) or major springs (as 
identified by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection), or 
b.   Named lakes, named waterways or other jurisdictional wetlands that are naturally 
connected to wetlands described above that are critical to the contiguous-nature of the 
system; or 
c.    Wetlands included in Mitigation Banks, Conservation Banks or state or federal lands. 



 
 

95

 
Policy 1.8.1 Wetlands shall be protected through the implementation of the following 
standards and guidelines: 
 
a. Precise delineation (pursuant to Chapter 62-340, FAC) and functional assessment 
(pursuant to Chapter 62-345, FAC) of wetland areas shall be determined based on ACOE 
and SWFWMD criteria through site-specific studies and field determination during 
development review; 
b. Impacts to wetlands shall be avoided where possible. Mitigation of lost wetland 
resources shall be required. The amount of mitigation required shall be dependent upon 
the function value of the wetlands proposed for impact and the type of mitigation 
proposed based on ACOE and SWFWMD criteria; 
c. Commercial and industrial uses and uses which store or generate hazardous 
materials/wastes shall not be permitted in or adjacent to wetlands without proper 
measures to ensure protection of the wetlands; 
d. Septic tanks shall not be permitted in wetlands; 
e. Wetland protective measures shall include the use of SWFWMD vegetative 
buffers. Buffer widths shall depend on the nature and functional value of the wetlands to 
be protected per SWFWMD regulations; 
f. No new parcels of land shall be created which consist entirely of wetlands, unless 
such parcels are dedicated to the public or remain in private ownership with long term 
conservation easements; and 
g. All required permits from jurisdictional agencies shall be approved prior to, or 
concurrent with, the City issuing a final development order authorizing site development 
activity. 
 
Policy 1.8.2 In order to prevent development from having adverse impacts to existing 
wetlands, the natural upland buffer shall be preserved a minimum of fifteen (15) feet and 
an average of twenty-five (25) feet from the edge of the wetland. Where a wetland is 
unavoidably impacted by development, the development shall be subject to the mitigation 
requirements of the pertinent regulatory agency. 
 
Policy 1.8.3 The City shall coordinate with the Department of the Army, Corps of 
Engineers and/or the SWFWMD in implementing their regulatory responsibilities within 
the City when wetlands are involved. 
 

AQUIFER RECHARGE 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.9 The City shall protect areas having high recharge potential, as 
identified by the Southwest Florida Water Management District, through the 
implementation of a series of policies and land development regulations in order to 
maintain their aquifer recharge function. 
 
Policy 1.9.1 Aquifer recharge shall be protected through the implementation of the 
following standards and guidelines: 
 



 
 

96

a. Maximum impervious surface restrictions shall be consistent with the protection 
of functional values; 
b. Land alterations in conjunction with development shall avoid the removal of high 
permeability soils and/or replacement with lower permeability soils; 
c. To the extent feasible, open space/native vegetation in areas of high recharge 
potential shall be preserved; 
d. Commercial or industrial uses which store or handle hazardous materials/wastes 
shall be restricted; 
e. Stormwater detention systems shall be designed to provide  aquifer recharge; and 
f. New development and redevelopment shall not reduce aquifer recharge quality or 
quantity (volumes and rates) and subsurface storage and flows should simulate 
predevelopment conditions; 
g. Natural grades and topography shall be maintained unless alteration is needed to 
construct stormwater systems or to meet health and safety standards. 
 
Policy 1.9.2 The City shall develop and maintain requirements and standards which at 
a minimum are in conjunction with those developed by SWFWMD and Sumter County 
for on-site stormwater run-off and detention/retention for all new developments in its 
development regulations.  Stormwater standards shall include at a minimum, 
requirements for: 
 
a. Setback from any major water bodies and wetlands in an effort to preserve natural 
vegetation; 
b. Post-development run-off rates and pollutant loading must not exceed pre-
development rates; 
c. Best management practices consistent with State and Federal recommended 
standards, to reduce pesticide and fertilizer and soil erosion. 

 
KARST FEATURES 

OBJECTIVE 1.10 The City shall protect karst features, such as sinkholes, caves and 
seeps, located on or under developable lands within the City limits with appropriate 
development requirements. 
 
Policy 1.10.1  The City shall protect areas containing karst features through appropriate 
development review and regulations, the acquisition of land for conservation, or through 
the purchase or dedication of easements in these areas.  

 
Policy 1.10.2 Developers shall employ techniques to guide more intense development 
away from karst areas that are incapable of remediation. A variety of approaches may be 
used including designation of less intense land use, a minimum average buffer 
requirement of 25 feet from preserved karst areas that have been scientifically proven to 
have direct impact on ground water quality, and conservation easements for preserved 
karst areas. 

 



 
 

97

Policy 1.10.3  The City shall use revenues and monies that become available to 
match or leverage funds for private or public acquisition programs including but not 
limited to the Florida Forever Program, the Florida Community Trust and any other 
existing or newly implemented program to acquire fee simple ownership or less than fee 
ownership through conservation easements.  Karst features scientifically proven to 
directly impact ground water quality shall be considered for acquisition by the City 
with priority given to those areas where acquisition would protect the health and 
welfare of the citizens and environment. 

 
Policy 1.10.4  Developers of property on which karst features are located shall 
accurately identify and scientifically evaluate those features prior to development permit 
approval.  Features shall be evaluated utilizing subsurface investigation and ground 
penetrating radar when appropriate, and shall be classified in one of three categories: 

 
a. Stable; Areas that are stable for normal development without remediation; 
b.  Unstable, capable of remediation; Areas that can be remediated and utilized for 
normal development with proven mediation technologies such as pressure grouting with 
cement grout or sand or; 
c. Unstable; Areas that are incapable of remediation. 
 
Policy 1.10.5 Development will be allowed based upon the classification of karst 
features, as follows:  a. stable karst features – normal development;   b. unstable karst 
areas capable of remediation – normal development upon remediation provided that 
appropriate level of remediation as recommend and approved by professional 
geotechnical engineer is used; and c. unstable karst features incapable of remediation – 
conservation or passive recreation uses only. 

 
Policy 1.10.6 Techniques used to stabilize karst features capable of remediation, 
include pressure grouting with sand or cement slurry and other methods recommended 
by a professional geotechnical engineer.  All remediation plans shall be prepared by a 
professional geotechnical engineer, who shall prepare and certify a completion report 
following remediation certifying that the work was completed as specified in the plan. 

 
Policy 1.10.7 The development plan shall identify strategies for protecting karst 
features during construction and after development, which promote the following: 

a.  Inclusion of unstable karst features into pervious open space areas; 
b. Use of landscape design principles to incorporate karst features as aesthetic 
elements; 
c. Pretreatment of stormwater runoff, in accordance with applicable federal, state, 
regional and local regulations, prior to discharge to karst features;  
d.  Prohibition of untreated stormwater discharge to karst features scientifically 
determined to have a direct hydraulic connection to the aquifer; 

e. Prohibition of discharge of wastewater effluent to karst features; and 

f. Perimeter buffering around features to maintain natural function, edge 
vegetation, and structural protection. 



 
 

98

 
Policy 1.10.8 The City shall require impervious liners where appropriate to prevent 
direct hydraulic connection to the aquifer between stormwater ponds in karst areas 
and the aquifer. 

 
Policy 1.10.9 Mining and industrial or heavy commercial uses which store or generate 
hazardous materials/waste shall not be permitted in karst areas without proper 
measures to ensure protection of ground water.  

 
 

SPRING PROTECTION 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.11 The City shall develop programs to protect sensitive areas within 
and adjacent to all springs and spring runs.  The City shall cooperate with the local, state 
and regional agencies, as appropriate, in development and implementation of the following 
programs. 
 
Policy 1.11.1  The City shall cooperate with and promote the monitoring programs of 
the USGS, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the Water Management 
Districts and other federal, state, regional and local agencies.   

 
Policy 1.11.2 The City shall coordinate with local colleges, the school board and 
individual schools to develop environmental education programs for school-aged 
children regarding springs, water bodies, watersheds and ground water. 

 
Policy 1.11.3 The City shall coordinate with local community organizations to 
develop environmental education programs regarding springs, water bodies, 
watersheds and ground water.  

 
Policy 1.11.4 The City shall establish an education program for homeowners and 
landscape and lawn-care professionals regarding responsible practices that encourage 
limitation of water use, fertilizers and pesticides, such as those produced by the Water 
Management Districts. 

 
Policy 1.11.5 Within 12 months of the effective date of this amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan, the City shall adopt LDRs for springs protection utilizing as a 
guide the BMPs contained in the document “Protecting Florida’s Springs Manual-Land 
Use Planning Strategies and BMPs” (FDCA and FDEP).  These LDRs shall include but 
not be limited to standards for the use of native and drought tolerant species, clearing 
of vegetation, landscaping and arbor requirements, use of septic systems, 
identification and review of and buffering of karst features, creation of open space 
and efficient irrigation to maximize conservation of water. 

 
Policy 1.11.6 The City shall establish fertilizer-free zones in all buffers surrounding 
spring heads, as well as adjacent to any surface waters, and wetlands which drain 
directly into a spring or spring run.  



 
 

99

 
OBJECTIVE 1.12  All development on property where a spring or spring run is located 
shall be planned, designed, and implemented to limit environmental impacts to ground and 
surface water quality. 
 
Policy 1.12.1 The following buffer areas apply to all development:   

 
a. 150 feet from the ordinary high water line of a spring head;  
b. 50 feet from the ordinary high water line along spring runs. 

 
A perimeter vegetated swale will be allowed within the buffer around the spring head.  
Stormwater retention areas shall be located no less than 150 feet from the spring head to 
avoid direct discharge of overflow stormwater runoff. 

 
Policy 1.12.2 All buffers that do not otherwise have native upland species shall be planted 
or supplemented with plants and grasses recommended in the Florida-Friendly Landscaping 
guidelines provided by the Florida Friendly Yard and Neighbors Program.  Buffers must be 
designed to accommodate vegetated swales meeting land development code requirements 
to provide additional filtering of stormwater runoff. 

 
Policy 1.12.3 Agriculture shall implement BMPs to minimize environmental impacts to 
a spring head or spring runs. 

 
Policy 1.12.4  Silviculture activities shall comply with best management practices 
outlined in “Silviculture and Agriculture Best Management Practices Manuals” (Florida 
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services).  The City shall encourage long-crop 
rotation silviculture, minimum tillage farming, and unimproved pasture. 

 
Policy 1.12.5 Residential and commercial land owners shall be encouraged to use 
BMPs, including Florida-Friendly Landscaping and Florida-Friendly Yard practices and 
guidelines provided by the Florida Yard and Neighbors program, to ensure proper use of 
water, fertilizer, herbicides, and pesticides.  The City will make available to all 
Homeowners’ Associations (HOAs) guidelines promoting Florida-Friendly practices such 
as native plant landscaping, proper use of fertilizer, and lower water use turf grasses. 

 
Policy 1.12.6 The City shall provide for all commercial maintenance providers to be 
certified by a board, program or agency that educates on fertilizer impacts. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.13 In addition to the above, all developers of property on which a 
spring or spring run is located shall submit a Spring Protection Plan (Plan) for 
consideration and adoption by the City into the site plan or development order as 
appropriate.  Each Plan shall address the following issues and shall be implemented with 
specific conditions to: 
 



 
 

100

Policy 1.13.1 Mining and industrial or heavy commercial uses which store or generate 
hazardous materials/waste shall not be permitted in spring buffers or in surface 
drainage basins with direct surface water outfall into spring head or spring run, 
without proper measures to ensure protection of ground water and surface water.  

 
Policy 1.13.2 Drainage basins with direct surface water discharge into spring head or 
spring run shall provide OFW 1.5 times water treatment criteria as required by 
SWFWMD.  Irrigated turf grass will be restricted from spring buffers and limited to a 
maximum 50% of open space in drainage basins with direct surface water discharge into 
spring head or spring run. 

 
Policy 1.13.3 A minimum percentage of 25% open space calculated for drainage basins 
within the development that have direct surface water discharge into spring head or 
spring run.  Open space may be achieved by any of the following techniques, or any 
combination thereof:  Clustering, preserved open space, trails and pedestrian 
pathways corridors, and, where appropriate, utility and stormwater treatment corridors, 
to form a greenway system. Credit towards the 25% open space shall also be given for 
the use of pervious pavement, underground exfiltration trenches and other aquifer 
recharge mechanisms that retain runoff water and recharge the aquifer. 

 
Policy 1.13.4  Implement a water quality monitoring program providing periodic 
sampling and testing of surface and groundwater quality.  Baseline sampling will begin 
prior to construction.  Results shall be reported to the applicable regulatory agency and 
to a person designated by the City. 

 
Policy 1.13.5 Participate in any local education “adopt a spring” type program and 
other incentive and volunteer spring awareness and protection programs. 

 
HAZARDOUS WASTE 

 
OBJECTIVE 1.14 The City shall cooperate with Department of Environmental 
Protection and Sumter County to develop programs to properly dispose of hazardous 
waste. 
 
Policy 1.14.1 The City shall cooperate with Sumter County and Department of 
Environmental Protection in workshops and "amnesty day" programs on management of 
hazardous waste. 

 
Policy 1.14.2 The City shall incorporate into the City-wide conservation program 
criteria concerning the protection of natural resources from adverse effects of hazardous 
waste generation. 

 
Policy 1.14.3 When developing a hazardous waste management program through 
cooperative workshops with Department of Environmental Protection and Sumter County 
the identification including quantity, type and location of hazardous waste shall be 
accomplished. 



 
 

104

CHAPTER 7 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COORDINATION ELEMENT 
 

Goals, Objectives and Policies 
 
 
Any and All Florida Statutes, Florida Administrative Code Regulation or Other 
Regulations Referenced in this Element Shall be Enforced as it Existed on the Date 
of Adoption or Amendment of this Element and are to Include any Amendments to 
the Referenced Regulation, Statute or Code Adopted After the Date of Adoption or 
Amendment of this Element. 
 
GOAL 1 The City shall coordinate the activities of the City of Wildwood with 
affected federal, state, regional and local jurisdictions and agencies. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.1  The City shall annually identify all existing and potential 
relationships with other governmental jurisdictions and agencies, and enforce policies to 
further efforts concerning coordination between all potential jurisdictions and agencies. 

 
Policy 1.1.1  The City shall use the Intergovernmental Coordination Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan as the basis for the development of an on-going intergovernmental 
coordination program. 

 
Policy 1.1.2 The City shall establish and maintain lines of communication with public 
agencies and local governments regarding local planning and development activities. 

 
Policy 1.1.3 The City shall ensure the widest possible dissemination of information 
and encourage public discussion of all proposed City plans and programs. 

 
Policy 1.1.4  The City shall require developers to assess their needs regarding essential 
services (electric, gas, etc.) and the developer shall seek confirmation of future 
availability from appropriate utility suppliers. Confirmation shall be provided by the 
utility to the City Development Services Department during the planning stages of 
development but no later than the issuance of a development permit. 

 
Policy 1.1.5  The City of Wildwood Development Services Department shall maintain 
close contact with public utilities that provide essential services to assure continuity and 
availability of service. 

 
Policy 1.1.6 The City of Wildwood and Sumter County will coordinate on Planning, 
Water and Sewer, Roads, Parks and Recreation, Fire Services, Library Services, 
Workforce Housing, Solid Waste, Stormwater, Geographic Information Systems, Law 
Enforcement, Mosquito Control, and Animal Control pursuant to an Interlocal Service 
Boundary and Joint Planning Agreement adopted by the City on April 13, 2009, 
Ordinance No. 2009-10, and by the County on April 14, 2009, Ordinance 2009-07. 



 
 

105

 
OBJECTIVE 1.2 The City of Wildwood shall coordinate the Comprehensive Plan 
with Sumter County School Board, Southwest Florida Water Management District, the 
Florida Department of Transportation, adjacent local government comprehensive plans 
and other units of local government providing services but not having regulatory 
authority over land. 

 
Policy 1.2.1 The City shall, as part of the Comprehensive Plan Review and 
Amendment Process, coordinate proposed plan amendments with adjacent local 
governments, the Sumter County School Board, the Southwest Florida Water 
Management District, the Withlacoochee Regional Planning Council and other local 
governments not having regulatory authority over the use of land. 

 
Policy 1.2.2 The City Manager, or designee, shall be responsible for the 
implementation of the intergovernmental programs. 

 
Policy 1.2.3  The City shall establish procedures to ensure intergovernmental 
coordination with the Sumter County School Board for the location of educational 
facilities within the City limits, including: 

 
a. Upon written notice from the Sumter County School Board informing the City of 
the acquisition or leasing of property to be used for new public education facilities, the 
City shall notify the School Board within 45 days as to the consistency with the 
Wildwood Comprehensive Plan. 

 
b. The City Manager, or designee, shall meet semi-annually with the Sumter County 
School Board superintendent or designee in order to discuss upcoming planning issues 
which may impact the Sumter County School District, a particular school or planning 
efforts. 

 
Policy 1.2.4  The City shall identify and participate in joint processes for collaborative 
planning on population projections, school siting, facilities with City-wide significance 
and problematic land uses. 

 
Policy 1.2.5 The City shall review for potential impact all projects proposed in the City 
of Wildwood by other agencies. 
 
Policy 1.2.6 The City shall annually review the relationship of the proposed 
development of the City of Wildwood to the Sumter County Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Policy 1.2.7 The City shall enforce regulations to ensure that other jurisdictions and 
agencies are not adversely impacted by activities within the City. 

 
Policy 1.2.8 The City shall request copies and review all plans and programs being 
proposed by other area government entities with known or potential impacts on the City. 

 



 
 

106

Policy 1.2.9  The City shall resolve any and all conflicts with other local governments 
through the Regional Planning Council’s dispute resolution process only if such conflicts 
cannot be resolved by negotiation with the other government entity. 
 
Policy 1.2.10 The City shall notify the County of all proposed annexations upon receipt 
of requests for such annexations. 
 
Policy 1.2.11 The City shall coordinate with the Southwest Florida Water Management 
District to assure the consistency of the 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan with 
the District’s Regional Water Supply Plan. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.3  Ensure through adopted Interlocal Agreements, the City of 
Wildwood addresses through coordination mechanisms, the impacts of developments 
proposed in the Wildwood Comprehensive Plan on development in adjacent 
municipalities, the County, Region and State. 

 
Policy 1.3.1 The City shall ensure all proposed development is not contrary to the 
development plans of the County, region and state prior to issuance of development 
orders. 
 
Policy 1.3.2  The City shall establish policies to address a joint process with the 
Sumter County School Board for collaborative planning and decision making 
concerning population projections and school siting. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.4  The City shall acquire the approval of any State, Local or 
Regional entity having operational and maintenance responsibilities of public 
facilities within the City jurisdiction prior to establishing level of services for such 
public facilities. 

 
Policy 1.4.1  The City shall coordinate proposed level of service standards for public 
facilities with state, regional and local entities having operational and maintenance 
responsibilities for such facilities. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.5 The City shall strive to maintain and enhance joint planning 
processes and procedures for coordination of public education facilities for planning and 
decision-making. 
 
On an ongoing basis, the City shall establish new and review existing coordination 
mechanisms that will evaluate and address its comprehensive plan and programs and their 
effects on the comprehensive plans developed for the adjacent local governments, school 
board, and other units of local government providing services but not having regulatory 
authority over use of land and the State, by an annual county-wide forum, joint meetings 
or other types of forums with other agencies. Assistance for this effort shall be requested 
from regional and state agencies, as needed.  
 



 
 

107

Policy 1.5.1  On an annual basis, the City shall ask the School Board to provide 
information from their five-year Capital Facilities Plan to determine the need for 
additional school facilities. The School Board shall provide to the County, each year, a 
general education facilities report.  The educational facilities report shall contain 
information detailing existing facilities and their locations and projected needs.  The 
report shall also contain the School Board’s capital improvement plan, including planned 
facilities with funding representing the district’s unmet needs.  
 

CALENDAR OF KEY ANNUAL DEADLINES 

February 1 Cities’ and County’s Growth Reports Provided 
to School Board 

April 15 Staff working group meeting re enrollment 
projections and any proposed amendments to 
the school-related elements of the 
comprehensive plan provisions 

June 30 School Board provides Tentative Educational 
Facilities Plan to County and Cities for review 

July 30 Cities and County provide School Board with 
comments, if any, on Tentative Educational 
Facilities Plan 

September 1 School Board’s adoption of Educational 
Facilities Plan 

September 1 Update of Five-Year Capital Facilities Plan 
adopted into City’s and County’s 
comprehensive plans 

 
 
Policy 1.5.2   In order to coordinate the effective and efficient provision and siting of 
public educational facilities with associated infrastructure and services within the City of 
Wildwood, the Sumter County Board of County Commissioners, the Sumter County 
School Board, and the City of Bushnell Council, Center Hill Council, City of Coleman 
Council, and City of Webster Commission shall meet jointly to develop mechanisms for 
coordination.  Such efforts may include: 

 
1. Coordinated submittal and review of the annual capital improvement program of 
the City, the annual educational facilities report and Five-year School Plant Survey of the 
Sumter County School Board. 

 
2. Coordinated review and assessment of the associated costs and expenditures of 
siting and developing schools with needed public infrastructure. 

 
3. Coordinated review of residential planned developments or mixed use planned 
developments involving residential development. 

 



 
 

108

4. Use of a unified data base including population (forecasts of student population), 
land use and facilities. 
 
5. Use of the Parks/Schools Planning Group (with representatives from each of the 
entities) to review coordinated siting of schools with parks for multi-functional use. 
Directives resulting from the joint meeting shall be incorporated into the 
Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Regulations, and other appropriate 
mechanisms as deemed necessary. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.6 Interlocal Service Boundary and Joint Planning Agreement with 
Sumter County  The City shall continue to coordinate with Sumter County regarding 
planning, building permitting and code enforcement, future annexation areas, water and 
sewer, roads, parks and recreation, fire services, library services, workforce housing, 
solid waste, stormwater, geographic information systems, law enforcement, mosquito 
control, and animal control pursuant to the effective Interlocal Service Boundary and 
Joint Planning Agreement (ISBA), consistent with Chapter 171 Part II, Florida Statutes. 
The ISBA assures the following: 
 
1. Land use decisions are consistent with the comprehensive plan of each 
jurisdiction; 
2. Annexations of unincorporated areas are coordinated and consistent with planned 
future service areas; 
 
3. Expansion of water and sewer service is coordinated, efficient, and supports the 
growth and development of each community; and 
4. Future municipal growth and expansion is supported through a unified effort 
across jurisdictions and supported with planned public services. 
 
Policy 1.6.1  Interlocal Service Boundary and Joint Planning Area Agreements 
Adopted by Reference  The Interlocal Service Boundary and Joint Planning Area 
Agreements adopted by the Sumter County Board of County Commissioners by 
Ordinance 2009-07, as amended, and the City of Wildwood City Commission by 
Ordinance No. 02009-10, as amended, is hereby adopted within the comprehensive plan 
by reference. 
 
Policy 1.6.2  Joint Planning Area and Municipal Services Area A Joint Planning 
Area and Municipal Services Area is hereby established between the City of Wildwood 
and Sumter County to combat urban sprawl, provide an energy efficient land use pattern, 
and to manage growth in an environmentally sensitive manner that protects rural areas 
within the county. The Joint Planning Area, as shown on Map 1-11, shall serve as the 
Municipal Services Area, more specifically defined in Sections 171.202(11) and 
163.3171, Florida Statutes.  
 
Policy  1.6.3 Annexation within the Joint Planning Area The City may annex any 
property within their respective Joint Planning Area, including property that is not 



 
 

109

contiguous, that creates enclaves, or that creates pockets, if the property proposed for 
annexation meets the following criteria: 
  
1.     It is consistent with the prerequisites to annexation and consent requirements for 
annexation in Section 171.204 and Section 171.205, Florida Statutes; 
2.    Utilities are available or scheduled within the Capital Improvements Element to 
be provided to the property within five (5) years; 
3.     A road directly impacted by the annexation, meaning such road directly abuts the 
property or otherwise provides significant service to the property, is not a substandard 
road, as defined by the Transportation Element, or deficiencies are mitigated through a 
binding agreement; and 
4.     All other municipal services are available to the site. 
 
Policy 1.6.4 Proposed Future Land Use Map Designations within the Joint Planning 
Area The proposed future land use designations for properties within the Joint Planning 
Area shall be depicted on Map 1-12. Upon annexation into the City, the City shall amend 
the Future Land Use Map to include the annexed property. If the future land use of the 
annexed property is consistent with the proposed future land uses depicted on the Joint 
Planning Area Map 1-12 then the amendment shall be considered a small scale future 
land use map amendment pursuant to Section 171.204(2), Florida Statutes.  The proposed 
future land uses shown on Map 1-12 are not effective until such time as the property is 
annexed into the City and the City’s Future Land Use Map is amended to include the 
annexed property.  The underlying County future land use shall remain in full force and 
effect until such time as the annexation and related amendment are effective. 
 
Policy 1.6.5  Amendments to the Joint Planning Area Boundary The Joint Planning 
Area boundary may be expanded to include a parcel or parcels of property for annexation 
following joint approval by the City of Wildwood and the County.  Approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld if the property meets the criteria for annexation and there is no 
increase in density or intensity of development.  If there is an impasse, the City and the 
County will resolve through the dispute resolution process provided in the ISBA.  The 
expanded Joint Planning Area shall not take effect until the City’s and County’s Future 
Land Use Maps are amended and approved by the Florida Department of Economic 
Opportunity as required by Section 163.3184(3), Florida Statutes. 
 
Policy 1.6.6 Amendments to Proposed Future Land Use on the Joint Planning 
Area Maps Amendments to the proposed future land use on the Joint Planning Area Map 
shall require joint approval by the City and the County. The amendment to the Joint 
Planning Area Map shall not take effect until the City’s and County’s Future Land Use 
Maps are amended and approved by the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity as 
required by Section 163.3184(3), Florida Statutes.     
 
Policy  1.6.7 Issuance of Development Orders The City shall have the sole authority to 
issue development orders within its municipal limits. The County shall have the sole 
authority to issue development orders within unincorporated areas.  However, the 
County, pursuant to the ISBA, shall provide the City the professional staff support for the 



 
 

110

processing, review, and approval of building permits and other building inspection 
services. 
 
Policy 1.6.8 Land Development Regulations The City’s land development 
regulations shall apply for development within its municipal limits. The County’s land 
development regulations shall apply for development within unincorporated areas. 
However, the City’s Design District Standards, as amended, shall apply to properties 
within the Joint Planning Area, as further described in the ISBA.   



 
 

111

Chapter 8 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT 
 

Goals, Objectives and Policies 
 
Any and All Florida Statutes, Florida Administrative Code Regulation or Other 
Regulations Referenced is this Element Shall be Enforced as it Existed on the Date 
of Adoption or Amendment of this Element and are to Include any Amendments to 
tie Referenced Regulation, Statute or Code Adopted After the Date of Adoption or 
Amendment or this Element. 
 

GOAL 1 The City of Wildwood shall implement a capital planning program that 
provides and maintains public facilities and services through the use of sound fiscal 
policies. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.1 Capital Improvements Program The City shall adopt each year, as 
part of the budget process, a Capital Improvements Program (CIP) that meets the needs 
of the City of Wildwood for the construction of capital facilities necessary to meet 
existing deficiencies, to accommodate desired future growth and to replace obsolete or 
worn-out facilities. 
 
Policy 1.1.1 The City shall adopt a Capital Improvements Budget in congruence of the 
annual budgeting process which evaluates current, short range and long range needs for 
infrastructure.  An annual capital improvement budget as well as a five-year forecast of 
projects will be an ongoing practice.  The five-year plan will require consideration of 
construction costs, inflation and impacts on other operating revenues.   
 
Policy 1.1.2   The Capital Improvements Element shall include projects identified in 
other elements of the comprehensive plan such as utilities, transportation, recreation and 
open space, and public school facilities. 
 
Policy 1.1.3 The Capital Improvements Program shall be updated annually by all affected 
Departments within the City to incorporate any necessary adjustments in prioritization or 
evaluation of proposed projects.   
 
Policy 1.1.4 The following priorities shall be used to determine which projects are 
included in the CIP: 
 
1. To remove a direct and immediate threat to the public health or safety. 
2. Necessary to meet or maintain established levels of service. 
3. Essential for the maintenance of existing facilities or infrastructure. 
4. Increase the efficiency of existing facilities or infrastructure. 
5. Will accommodate new development or redevelopment anticipated in this plan. 
6. Whether the project competes with other facilities that have been or could 
reasonably be provided by other government entities or the private sector. 



 
 

112

7. The revenue-generating potential of the project. 
8. Whether the project leverages additional benefits to the City, such as offers to 
donate land or services by the private sector and/or other governmental entities. 
 
Policy 1.1.5 Adoption of TIP.  The City hereby adopts by reference, the Lake-Sumter 
MPO TIP, FDOT Five-Year Work Program and Sumter County 5-Year TIP for FY 
2011/2012 through 2015/2016, as adopted by the appropriate governing body. 
 
Policy 1.1.6 The City shall review the 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (Work 
Plan) annually together with the 5-Year Schedule of Capital Improvements to include 
related work projects identified in the first five years of the Work Plan. 
 
Policy 1.1.7 Capital Improvements identified in the first five years of the Work Plan shall 
be included in the 5-Year Schedule of Capital Improvements. This schedule shall be 
updated annually, as necessary, to maintain consistency with the capital projects with the 
capital projects identified in the Work Plan. 
 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.2 Coordination of Land Use Decisions The City of Wildwood shall 
coordinate land use decisions and available or projected fiscal resources with a schedule 
of capital improvements which maintains adopted level of service standards and meets 
the existing and future facility needs. 
 
Policy 1.2.1 The City shall use the development approval process to ensure coordination 
of the level of service standards in the area of proposed development.  Such development 
will not be approved until public facilities in the proposed area meet or exceed the level 
of service standards. 

 
Policy 1.2.2  Provisions for facilities to serve development for which development 
orders were issued prior to plan adoption will be as directed by the City's existing codes 
and ordinances. 
 
Policy 1.2.3   The City shall have provisions for the availability of public facilities and 
services needed to support development concurrent with the impacts of such 
development. Public facility and service availability shall be sufficient if the public 
facilities and services for a development are phased, or the development is phased, so that 
the public facilities and those related services which are deemed necessary by the local 
government to operate the facilities necessitated by that development, are available 
concurrent with the impacts of the development in accordance with the requirements of 
Florida Statutes. Adequate water supplies and facilities shall be available to serve new 
development no later than the date on which the local government anticipates issuing a 
certificate of occupancy or its equivalent. 

 
OBJECTIVE 1.3 Level of Service (LOS) The City shall utilize level of service criteria 
defined in the various Elements of this Plan when determining the timing and funding of 
capital facilities. 



 
 

113

 
Policy 1.3.1 The City of Wildwood hereby adopts the following guidelines and 
procedures: All plan amendments and requests for new development shall meet at a 
minimum: 

 
a. The intent and polices of the Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use 
Element and Capital Improvements Element. 
b. The adopted LOS Standards as follows for all facilities and services required by 
the City of Wildwood. 
c. The economic feasibility requirements of the Capital Improvements Element of 
the Comprehensive Plan.   
d. The requirements of appropriate state and regional agency plans. 
e. The minimum requirements for concurrency as set forth in the administrative 
rules of the state. 
 

Category Level of Service Standard  
Water    300 gallons per day per ERC 
Sewer    250 gallons per day per ERC  
Solid Waste   2.04 lbs/capita/day (in accordance with the 

level of service established by the County – 
Source: Sumter Utilities Element Policy 
4.3.1.2)  

Drainage Facilities  Stormwater facilities shall be designed to 
accommodate the 25-year, 24-hour design 
storm to meet the water quality and quantity 
standards that follow: 

 
a. Water Quantity  Peak post-development runoff shall not exceed peak 
pre-development runoff rates. 
b. Water Quality Treatment of stormwater runoff shall be required 
for all development, redevelopment and, when expansion occurs, existing 
developed areas. The stormwater treatment system or systems can be 
project specific, serve sub-areas within the City or be a system to serve the 
entire City. Regardless of the area sewed and in accordance with Chapter 
17-25, F.A.C., the stormwater treatment systems must provide a level of 
treatment for the runoff from the first one (1) inch of rainfall for projects 
in drainage basins of 100 acres or more, or as an option for projects with 
drainage basins less than 100 acres, for the first one-half (1/2) inch of 
runoff in order to meet receiving water quality standards of Chapter 17-
302, Section 17-302.500, F.A.C. Stormwater discharge facilities shall be 
designed so as to not lower receiving water quality or degrade the 
receiving water body below the minimum conditions necessary to assure 
the suitability of water for the designated use of its classification as 
established in Chapter 17-302, F.A.C. It is intended that rill standards in 
these citations are to apply to all development and redevelopment and that 



 
 

114

any exemptions or exceptions in these citations including project size 
thresholds, are not applicable. 

 
Infill residential development within improved residential areas or 
subdivisions existing prior to the adoption of this comprehensive plan, 
must ensure that its post-development stormwater runoff will not 
contribute pollutants which will cause the runoff from the entire improved 
area or subdivision to degrade receiving water bodies and their water 
quality as stated above. 

 
Recreation  
Neighborhood Parks  2 acres per 1,000 population 
Community Parks  3 acres per 1,000 population 
Regional Parks           5 acres per 1,000 population 

 
 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.4 New Development Future development will bear a proportionate cost 
of needed facility improvements through equitable and legally available means. 

 
Policy 1.4.1 Development will bear an equitable and proportionate share of the cost of 
providing new or expanded public facilities required to maintain adopted levels of service 
through mechanisms such as impact fees, capacity fees, developer dedications, developer 
contributions pursuant to land development regulations and special benefit 
assessment/taxing districts. 
 
Policy 1.4.2 The City shall continue to use the various impact fees to support the 
implementation of the Capital Improvements Program. 
 
Policy 1.4.3 The City shall regularly evaluate the following: 
 
a. Whether the present fee levies are adequate to address impacts of inflations. 
b. Whether the City needs to appropriate new impact fees. 
c. Whether capacity fees, user charges, special benefit assessment/taxing district and 
other mechanisms are adequately and fully meeting the fiscal demands placed on the City 
by new development. 
 
Policy 1.4.4 Development orders may only be issued where the required levels of service 
are being met concurrent with current or projected development.  A valid Certificate of 
Concurrency is proof that the applicant has met such criteria.  This approval is required 
prior to the issuance of any development order. 

 
Policy 1.4.5 The City Land Development Regulations shall be amended to require 
developers to supply data outlining the demand of their project on all infrastructure. 

 



 
 

115

Policy 1.4.6  All developers creating a deficiency upon any infrastructure facility with 
an adopted level of service standard shall upgrade the deficient facility so the adopted 
level of service is maintained. 
 
OBJECTIVE 1.5   Management of Process The City will seek to manage its fiscal 
resources efficiently in order to insure funds are available to implement capital facilities 
needs and priorities. 
 
Policy 1.5.1 Adoption of annual budgets shall include a specific capital budget, which 
shall implement adequate funding sources and be consistent with the Capital 
Improvements Element. 

 
Policy 1.5.2 To ensure optimum strategies for financial feasibility, the City shall review 
and evaluate available and potential funding sources to ensure a financial strategy exists 
to adequately fund the 5-Year Capital Improvements Plan.  If alternative funding sources 
are not successfully adopted and implemented on the schedule identified, the City shall 
either: 
 
a. Increase the rates of current revenue sources or implement other available sources 
such that the schedule of capital improvements is adequately funded in each budget year; 
or 
b. Amend the Plan Elements including level of service (LOS) standards and the 
schedule of capital improvements, as appropriate and necessary, such that internal 
consistency of the Plan and financial feasibility are maintained. 
 
Policy 1.5.3 To ensure optimum strategies for financial feasibility, the City shall review 
and evaluate available and potential funding sources to ensure a financial strategy exists 
to adequately fund long term improvements.  Alternative funding sources and 
mechanisms may include: 
 
a. Establishment of Municipal Services Benefit Units (MSBUs) for transportation 
funding. 
b. Implementation of impact fees to assist in the funding of new facilities. 
c. Encourage large projects to form Community Development Districts (CDDs) to 
share the cost of infrastructure funding. 
d. Establishment of special assessments on property owners. 
e. Combination of funding sources. 
 
Policy 1.5.4 The City will actively seek grants from federal, state and other sources 
(including private funding), where available and when appropriate, to supplement or fully 
finance capital facility construction. 
 
Policy 1.5.5 The City shall only consider long-term borrowing in the absence of current 
revenue to commit to capital improvements. 
 



 
 

116

Policy 1.5.6 The Capital Improvements Program shall embody and be consistent with the 
following: 
 
a. Maintenance of existing infrastructure, including renewal/replacement of worn-
out facilities and rehabilitation/reuse of existing facilities, shall be specifically projected 
and the funding identified. 
b. Debt obligations shall be specifically identified and projected to ensure 
compliance with debt covenants, including coverage requirements. 
c. A debt management strategy and set of criteria, which shall be based upon the 
debt management principles set out in Policy 1.5.6. 
d. Maintenance of levels of undesignated reserves adequate to serve sound public 
fiscal management purposes. 
e. Equity of the uses of a revenue source relative to the populace generating the 
revenue. 
 
Policy 1.5.7 Management of Debt The City shall manage debt issuance and obligations 
according to sound public fiscal management principles, including the following: 
 
a. Debt issuance will be included in the City’s long-term capital plan. 
b. The City will only issue debt to fund capital expenditures that have an expected 
life greater than five (5) years. 
c. Debt may not be issued for a period of more than forty (40) years or the expected 
useful life of the asset being funded, whichever is less. 
d. The maximum ratio of total debt service to total revenue shall be 15%. 
e. Total City debt will not exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the taxable value 
of property located within the City. 
f. Credit enhancement will be utilized when necessary to lower total borrowing 
costs. 

 
Policy 1.5.8  The City will expend revenue generated by the citizens of Wildwood for 
capital facilities in a manner consistent with this Comprehensive Plan only. 
 

 
 
 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS IMPLEMENTATION 
 
A 5-year schedule of capital improvements is included in this section of the Capital 
Improvements Element. This schedule is the mechanism by which the City of Wildwood 
utilizes to stage the timing, location, cost, and revenue sources required for capital 
projects that effect concurrency as derived from other elements of the Comprehensive 
Plan.  The 5-year schedule demonstrates the financial feasibility of the concurrency-
related capital needs of the City of Wildwood. 

 



2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:

Expenditures Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017

C-468 Interchange with Florida Turnpike $1,566,000 $829,000 $5,345,000 $4,000,000 

C-462 Widening from US 301 to C-466A $900,000 $5,800,000 

C-466 Widening from CR 209 to US 301 $450,000 $2,000,000 $3,500,000 

C-466A Phase III - Widening fromUS 301 to 
Powell Road

$2,300,000 $2,468,438 $2,200,000     

C-468 Widening from SR 44 to Turnpike $5,000,000 $4,100,000 
C-468 Widening from US 301 to Florida 

Turnpike
Total $5,216,000 $11,097,438 $16,045,000 $8,100,000 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
C-466W from CR 209 to US 301 

Resurfacing
CON $1,612,903 

Huey Street/CR 44a CSX Crossing - Rail 
Safety Project

$209,076 

SR 35 (US 301) from CR 470 to SR 44 PD&E $10,000 $1,000,000 

AD $1,361,993 
CON-SUP $1,379 

PE $8,500 
CON $619,769 

CON-SUP $5,155 
PE $2,262 

CON-SUP $206,108 
PE $27,759 $65,557 

ROW $9,260 $174,030 
CON $465,664 

CON-SUP $5,615 
Total $1,836,337 $1,798,954 $1,678,460 $0 $471,279

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
TIE and Connection Fees $2,525,959 $85,371 $128,057 $256,113 $341,484
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $2,525,959 $85,371 $128,057 $256,113 $341,484
Expenditures/ Projects:

DES $213,000 
CON $8,238,000

Champagne Farms Transmission System - 
24" main extension to SR 44

CON
$4,206,000

Champagne Farms Transmission System - 
24" main extension to CR 214/CR 209 

intersection
CON

$5,814,000
Expenditures Total $213,000 $0 $0 $18,258,000 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $2,312,959 $2,398,330 $2,526,387 -$15,475,500 -$15,134,016

City of Wildwood

City Revenue Source: Phase
Fiscal Year

Potable Water

SR 35 (US 301) N of CR 204 to Marion 
County Line - Add lanes and reconstruct

Champagne Farms WTP (Phase 1)

FDOT Projects 

Fiscal Year
PhaseCity Revenue Source:

CR 466 at US 301 - Add Turn Lane(s)

SR 35 (US 301) N of CR 232 to N of NE 
110 Road

City Projects 

US 301 at SR 44 - Add turn lane(s)

FDOT Funded Projects:
Fiscal Year

Phase

City Projects 

Sumter County Projects 

5 - Year Schedule of Capital Improvements
Transportation

Fiscal Year
PhaseCounty Funded Projects:



City of Wildwood
5 - Year Schedule of Capital Improvements

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
TIE and Connection Fees $3,269,884 149146 $223,718 $357,436 $596,580
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $3,269,884 $149,146 $223,718 $357,436 $596,580
Expenditures/ Projects:
Expenditures Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $3,269,884 $3,419,030 $3,642,748 $4,000,184 $4,596,764

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:

Expenditures Total $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017
General/Special/Debt $35,000

New Debt Borrowing/Bonds
Developer Contributions

Grants
All Other Revenues

Revenues Total: $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Expenditures/ Projects:

High Street Tot Lot CON $35,000
Expenditures Total $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
ANNUAL BALANCE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Italics = Unfunded
*Partially Funded

Fiscal Year

Phase
Fiscal Year

City Revenue Source:

Recreation Projects
City Projects 

City Revenue Source: Phase
Fiscal Year

Sanitary Sewer and Reuse Projects

City Revenue Source:

Phase

City Projects 

Drainage (Stormwater) Projects
City Projects 



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Ordinance O2013-02: The Villages of Wildwood 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Adoption of Ordinance O2013-02  

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: March 11, 2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

                                                                                                   
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
On January 14, 2013 the City Commission moved to transmit to the state reviewing agencies 
Ordinance O2013-02 which amends Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use Element of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. Policy 1.7.3 is specific to The Villages of Wildwood Development of Regional 
Impact (DRI). 
 
The City did not receive any comments from the state reviewing agencies on the amendment. 
 
The amendment accomplishes the following within The Villages of Wildwood DRI: 

 Removes the cap of a maximum of 66 residential dwelling units. 
 Increases the maximum residential acreage from 15% to 40%. 
 Adds clarifying language so that it is clear that the percentage distribution ranges from the 

minimum percentage to the maximum percentage. 
 
The text amendment will not grant additional entitlements.  All impacts have been addressed through 
the DRI process. Residential units can only be constructed through the land use conversion matrix 
contained within the DRI Development Order. Thus, any increase in residential units must be offset 
with a decrease in other uses as specified in the Development Order.  
 
Staff recommends the adoption of Ordinance O2013-02.  
 

 
 
Jason McHugh 
Development Services Coordinator 
 
 

 
Page 1 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text
PUBLIC HEARING - 2ND FINAL READING

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
 

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
1. b.

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
1 of 6 

ORDINANCE NO. O2013-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR TEXT AMENDMENTS TO 
POLICY 1.7.3 OF THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF 
THE ADOPTED LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; 
PERTAINING TO THE VILLAGES OF WILDWOOD 
DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT; IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMMUNITY PLANNING ACT 
OF 2011; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING 
FOR CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS,  The Villages of Wildwood Development of Regional Impact, herein 
referred to as “The Villages,” is a mixed-use development located within the municipal 
limits of the City of Wildwood, Florida; 

 
WHEREAS, The Villages is governed by The Villages of Wildwood Development 

of Regional Impact Development Order and Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use 
Element of the City of Wildwood Comprehensive Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Villages wish to amend Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use 

Element of the City of Wildwood Comprehensive.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED, by the City 
Commission of Wildwood, Florida, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive 
Plan pertains solely to The Villages. The lands contained within The Villages subject to 
Policy 1.7.3 are legally described as follows:  

 
VILLAGES OF WILDWOOD  

DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT 
 

SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, 
FLORIDA: 
 
THE LAND LYING IN SECTION 4, TOWNHSIP 19, SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SAID 
SECTION 4, RUN S00°22’17”W, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE 
SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SAID SECTION 4 A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO THE 

 
Page 2 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text
1. b.

plaw
Typewritten Text



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
2 of 6 

SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY OF WAY OF COUNTY ROAD 466A AND THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING; THENCE DEPARTING SAID WEST LINE S89°30’00”E, 
ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY A DISTANCE OF 2208.01 FEET; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID RIGHT OF WAY, S00°29’59”W, 294.99 FEET; THENCE 
S11°45’51”W, 115.75; THENCE S03°11’42”E, 88.78 FEET; THENCE 
S20°58’27”E, 62.51 FEET; THENCE S26°51’45”E, 59.88; THENCE S39°43’42”E, 
51.33 FEET; THENCE S72°01’33”W, 298.77 FEET TO A POINT ON THE ARC 
OF A CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 3,572.15 FEET 
AND A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF S21°25’12”E, 351.44 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 05°38’21”, A DISTANCE OF 351.58 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE 
NORTHWESTERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 40.00 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 122°10’41”, A DISTANCE OF 85.30 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE 
SOUTHEASTERLY AND HAVING  A RADIUS OF 171.00 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 98°54’59”, A DISTANCE OF 295.22 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH ½ OF SAID SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE 
N89°32’24”W, ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 249.33 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE ARC OF A NON-TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE 
NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 170.00 FEET AND A CHORD 
BEARING AND DISTANCE OF N26°31’56”W, 303.33 FEET TO WHICH A 
RADIAL LINE BEARS S53°23’12”E; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 126°17’27”, AN 
ARC DISTANCE OF 374.71 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE 
N89°40’39”W, 166.79 FEET; THENCE S00°19’21”W, 269.89 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH ½ OF SAID SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE 
N89°32’24”W, ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 521.40 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 789.00 FEET OF SAID 
SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH LINE N00°22’17”E, 
ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 15.00 FEET OF THE WEST 789.00 FEET OF 
SAID NORTH ½ OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST 
LINE N89°32’24”W, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 298.30 FEET 
TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF WEST 490.70 FEET OF SAID NORTH ½ 
OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH LINE 
N00°22’17”E, ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 466.70 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 481.70 FEET OF SAID NORTH 
½ OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE 
N89°32’24”W, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 490.70 FEET TO A 
POINT ON SAID WEST LINE THE SOUTHWEST ¼; THENCE DEPARTING 
SAID NORTH LINE N00°22’17”E, ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 

 
Page 3 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text
1.b.

plaw
Typewritten Text



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
3 of 6 

794.16 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; LESS:  THE RIGHT OF WAY OF 
COUNTY ROAD 139; AND 
 
SECTIONS 8,  9, 16 AND 17, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND BEING PORTIONS OF SECTIONS 8, 9, 16 AND 17, 
TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
LYING SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 
OF CSX RAILWAY AND LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF THE 
NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NUMBER 44, 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGIN AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF "KERL & MILLER SUBDIVISION 
1ST ADDITION", ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN 
PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 55, SUMTER COUNTY RECORDS, FLORIDA; THENCE 
N65°13'12"W, ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE THEREOF AND ALONG 
THE NORTHWESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF FOR A DISTANCE OF 
874.89 FEET; THENCE S22°30'28"W 716.00 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF 
THE NW 1/4 OF THE SW 1/4 OF AFORESAID SECTION 8; THENCE 
N89°28'01"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE FOR A DISTANCE OF 611.48 FEET; 
THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH LINE, S00°25'18"E, 471.13 FEET TO THE 
NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NUMBER 44; 
THENCE THE FOLLOWING 22 COURSES ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE: S70°31'17"E, 296.92 FEET; THENCE S71°43'13"E, 
300.33 FEET; THENCE S70°31'17"E, 350.12 FEET; THENCE S69°02'54"E, 
2190.00 FEET; THENCE N20°57'06"E, 293.00 FEET; THENCE S69°02'54"E, 
312.68 FEET; THENCE S00°40'13"W, 307.04 FEET; THENCE S69°02'55"E, 
390.88 FEET; THENCE S20°57'06"W, 5.00 FEET; THENCE S69°02'55"E, 
1,118.84 FEET; THENCE S69°02'53"E, 943.81 FEET; THENCE N18°38'47"E, 
10.01 FEET; THENCE S69°02'55"E, 337.76 FEET; THENCE S20°57'06"W, 5.00 
FEET; THENCE S69°02'58"E, 131.89 FEET; THENCE S69°02'49"E, 68.11 
FEET; THENCE S68°11'21"E, 200.02 FEET; THENCE S20°57'06"W, 5.00 
FEET; THENCE S65°58'19"E, 400.58 FEET; THENCE S64°37'01"E, 200.60 
FEET; THENCE S65°48'19"E, 300.48 FEET; THENCE S67°34'23"E, A 
DISTANCE OF 271.85 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF THE WESTERLY 
LINE OF OAK PARK, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED 
IN PLAT BOOK 4, PAGE 32, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE DEPARTING AFORESAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF 
WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD NO. 44, RUN N00°37'16"E, ALONG THE WEST 
LINE OF SAID OAK PARK A DISTANCE OF 606.23 FEET TO A POINT ON 
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID "OAK PARK"; THENCE S89°43'00"E ALONG SAID 
NORTH LINE 401.81 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE LANDS 
DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 947, PAGE 7, RECORDED IN THE 

 
Page 4 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text
1. b.

plaw
Typewritten Text



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
4 of 6 

PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE N00°33'26"E 
ALONG SAID EAST LINE 394.18 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 
THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 1419, PAGE 616, 
RECORDED IN PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
THENCE N60°44'37"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 834.76 FEET TO THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 
1419, PAGE 616; THENCE N00°35'51"E, ALONG SAID WEST LINE A 
DISTANCE OF 536.64 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 
LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 1419, PAGE 616 AND THE 
NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 16; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID WEST LINE S89°30'39"E, ALONG SAID NORTH LINES 
THEREOF A DISTANCE OF 56.08 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF SAID 
NORTH LINES AND THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF THE CSX RAILWAY; 
(THE FOLLOWING 7 COURSES ARE ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY 
OF THE CSX RAILWAY); THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH LINES 
N51°31'53"W, 1,333.10 FEET; THENCE S00°29'25"W, 12.69 FEET; THENCE 
N51°31'53"W, 30.87 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE 
CONCAVE SOUTHWEST AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 1,928.30 FEET; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH 
A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13°40'39", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 460.32 FEET; 
THENCE N65°12'32"W, 2,448.41 FEET; THENCE N00°24'18"E, 10.98 FEET; 
THENCE N65°12'32"W, 1,418.92 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF KERL AND 
MILLER SUBDIVISION 1ST ADDITION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 
AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 55, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY OF 
THE CSX RAILWAY S24°48'19"W, ALONG SAID EAST LINE A DISTANCE OF 
1,133.40 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
 
AND 
 
A PORTION OF SECTIONS 8 AND 9, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 
EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
THAT PORTION OF THE CSX RAILWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY ADJACENT TO AND 
NORTHEASTERLY OF TAX PARCELS G08=096, G08=019, G08=022, 
G09=009 AND G09=008; SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY BOUNDED ON THE WEST BY 
THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EASTERLY LINE OF “KERL & 
MILLER SUBDIVISION 1st ADDITION” AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, 
PAGE 55 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA AND 
BOUNDED ON THE EAST BY A LINE BEING AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE 
SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF AFOREMENTIONED CSX RAILWAY 
BEGINNING AT ITS INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 
9, LESS THE RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR COUNTY ROAD NUMBER 44A. 

1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
5 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
5 of 6 

 
AND 
 
THAT LAND LYING IN SECTIONS 8 AND 9, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 
EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 
1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8 RUN N00°29'25"E, ALONG THE EAST LINE THEREOF A 
DISTANCE OF 317.95 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF C-44A 
ACCORDING TO THE RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP ON FILE IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE AND ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
THE FOLLOWING COURSES: N57°12'30"W, 18.62 FEET; THENCE N65°08'45"W, 
55.69 FEET; THENCE N64°55'26"W, 27.20 FEET; THENCE N65°09'05"W, 652.79 
FEET; THENCE S71°31'02"W, 3.69 FEET; THENCE N65°35'30"W, 10.02 FEET TO 
THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF COUNTY ROAD 139 AS RECORDED IN 
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2088, PAGE 193, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
AND ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY THE FOLLOWING 
COURSES: N19°25'59"W, 39.56 FEET; THENCE N25°04'43"E, 239.29 FEET TO THE 
NORTH BOUNDARY OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 
2131, PAGE 399, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA.; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY AND ALONG SAID NORTH 
BOUNDARY AND THE SOUTHEASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF, S65°09'05"E, 
715.62 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING THE SOUTHEASTERLY EXTENSION OF SAID 
NORTH BOUNDARY, S00°57'59"W, 295.85 FEET TO SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY OF C-44A; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY THE 
FOLLOWING COURSES: N65°02'56"W, 21.89 FEET; THENCE N57°12'30"W, 20.22 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.    

SECTION 2. The text amendments to Policy 1.7.3 of the Future Land Use 
Element of the City of Wildwood Comprehensive Plan are shown in attached “Exhibit A.” 
The amendments are attached hereto and are shown with strikethrough for deletions 
and underline for additions. 
 
 SECTION 3. With the recommendations of the City Commission, the proposed 
amendments are hereby transmitted by the City Commission to the state land planning 
agency.  
 
 SECTION 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith, be, and 
the same are hereby repealed.  

1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
6 of 17



 
Ordinance No. O2013-02 

The Villages of Wildwood Text Amendment 
6 of 6 

 SECTION 5. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a Court or competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining portions of said Ordinance.  
 
 SECTION 6. This Ordinance, if the amendment is not timely challenged, shall be 
effective 31 days after the state land planning agency notifies the local government that 
the plan amendment package is complete. If timely challenged, this Ordinance shall 
become effective on the date the state land planning agency or the Administration 
Commission enters a final order determining this Ordinance to be in compliance. No 
development orders, development permits, or land uses dependent upon this Ordinance 
may be issued or commenced before it has become effective. If a final order of 
noncompliance is issued by the Administration Commission, this Ordinance may 
nevertheless be made effective by adoption of a resolution affirming its effective status, 
a copy of which resolution shall be sent to the state land planning agency. 
 

DONE AND ORDAINED this    day of    , 2013, by 
the City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
  
       CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

S E A L  
 
 
             
 Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:_______________________ 
     Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk   
 
 
First Reading:      
 
 
Second Reading:      
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
      
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
7 of 17



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance O2013-02 

“Exhibit A” 

The Villages of Wildwood 

Development of Regional Impact 

Future Land Use Element Policy 1.7.3 

 

1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text
8 of 17



Policy 1.7.3 The Villages of Wildwood DRI The City of Wildwood recognizes the 
uniqueness of the property known as The Villages of Wildwood DRI which is designated 
as such on the City of Wildwood’s Future Land Use Map.  The Villages of Sumter 
Development of Regional Impact (DRI) 3rd Substantial Deviation, Application for 
Development Approval (ADA) serves as supporting data and analysis for the project. The 
DRI is composed of a town center, office, commercial, institutional and other uses which 
are only a portion of the entire The Villages of Sumter DRI. Thus, the land uses lying 
within Wildwood are only a small part of the entire development plan and a portion of the 
allocation of mixed uses within the DRI. The ADA provides a comprehensive analysis of 
the suitability of the area and impacts from the DRI. This DRI analysis can be used by the 
City of Wildwood to guide the timing, location, type and amount of future development. 
Thus, the ADA, sufficiency responses and the DRI Development Order provide 
supporting data and analysis for the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) and text amendments. 
The boundaries of The Villages of Wildwood DRI are identified on the City’s Future 
Land Use Map and subject to the following: 
 

a. The Villages of Wildwood DRI is a mixed use development that may include a 
functional integration of residential, retail, office, medical, attraction, hotel, 
institutional, recreation uses and supporting infrastructure (e.g. roads, water, 
sewer, etc.). All uses within the Villages of Wildwood may be located within the 
Town Center except for the Medical Campus.  The planning timeframe for the 
project is 2008 through build-out in 2014. The maximum non-residential land use 
intensity shall not exceed 0.5 Floor Area Ratio (FAR), except for Town Centers 
and Medical Campus which shall not exceed 3.0 FAR. The maximum residential 
density shall not exceed 7 dwelling units per net residential acre and is limited to 
a maximum of 66 units.  All residential units are age-restricted and must be 
established through the use of the land use-trade off mechanism within the 
adopted DRI development order.  Consistent with these intensity/density 
standards, the Village of Wildwood is limited to the following development 
entitlements: 

 
Retail  1,288,258 SF 
Office  14,400 SF 
Hotel  200 rooms 
Medical 300 hospital beds or equivalent medical uses 
Theatre 8 screens 
Institutional 49,714 SF 
 
These entitlements may be converted through mechanisms described in the DRI 
development order.  Conversions must not create an increase in public facility 
impacts and are limited to a maximum of 25% of the approved entitlements to 
maintain the character of development.  Phasing for the project is based on 
development units (e.g. non-residential square footage and hospital beds) and is 
approximately divided into three year increments, but may proceed more quickly 
than projected. Interim land use activities for undeveloped land may include 
farming, and cattle and buffalo husbandry, provided such activities are not in 

1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
9 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text



conflict with the Wildlife Habitat Management Plan approved by the FFWCC for 
the DRI. The mix of uses and distribution of uses (not including support 
infrastructure) as a percent of the project’s acreage shall be consistent with the 
following minimum and maximum ranges are as follows: 

  
Use Minimum 

Permitted 
Maximum 
Permitted 

Commercial: Including Retail, Office, Hotel 
Convention/Performing Arts Center and Theater 

55% 68% 

Residential 0% 40% 
Institutional/Educational 1% 3% 
Medical Campus: Including Hospital, Clinic, 
Professional Offices, Pharmacy, Assisted Living 
Facility/ Skilled Nursing Facility 

5% 15% 

 
  Commercial: Including Retail, Office, Hotel 

 Convention/Performing Arts Center and Theater   55% to 68% 
 Residential  0% to 15% 
 Institutional/Educational  1% to 3% 
 Medical Campus: Including Hospital, Clinic, 
 Professional Offices, Pharmacy, Assisted Living 
 Facility/Skilled Nursing Facility   5% to 15% 
 
  This policy does not guarantee the approval of development orders which are in 

accordance with the percent distribution of acreage mix. The approval of 
development orders shall be consistent with this policy and other policies under 
Policy 1.7.3 and future conditions maps. 

 
  No vertical construction may occur within the Villages of Wildwood until the 

effective date of a Villages of Sumter DRI development order amendment to 
remove the entitlements identified above. 

 
b. The Villages of Wildwood DRI must be consistent with the supporting criteria in 

this policy.  Policy 1.7.3 restates the relevant provisions within the City’s plan as 
it relates to the DRI, but exempts the project from all other comprehensive plan 
standards which do not relate to the project or have been superseded by Policy 
1.7.3.  This exemption is necessary in order to ensure that the DRI is developed 
consistently with the remainder of the Villages of Sumter DRI and considers those 
land uses that are outside of, but support, the portion within the City. The DRI 
must also be consistent with the City of Wildwood FLUM and future conditions 
maps. 
 

c. The Villages of Wildwood DRI will meet all required local, state and federal 
regulations as specified in the DRI development order and zoning requirements.  
 

1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text
10 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text



d. The Villages of Wildwood DRI as analyzed in the ADA is determined to be 
suitable for the land uses proposed for the site and will remain compatible with 
the surrounding area through design requirements including standards for 
buffering and landscaping. The project will also be developed as an intense urban 
center providing the benefits of a mixed use project that will encourage pedestrian 
activity and other modes of transportation including sidewalks bike lanes and golf 
cart paths. 
 

e. The Villages of Wildwood DRI as analyzed in the ADA has determined there are 
approximately 25 acres of wetlands on-site. The wetlands will be protected or 
mitigated in accordance with the Southwest Florida Water Management District’s 
Environmental Resource Permit (ERP) requirements. Wetlands impacted will be 
limited to isolated wetlands and may be mitigated off-site as provided by the 
conditions of the ERP. No development will be permitted within protected 
wetlands in accordance with the development order. Impacted wetlands can be 
developed in accordance with the DRI development order as long as the wetlands 
are mitigated as required under the ERP. 
 

f. The Villages of Wildwood DRI as analyzed in the ADA has identified the nesting 
of the Sherman Fox Squirrel on-site. No other listed plant or animal species or 
other environmental features have been identified. A habitat management plan 
must be developed and incorporated into the DRI development order which will 
direct the protection and/or mitigation of impacts to any listed species. The 
Habitat Management Plan also requires coordination with the Florida Game and 
Freshwater Fish Commission. 
 

g. Development of the Villages of Wildwood DRI will require coordination between 
the developer, the City of Wildwood and Sumter County. This may include the 
development of any necessary agreements between the developer of the DRI, one 
or more Community Development Districts, Sumter County and the City of 
Wildwood, either through joint or separate agreements, in the provision of 
services. The developer will also coordinate with the City in regards to capital 
improvement planning as required in this policy. 
 

h. New development within the Villages of Wildwood DRI must not degrade the 
adopted level of service for the public facilities required to serve this 
development. Water and sewer facilities will be provided by the Central Sumter 
Utility Company and not by the City of Wildwood. For transportation facilities, 
the DRI development order includes requirements for mitigating transportation 
impacts. If improvements are necessary, then the developer will coordinate with 
the City regarding any necessary capital planning which may include agreements 
to ensure the roads are mitigated. 
 

i. The Villages of Wildwood DRI will be developed in accordance with the 
following level of service standards and shall be used as the basis for determining 
the availability of facility capacity and the demand generated for the DRI. 

1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text
11 of 17



Decisions regarding the issuance of development orders and permits for the DRI 
will be based upon coordination of the development requirements adopted as part 
Policy 1.7.3. 

 
Level of Service Standards for the Villages of Wildwood DRI 

 
(These level of service standards only apply within the boundaries of The Villages of 

Wildwood DRI as identified on the FLUM) 
 

TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES LEVEL OF 
SERVICE

Principal Arterial D 
Minor Arterial and others D 

POTABLE WATER AND SANITARY SEWER
LEVEL OF 
SERVICE

 
Land Use Unit

Sanitary Sewer 
(GPD)

Potable Water 
(GPD) 

Residential Dwelling unit/day 115.9 118.6 
Office Gross SF 0.010 0.10 
Hotel Rooms 100 100 
Retail/Service Gross SF 0.15 0.15 
Hospital Beds 250 250 
Theater Seat 5 5 
Educational/Institutional Gross SF 0.15 0.15 
DRAINAGE FACILITIES 
Stormwater facilities shall be designed to accommodate the 15-year, 24-hour design 
storm to meet the water quality and quantity standards below.
WATER QUALITY and QUANTITY
Treatment and attenuation of stormwater runoff shall be required for all development, 
redevelopment and, when expansion occurs, existing developed areas.  Infill residential 
development within improved residential areas or subdivisions, which existed prior to the 
adoption of the comprehensive plan, must ensure that its post-development stormwater 
runoff will not contribute pollutants which will cause the runoff from the entire improved 
area to degrade receiving waters.  Water quality and attenuation shall be deemed 
acceptable when the applicant has demonstrated compliance with Southwest Florida 
Water Management District Chapter 40D-4 and Chapter 40D-40, F.A.C. 
RECREATION FACILITIES 

The recreation facilities necessary for this site are provided in the Sumter County
portion of the Villages of Sumter DRI.  The developer may include parks and 
other recreation uses within the City but these facilities are in excess of required 
recreation level of service to serve the project. Thus, the developer will not rely 
on nor degrade the City’s level of service standard for recreation.   

 
 

 
j. The Villages of Wildwood DRI will include as part of this project sidewalks, bike 

lanes and golf cart paths to ensure the project is interconnected with the remainder 
of The Villages. 
 

k. The Villages of Wildwood DRI will mitigate for any required affordable housing 
impacts in accordance with the adopted development order. 
 

l. The developer will coordinate with the City of Wildwood in the provision of 
transportation facilities that may be necessary to mitigate for the DRI’s impacts. 

1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text
12 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text



No other public facilities (such as potable water and sewer) will be provided by 
the City of Wildwood. As part of any required mitigation, the developer will 
coordinate with the City to ensure the mitigation can be considered as part of the 
City’s required capital improvement planning. The developer will also coordinate 
with any water suppliers in accordance with the Consumptive Use Permit to 
ensure that adequate water supplies are available to serve the DRI. 
 

m. Amendments to the DRI through the Notice of Proposed Change process pursuant 
to s. 3 80.06(19), FS, shall not require a plan amendment provided the change 
does not include the addition of land or a new use and is otherwise consistent with 
the comprehensive plan. Changes to a DRI Development Order adopted by the 
City of Wildwood shall be reflected in the Conceptual Master Plan and other 
zoning support documents as a ministerial function. 
 

n. The Application for Development Approval, sufficiency responses and DRI 
Development Order for The Villages of Wildwood DRI provide the supporting 
data and analysis for the DRI land use designation on the FLUM. 
 

o. The Villages of Wildwood DRI Development Order ensures consistency of the 
DRI land use designation on the FLUM with Policy 1.7.3 and future conditions 
maps of the Wildwood Comprehensive Plan. 

 

1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text
13 of 17



WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

December 2012 Map 1

Villages of Wildwood DRI
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n -

 Vi
lla

ge
s o

f W
ild

wo
od

 D
RI

.m
xd

 - 1
2/2

1/2
01

2 3
:12

:40
 P

M 
- to

ne
al

Legend
Villages of Wildwood DRI

1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text
14 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text



K
M

K
S

R
V

11
-1

2-
12

1 
of

 

D
at

e:
D

ra
w

n 
by

:

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

C
he

ck
ed

 b
y:

R

0
60
0

12
00

18
00

24
00

30
00

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

, F
lo

rid
a 

 3
21

62
10

20
 L

ak
e 

S
um

te
r L

an
di

ng

M
A

S
TE

R
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
P

LA
N

S
C

A
LE

 IN
 F

E
E

T

Te
l N

o.
 (3

52
)7

53
-4

74
7 

 F
ax

 N
o.

 (3
52

)7
53

-1
29

6
10

38
 L

ak
e 

S
um

te
r L

an
di

ng
   

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

, F
L 

32
16

2
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l, 

LL
C

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

N
um

be
r: 

 2
74

95

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

, 2
01

2

M
A

P
 O

F 
V

IL
LA

G
E

S
 O

F
W

IL
D

W
O

O
D

 D
R

I
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y 1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text
15 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text



K
M

K
S

R
V

11
-1

2-
12

2 
of

 

D
at

e:
D

ra
w

n 
by

:

R
ev

is
io

ns
:

C
he

ck
ed

 b
y:

R

0
30
0

60
0

90
0

12
00

15
00

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

, F
lo

rid
a 

 3
21

62
10

20
 L

ak
e 

S
um

te
r L

an
di

ng

M
A

S
TE

R
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
P

LA
N

S
C

A
LE

 IN
 F

E
E

T

Te
l N

o.
 (3

52
)7

53
-4

74
7 

 F
ax

 N
o.

 (3
52

)7
53

-1
29

6
10

38
 L

ak
e 

S
um

te
r L

an
di

ng
   

Th
e 

V
ill

ag
es

, F
L 

32
16

2
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l, 

LL
C

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

N
um

be
r: 

 2
74

95

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

, 2
01

2

M
A

P
 O

F 
V

IL
LA

G
E

S
 O

F
W

IL
D

W
O

O
D

 D
R

I
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y 1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text
16 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text



Future Land Use 
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

December 2012 Map 1

Villages of Wildwood DRI
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Ex
ist

ing
 FL

U 
- V

illa
ge

s o
f W

ild
wo

od
 D

RI
.m

xd
 - 1

2/2
1/2

01
2 3

:11
:12

 PM
 - t

on
ea

l

C-44A

E SR 44

PO
WE

LL
 R

D

C-466A

C-
46

2 E

S B
UE

NA
 VI

ST
A B

LV
D

PO
WE

LL
 ST

CLEVELAND AVE/C-466A

E SR 44

Legend
Villages of Wildwood DRI

City Limits

Villages of Wildwood
DRI

COM

REC

I

COM

RIO

HDR

PF

PF

CMU

CMU

CMU PF

MDR

COM

ECNMU

1. b 
Page 

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
17 of 17

plaw
Typewritten Text



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
The app
annexatio
213/Walk
 
Annexati
Planning
property.
 
The prop
Area has
property.
 
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: Ord

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/ISS

plicant, Cha
on applicati
ker Road an

on into the
 Area with 
.  

perty is inten
s designated
. 

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

dinance O2

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

UES: 

ad Hughes 
ion for a 2
d SR 44. Th

 City is ap
Sumter Cou

nded to be 
d the subject

approval of

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

2013-06: A
 

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

on behalf 
.67 +/- acre

he property t

propriate be
unty, and th

utilized as a
t property as

f Ordinance

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Annexation

Appro

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

of Hughes 
e property 
to be annexe

ecause the 
he property 

an office for
s Industrial w

e O2013-06.

ITY OF W

MARY 

n of Hughes

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

 Brother’s
located just
ed is a portio

property is
owner is m

r a construc
which is con

WILDWOO

s Brother’s

nance O20

TING: F
ting  

 

 
e:   

LLC, has 
t north of t
on of Parcel 

 contained 
oving forwa

ction compa
sistent with 

OD 

s Property

013-06 

February 25

submitted a
the intersec
G07=133. 

within the 
ard with dev

ny. The Joi
the intended

y 

5, 2013 

a voluntary 
ction of CR 

City’s Joint 
veloping the 

nt Planning 
d use of the 

 

plaw
Typewritten Text
PUBLIC HEARING - 2ND FINAL READING

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
-----------------------------

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
March 11, 2013

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
1.c.Page 1 of 5

plaw
Typewritten Text



 

 
Ordinance O2013-06 

Hughes Brothers Annexation 
Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-06 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 2.67 ACRES BEING 
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF CR 213 
AND NORTH OF SR 44; IN SECTION 7, TOWNSHIP 19 
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST; WHICH IS CONTIGUOUS TO 
THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING THAT SECTION 1-14 OF THE CITY 
OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES IS AMENDED 
TO INCLUDE THE ANNEXED PROPERTY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of 
Wildwood, Florida: 

 
 SECTION 1.  Based upon the petition of the owner of the following described real 
property, which is generally located on the east side CR 213 and north of SR 44, to be 
annexed into the City the property is hereby annexed into the City of Wildwood pursuant 
to Section 171.044, Florida Statutes.  The City Commission finds that the property is 
located within the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter County, is contiguous to the 
municipal limits of the City of Wildwood, and meets all legal requirements for 
annexation.  The annexed property lying in Sumter County, Florida owned by Hughes 
Brothers, LLC is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Portion of Parcel # G07=133 
2.67 +/- Acres 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

THAT PORTION OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST  1/4 OF SECTION 7, 
TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, DESCRIBED 
AS FOLLOWS: FOR A POINT OF REFERENCE, COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF THE SAID NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SOUTHWEST  1/4, THENCE  RUN 
S.00°10'59'W. ALONG  THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SOUTHWEST 
1/4, A DISTANCE OF 560.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THOSE 
LANDS AS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 583, PAGE 518 OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE RUN S.89°57'06'E. 
ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS 
BOOK 583, PAGE 518, A DISTANCE OF 25.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST 

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
1.c.Page 2 of 5



 

Ordinance O2013-06 
Hughes Brothers Annexation 

Page 2 of 3 
 

RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY  ROAD  No.  213 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE CONTINUE S.89°57'06'E.  ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 
396.00 FEET, THENCE S.00°10'59'W. A DISTANCE OF 170.00 FEET, THENCE 
N.89°57'06"W. A  DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET, THENCE S.00°10'59'W. A 
DISTANCE OF 170.00 FEET, THENCE N.89°57'06'W. A  DISTANCE OF 346.00 
FEET TO A  POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD No. 
213, THENCE N.00°10'59"E. ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE A DISTANCE 
OF 340.00  FEET  TO  THE  POINT  OF  BEGINNING;  LESS  AND  EXCEPT  THE  
NORTH  25.00  FEET  THEREOF. SUBJECT TO COVENANTS, RESTRICTIONS AND 
EASEMENTS OF RECORD. 
 
 
 SECTION 2.  All of the above described annexed property shall liable for its 
proportionate share of the future and existing indebtedness of the City of Wildwood. 
 
  

SECTION 3.  All of the above described annexed property shall be subject to the 
laws and ordinance of the City of Wildwood as if this territory had been a part of the City 
of Wildwood at the time of passage and approval of said laws and ordinances. 
 
  

SECTION 4.  Until such time as the City amends its comprehensive plan, the 
current Sumter County zoning classification and future land use regulations will remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
  

SECTION 5.  Section 1-14 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended to include the legal description of the annexed parcel pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  
 
  

SECTION 6. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared invalid for any purpose, 
the remaining portion shall remain valid and in full force and effect. 
 
  

SECTION 7.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon final approval by the City 
Commission. 
  

 

plaw
Typewritten Text
1.c.Page 3 of 5



 

 
Ordinance O2013-06 

Hughes Brothers Annexation 
Page 3 of 3 

 DONE AND ORDAINED this ____  day of _____, 2013, by the City Commission 
of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
SEAL 
 
ATTEST: CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 
___________________________ _____________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
 
First Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Second Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

plaw
Typewritten Text
1.c.Page 4 of 5



Hughes Brothers 
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

February 2013 Annexation

LOCATION MAP
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 130 260

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - H

ug
he

s.m
xd

 - 2
/18

/20
13

 11
:49

:14
 AM

 - t
on

ea
l

Legend
HUGHES ANNEXATION

Parcels

City of Wildwood

CR
 21

3

1. c. 
Page 5 of 5



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
The pro
approxim
annexed 
 
Annexati
Planning
 
The prop
the 466/3
propertie
consisten
 
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: Ord

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/ISS

perty owne
mate 1 acre 

is a portion 

on into the
 Area with S

perty is inten
301 Mixed 

es to be dev
nt with the Jo

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

dinance O2

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

UES: 

er, Gary W
piece of pr
of Parcel D

 City is ap
Sumter Coun

nded to be u
Use District
eloped as c
oint Plannin

approval of

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

2013-07: A
 

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

illiams, has
roperty loca
18=038. 

propriate be
nty, and the 

utilized for s
 of the Join
ommercial o
g Area. 

f Ordinance

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Annexation

Appro

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

s submitted 
ated along C

ecause the 
applicant is 

ervice and s
nt Planning 
or residentia

e O2013-07.

ITY OF W

MARY 

n of William

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

a volunta
CR 466 eas

property is
moving forw

sales of law
Area. The 4

al. As such, 

WILDWOO

ms Property

nance O20

TING: F
ting  

 

 
e:   

ry annexati
st of CR 20

 contained 
ward with de

n mowers. T
466/301 Mix
the intended

OD 

y 

013-07 

February 25

ion applicat
09. The pro

within the 
veloping the

The property
xed Use Dis
d use of the

5, 2013 

tion for an 
perty to be 

City’s Joint 
e property. 

y lies within 
strict allows 

e property is 

1. d. 
Page 1 of 5

plaw
Typewritten Text
PUBLIC HEARING - 2ND FINAL READING

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
----------------------------

plaw
Typewritten Text
March 11, 2013

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text



 

 
Ordinance O2013-07 
Williams Annexation 

Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-07 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 0.98 ACRES BEING 
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF CR 466 
AND EAST OF CR 209; IN SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 18 
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST; WHICH IS CONTIGUOUS TO 
THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING THAT SECTION 1-14 OF THE CITY 
OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES IS AMENDED 
TO INCLUDE THE ANNEXED PROPERTY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of 
Wildwood, Florida: 

 
 SECTION 1.  Based upon the petition of the owner of the following described real 
property, which is generally located on the south side of CR 466 and east of CR 209, to 
be annexed into the City the property is hereby annexed into the City of Wildwood 
pursuant to Section 171.044, Florida Statutes.  The City Commission finds that the 
property is located within the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter County, is 
contiguous to the municipal limits of the City of Wildwood, and meets all legal 
requirements for annexation.  The annexed property lying in Sumter County, Florida 
owned by Gary Williams, Trustee is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Portion of Parcel # D18=038 
0.98 +/- Acres 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

From the Northwest corner of the East ½ of the Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of 
Section 18, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, Sumter County, Florida, run S 00° 
00’03” E, along the west line of the North ½ of the East ½ of the Southwest ¼ of the 
Northwest ¼ of said Section 18, a distance of 65.08 feet, to the south right-of-way of C-
466; thence N 89° 30’42” E, along said south right-of-way, a distance of 238.72 feet, to 
the Point of Beginning of the following described parcel; from said Point of Beginning, 
continue N 89°30'42" E, along said south right-of-way, a distance of 142.89 feet, to a 
point that is 280.00 feet west of the East line of the North ½ of the East ½ of the 
Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of said Section 18; thence leaving said south right-of-

1. d. 
Page 2 of 5



 

Ordinance O2013-07 
Williams Annexation 

Page 2 of 3 
 

way, run S 00°00'05" E, and parallel with said East line of the North ½ of the East ½ of 
the Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼, a distance of 300.00 feet; thence S 89°30'42" W, 
a distance of 142.90 feet; thence N 00°00'03" W, a distance of 300.00 feet, to the Point 
of Beginning, and end of this description.  
Area described contains  42,866.92 square feet, 0.984 acres. 
Subject to easements, restrictions, reservations, and rights-of-way of record, if any. 
 
 
 SECTION 2.  All of the above described annexed property shall liable for its 
proportionate share of the future and existing indebtedness of the City of Wildwood. 
 
  

SECTION 3.  All of the above described annexed property shall be subject to the 
laws and ordinance of the City of Wildwood as if this territory had been a part of the City 
of Wildwood at the time of passage and approval of said laws and ordinances. 
 
  

SECTION 4.  Until such time as the City amends its comprehensive plan, the 
current Sumter County zoning classification and future land use regulations will remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
  

SECTION 5.  Section 1-14 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended to include the legal description of the annexed parcel pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  
 
  

SECTION 6. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared invalid for any purpose, 
the remaining portion shall remain valid and in full force and effect. 
 
  

SECTION 7.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon final approval by the City 
Commission. 
  

1. d. 
Page 3 of 5



 

 
Ordinance O2013-07 
Williams Annexation 

Page 3 of 3 

 DONE AND ORDAINED this ____  day of _____, 2013, by the City Commission 
of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
SEAL 
 
ATTEST: CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 
___________________________ _____________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
 
First Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Second Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

1. d. 
Page 4 of 5



WILLIAMS
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

February 2013 ANNEXATION

LOCATION MAP
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - W

illia
ms

 An
ne

xa
tio

n.m
xd

 - 2
/18

/20
13

 10
:52

:59
 AM

 - t
on

ea
l

Legend
Williams Annexation

City of Wildwood

Parcels

CR  466

U
S

 3
0

1

WILLIAMS

1. d. 
Page 5 of 5



SUBJEC
 
 
REQUES
 
 
 
 

CONTRA
 
 
 
 
BUDGET
 

 Annua
 Capita
 N/A 

    
 

HISTORY
 
The app
annexatio
222 west
 
All but th
omitted f
 
Annexati
Planning
propertie
 
Further, 
(located 
 
 
Staff rec
 

 
 
 
Jason Mc
Developm
 
 

 

CITY

CT: Ord

STED ACTIO

 W
 

 
 

ACT:  
Effe
Man

T IMPACT: 

al 
al 

                          

Y/FACTS/ISS

licant, Gary 
on applicatio
t of US 301. 

he north 100
from the orig

on into the
 Area with S

es that create

the applican
to the west o

commends a

cHugh 
ment Service

Y COMMIS

dinance O2

ON: 

Work Sessio
Regular Mee

N/A 
ective Date: 
naging Divis

 
 
FUNDING S
EXPENDITU
 
                          

UES: 

Thurston o
on for the n
 

0’ feet of Pa
ginal annexa

 City is ap
Sumter Cou
e enclaves.  

nt is moving 
of Peppertre

approval of

 

es Coordina

SSION OF

EXECUT

2013-08: A
 

on (Report O
eting 

__________
sion / Dept: 

SOURCE: 
URE ACCO

                          

n behalf of 
north 100’ fe

rcel D30=00
tion because

propriate be
nty. The app

forward with
ee Apartmen

f Ordinance

ator 

F THE CI
 

TIVE SUMM
 

Annexation

Appro

Only) DAT
 S

 

Vend
____ Term

 

UNT: 

                 

the R. Willia
eet of Parce

03 was anne
e it would ha

ecause the 
proval of the

h a 40 acre 
nts) that inclu

e O2013-08.

ITY OF W

MARY 

n of North 1

oval of Ordin

TE OF MEET
Special Meet

dor/Entity:  
mination Date

 
 
 

am Futch, T
el D30=003. 

exed into the
ave created 

property is
e Joint Plan

residential s
udes the pro

WILDWOO

100’ of Par

nance O20

TING: F
ting  

 

 
e:   

Trustee, has
The proper

e City in 200
an enclave.

 contained 
ning Area a

subdivision o
operty subjec

OD 

rcel D30=0

013-08 

February 25

s submitted 
rty is located

05. The nort
 

within the 
llows the Ci

on the Futch
ct to the ann

03 

5, 2013 

a voluntary 
d along CR 

th 100’ was

City’s Joint 
ity to annex 

h properties 
nexation.    

1. e. 
Page 1 of 4

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
PUBLIC HEARING - 2ND FINAL READING

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text
----------------------------

plaw
Typewritten Text
March 11, 2013

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text



 

 
Ordinance O2013-08 

North 100’ of Parcel D30=003 (Futch) Annexation 
Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE VOLUNTARY 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 1.5 ACRES BEING 
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF CR 222 
AND WEST OF US 301; IN SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 18 
SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST; WHICH IS CONTIGUOUS TO 
THE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING THAT SECTION 1-14 OF THE CITY 
OF WILDWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES IS AMENDED 
TO INCLUDE THE ANNEXED PROPERTY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Now, therefore, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of 
Wildwood, Florida: 

 
 SECTION 1.  Based upon the petition of the owner of the following described real 
property, which is generally located on the south side of CR 222 and west of US 301, to 
be annexed into the City the property is hereby annexed into the City of Wildwood 
pursuant to Section 171.044, Florida Statutes.  The City Commission finds that the 
property is located within the City’s Joint Planning Area with Sumter County, is 
contiguous to the municipal limits of the City of Wildwood, and meets all legal 
requirements for annexation.  The annexed property lying in Sumter County, Florida 
owned by R. William Futch, Trustee, is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Portion of Parcel # D30=003 
1.5 +/- Acres 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

The North 100 feet of the East 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 
30, Township 18 South, Range 23 East, Sumter County, Florida. 
 
 SECTION 2.  All of the above described annexed property shall liable for its 
proportionate share of the future and existing indebtedness of the City of Wildwood. 
 
  

SECTION 3.  All of the above described annexed property shall be subject to the 
laws and ordinance of the City of Wildwood as if this territory had been a part of the City 

1. e. 
Page 2 of 4



 

Ordinance O2013-08 
North 100’ of Parcel D30=003 (Futch) Annexation 

Page 2 of 2 
 

of Wildwood at the time of passage and approval of said laws and ordinances. 
 

SECTION 4.  Until such time as the City amends its comprehensive plan, the 
current Sumter County zoning classification and future land use regulations will remain 
in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 5.  Section 1-14 of the City of Wildwood Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended to include the legal description of the annexed parcel pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  
  

SECTION 6. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared invalid for any purpose, 
the remaining portion shall remain valid and in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon final approval by the City 
Commission. 
 
 DONE AND ORDAINED this ____  day of _____, 2013, by the City Commission 
of the City of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
SEAL 
 
ATTEST: CITY COMMISSION 
       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 
___________________________ _____________________________ 
Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk Ed Wolf, Mayor 
 
 
First Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Second Reading:  _______________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney 

1. e. 
Page 3 of 4



VILLAGE AT LEGACY PARK
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

FEBRUARY 2013 ANNEXATION

LOCATION MAP
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - V

illa
ge

s a
t L

eg
ac

y P
ark

.m
xd

 - 2
/18

/20
13

 10
:37

:45
 AM

 - t
on

ea
l

CR 222

U
S

 3
0

1

Legend
Village at Legacy Park

City of Wildwood

Parcels

Village at Legacy Park

1. e. 
Page 4 of 4



1 3/8/2013 2:55 PM"Pam Law"

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

March 2013

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30

April 2013

March 2013
Fe
b
 2
4
 ‐
 M

ar
 2

Feb 24 25 26 27 28 Mar 1 2

M
ar
 3
 ‐
 9

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

M
ar
 1
0
 ‐
 1
6

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

 7:00 PM Commission Meeting

M
ar
 1
7
 ‐
 2
3

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

4:00pm 8:00pm TEEN COURT ‐ 
Contact Person Erin Munz, 
Teen Court Coordinator 
793‐0215 Ext. 2737 (Monthly 
on the third Thursday) CR 112, 
CR 124 & Commission 
Chamber

M
ar
 2
4
 ‐
 3
0

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

 7:00 PM Commission Meeting

M
ar
 3
1
 ‐
 A
p
r 
6

31 Apr 1 2 3 4 5 6

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

2. b. 1. 
Page 1 of 2



2 3/8/2013 2:55 PM"Pam Law"

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30

April 2013

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

May 2013

April 2013
M
ar
 3
1
 ‐
 A
p
r 
6

Mar 31 Apr 1 2 3 4 5 6

 2:00 PM Code Enforcement

 3:00 PM P&Z/Spec. Magistrate

A
p
r 
7
 ‐
 1
3

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

 7:00 PM Commission Meeting 6:00 PM Historical Assoc. Meetin

A
p
r 
1
4
 ‐
 2
0

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

4:00pm 8:00pm TEEN COURT ‐ 
Contact Person Erin Munz, 
Teen Court Coordinator 
793‐0215 Ext. 2737 (Monthly 
on the third Thursday) CR 112, 
CR 124 & Commission 
Chamber

A
p
r 
2
1
 ‐
 2
7

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

 7:00 PM Commission Meeting  9:00 AM Tree City USA

A
p
r 
2
8
 ‐
 M

ay
 4

28 29 30 May 1 2 3 4

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

2. b. 1. 
Page 2 of 2



2. d. 1. 
Page 1 of 3



2. d. 1. 
Page 2 of 3



2. d. 1. 
Page 3 of 3



2. g. 1. 
Page 1 of 1



 

Page 1 of 6 

 

CITY COMMISSION 
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 25, 2013 – 7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
 
The City Commission of the City of Wildwood, Florida met in Regular session February 25, 2013 at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
Present: Mayor Wolf, Commissioners Bivins, Strickland, Clark and Green. Also present: City Manager 
Cannon, City Clerk Jacobs, City Attorney Blair, Police Chief Reeser, Assistant City Clerk Roberts, 
AVT Law, Utility Director Phillips, Development Services Director Peavy and Public Works Director 
Kornegay. 
 
The meeting was called to order and an invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag 
followed. 
 
1. TIMED ITEMS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 a. PUBLIC HEARING – 2ND FINAL READING of Ordinance O2013-05; An Ordinance 
 repealing Article V of Chapter 19 of the City of Wildwood’s Code of Ordinances in its 
 entirety and adopting a new Article V, Chapter 19 pertaining to sewer use (Attachments) 
 
 Ordinance O2013-05 was read by title only on second final reading. Public Hearing was 
 opened. No comments were received from the audience. 
 
 CA Blair noted that UD Phillips had talked with FDEP and made changes according to what 
 is now required. It was also noted that although this Ordinance deals primarily with 
 Industrial waste, there has been language added to protect the promises the Commission 
 made for properties annexed into the City over the past few years. 
 
 Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Bivins that Ordinance O2013-05 
 is adopted on second final reading. An Ordinance of the City of Wildwood, Florida, 
 repealing Article V of Chapter 19 of the City of Wildwood’s Code of Ordinances in its 
 entirety and adopting a new Article V, Chapter 19; pertaining to sewer use; pertaining to 
 definitions; pertaining to abbreviations; pertaining to Director; pertaining to purpose and 
 policy; pertaining to use of public sewers; pertaining to private wastewater disposal; 
 pertaining to sewers and connections; pertaining to damage; pertaining to powers and 
 authority of inspectors; pertaining to authority to disconnect service; pertaining to legal 
 remedies; providing for codification; providing for conflict; providing for an effective date. 
 Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 
2. REPORTS AND PUBLIC INPUT / SPECIAL PRESENTATION(S) 
 a. Special Presentations 
  1) Presentation (verbal) by James Gollahon, of Gollahon Financial Services, 
  Inc. on a Proposed Debt Service Refunding for both General Fund and Enterprise 
  Fund with Financial Advisor Services Agreement with Gollahon Financial Services 
  and Bond Attorney Agreement Services with Akerman Senterfitt (Board Option -  
  Attachments) 
 
  After review of information provided by James Gollahon and CC Jacobs, the 

 Commission expressed interest in refunding certain projects in the General Fund  
   

3. a. 1. 
Page 1 of 6



 

Page 2 of 6 

 

Minutes 
Page 2 
February 25, 2013 
 
  however felt the need for a workshop to determine that funds are needed and the

 amount needed for new projects and the Commission would need to decide what 
 projects are to be addressed. Commissioner Strickland expressed the need to have the 
 workshop as soon as possible and asked if City staff could do part of the work without 
 contracting with an advisor. CC Jacobs indicated he is not comfortable with doing this 
 in house due to the complexity. Discussion included the need for a bond attorney as 
 well as the Financial Advisor. 

   
  Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins to execute the 
  contract with Gollahon Financial Services, Inc. to provide financial advisor services. 
  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
 b. City Manager – none. 
 
 c. City Attorney 
  1) Request to schedule a closed door meeting (calendars attached) 
 
  CA Blair announced the need for a closed door executive session of the Commission 

 and the Commission approved by common consent for it to be held during the Regular 
 meeting of March 11.   

   
 d. City Clerk - none 
          
 e. Commission Members 
  1) Commissioner Green – noted he attended an event which raised $5000 for 
  scholarships. Noted February is Black History Month and on this date in history, Dr. 
  Martin Luther King was ordained. 
 
  2) Commissioner Bivins – asked for status update on Sandy Edwards. UD 

 Phillips indicated that Sandy has retired. Commissioner Bivins asked if that was 
 medical retirement, as in he still had his health insurance, etc. CA Blair indicated that 
 Commissioner Bivins might want to speak with HRC Cox off the record.  HRC Cox 
 noted he is entitled to his Florida Retirement and there was no severance package. 
 HR has worked with him to complete necessary paperwork for medical disability. FRS 
 is waiting for some medical documentation. It was noted that Sandy made the decision 
 to retire. Commissioner Bivins asked if the City doesn’t have a celebration upon the 
 retirement of a 28 year employee. HRC Cox noted it is not typically the City’s policy to 
 have those but employees have usually done them for the retiring employee, and  
 a fish fry was done for Sandy. Commissioner Bivins stated her point is that the 
 Commission was not told. Mayor Wolf stated that with a person who was raised here 
 and went through the school  system and worked 28 years he would have thought…. 
 UD Phillips indicated that the  Utility Department had a fish fry for him and when he 
 asked Sandy about coming to a Commission Meeting to receive the plaque Sandy said 
 he did not want to come so the plaque was presented to him at the fish fry. 
 Commissioner Bivins to contact HR office if  more information is wanted. 

 
 f. Public Forum (10 minute time limit) 
 

3. a. 1. 
Page 2 of 6



 

Page 3 of 6 

 

Minutes 
Page 3 
February 25, 2013 
 
  1) Sam Saleem of Wildwood Community Development Center. Expressed 

 thanks to the City for input to CSX. He noted that much of the discussion centered 
 around a catwalk at Oxford Street to help make it safer for people to pass from the 
 west side to the east side. Safety is the issue and whatever the City can help us do to
 make it safer, whether it is a catwalk or the roadway being put back in, or even if it is 
 something underground it would be appreciated. 

 
 g. Notes and Reports 
  1) FYI – Budget Analysis Report – January 2013 (Attachments) 
 
  CM Cannon – General fund revenues good, at this time should be 33% but at 47% 
  almost. General fund expenditures should be at 33% and are at 35½%. Enterprise fund 
  revenues should be 33% but at 31%. Expenditures should be 33% but at 23%.  
 
3. NEW BUSINESS – ACTION REQUIRED 
 a. MINUTES 
  1) Minutes of Regular Meeting held on February 11, 2013 (Attachments – Staff 
  Recommends Approval) 
 
  Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve the 
  minutes of February 11, 2013 as presented. Motion carried by unanimous vote.   
 
 b. ORDINANCES FIRST READING ONLY (READ ONLY – NO VOTE) 
  1) Ordinance No. O2013-06 – An Ordinance voluntarily annexing 2.67± acres 
  of property owned by Hughes Brothers, LLC located just north of the intersection of 
  CR 213/Walker Road and SR 44. The property to be annexed is a portion of Parcel 
  G07=133 and is intended to be utilized as an office for a construction company  
  (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
  2) Ordinance No. O2013-07 – An Ordinance voluntarily annexing an   
  approximate 1-acre piece of property located along CR 466 east of CR 209 owned 
  by Gary Williams. The property to be annexed is a portion of Parcel D18=038 and is 
  intended to be utilized for service and sales of lawn mowers (Attachments – Staff 
  Recommends Approval) 
 
  3) Ordinance No. O2013-08 – An Ordinance voluntarily annexing the north 100’ 
  of Parcel D30=003, Villages of Legacy Park Subdivision, located along CR 222 west 
  of US 301, omitted from the original annexation because it would have created an 
  enclave (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
  Ordinance numbers O2013-06, O2013-07 and O2013-08 were introduced and read by 
  title only on first reading. 
  
  DSD Peavy indicated there were about 500 annexation applications remaining from 

 the thousands of 2005 annexation requests. Some could not be annexed then due to 
 laws in place. Now that there is a JPA in place some of these laws have been relaxed. 
 The department goal is to annex all of the properties within the JPA area that are 

 

3. a. 1. 
Page 3 of 6



 

Page 4 of 6 

 

Minutes 
Page 4 
February 11, 2013 
   
  developing or are ready to develop. Working also with properties where there are 

 intersection issues. Staff will meet with the County to review the JPA terms relating to 
 annexation of additional properties.  Two of the properties of the Ordinances for first 
 reading tonight are ready to submit development applications. One already has applied 
 for residential development on an annexation done in 2006, but a strip was left out to 
 meet the rules for annexation at the time. So Ordinance O2013-08 is to annex the strip.  

 
  Mayor Wolf asked for a status update on the Chevrolet dealership. DSD Peavy 

 indicated the department has been trying to contact the owner to set a meeting but 
 has had difficulty scheduling a time. The dealership contacted the City in reference to 
 annexation a few weeks ago, but have been difficult to contact since then. The City 
 could just process the application since the annexation agreement was recorded and 
 the new owner is aware of it. 

 
  No Action necessary. 
 
 c. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
 d. APPOINTMENTS  
 
 e. CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS 
  1) Request for a Partial Release of Easement from the City of Wildwood to 

 301/466, LLC to correct a title defect caused by an incorrect legal description set  forth 
 in the “Easement” recorded in OR Book 1719, page 621, public records, Sumter 
 County, Florida to the extent that such Easement may encumber the real property 
 (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
  CA Blair noted that the legal provided to the City for the Easement was incorrect. This 
  needs to be corrected for the property owner. DSD Peavy noted she has been working 
  with the property along 209 and 214 and the easements skip. CA Blair noted she would 
  work with DSD Peavy on that. 
 
  Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve the 

 Request for a Partial Release of Easement from the City of Wildwood to 301/466, 
 LLC to correct a title defect caused by an incorrect legal description set forth in the 
 “Easement” recorded in OR Book 1719, page 621, public records, Sumter County, 
 Florida. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
 f. FINANCIAL 
  1) Bills for Approval (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 
 
  Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Bivins to pay the bills. 
  Motion carried by unanimous vote. 
 
  Mayor Wolf asked if the Personnel Rules and Regulations cover the use of personal 
  vehicles for City business in the event of an accident, etc. To be reviewed. 
 
 

3. a. 1. 
Page 4 of 6



 

Page 5 of 6 

 

Minutes 
Page 5 
February 11, 2013 
 
  2) Request approval of Utility Technicians, Inc. proposal to make necessary 

 repairs to Lift Stations No. 5 and 36 in the amount of $9,676.00. (Attachments - Staff 
 recommends approval) 

 
  Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Green to approve the 
  Request for approval of Utility Technicians, Inc. proposal to make necessary repairs to 
  Lift Stations No. 5 and 36 in the amount of $9,676.00. Motion carried by unanimous 
  vote. 
 
  3) Request approval to purchase one year of support from Sunstate Meter & 

 Supply, Inc. for the meter reading equipment and software in the amount of 
 $3,792.00. (Attachments - Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
  Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Bivins to approve Request 
  for approval to purchase one year of support from Sunstate Meter & Supply, Inc. for the 
  meter reading equipment and software in the amount of $3,792.00. Motion carried by 
  unanimous vote. 
 
  4) Request to approve payment of Interstate Electric Services of Central 

 Florida, Inc. invoice number 13-101 in the amount of $29,682.06 for emergency 
 electrical repairs on January 23, 2013 at the CR 501 Water Plant (Attachments –  Staff 
 Recommends Approval) 

 
  Motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland to approve 

 payment of Interstate Electric Services of Central Florida, Inc. invoice number 13-101 
 in the amount of $29,682.06 for emergency  electrical repairs on January 23, 2013 at 
 the CR 501 Water Plant. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
 g. GENERAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
  1) SP 1210-02 Alliance Coach Site Plan - Alliance Coach, Inc. seeks Site Plan 

 approval for the construction of a Detail Center (2,500 sq. ft.), Office (1,200 sq. ft.), and 
 Employee Pavilion (600 sq. ft.) as well as an additional eight (8) acres of impervious 
 area in the Business Park 44 Industrial Park. The P&Z Board/Special Magistrate gave 
 a favorable recommendation on Feb. 5, 2013 subject to approval, exemption, or 
 permitting by all agencies of competent jurisdiction (Attachments – Staff 
 Recommends Approval) 

 
  Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Strickland to accept the 
  recommendation of the P&Z Board/Special Magistrate to approve SP 1210-02 subject 
  to approval, exemption, or permitting by all agencies of competent jurisdiction. Motion 
  approved by unanimous vote. 
 
  2) SP 1212-03 Kangaroo Express Store #1433 Site Plan – The Pantry, Inc. seeks 

 Site Plan approval for construction of a 3,813 sq. ft. Kangaroo Express convenience 
 store/gas station with twelve fueling positions (six pumps) and associated 
 improvements on Parcel D20=013 at the NE corner of C-472 & US 301. The P&Z 
 Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable recommendation on Feb. 5, 2013 subject to 
 approval, exemption, or permitting by all agencies of competent jurisdiction and that  

3. a. 1. 
Page 5 of 6



 

Page 6 of 6 

 

Minutes 
Page 6 
February 11, 2013 
   
  the lighting plan be revised to mitigate off-site impacts (Attachments – Staff 

 Recommends Approval)   
 
  Motion by Commissioner Strickland, second by Commissioner Clark to accept the 
  recommendation of the P&Z Board/Special Magistrate to approve SP 1212-03 subject 
  to approval, exemption, or permitting by all agencies of competent jurisdiction. Motion 
  approved by unanimous vote. 
 
  3) Greg A. Beliveau, with LPG Urban & Regional Planners, Inc. is requesting a 

 one year extension of the Quadventure Planned Development on behalf of his client, 
 Quadventure LLC, per his attached letter dated January 29, 2013 due to adverse real 
 estate market conditions (Attachments – Staff Recommends Approval) 

 
  Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Bivins to approve request of 

 Greg A. Beliveau, with LPG Urban & Regional Planners, Inc. for a one year extension 
 of the Quadventure Planned Development on behalf of his client, Quadventure LLC, 
 per his attached letter dated January 29, 2013 due to adverse real estate market 
 conditions. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
  4) Request to rescind the Nov. 13, 2006 moratorium on installation of irrigation 
  meters (Attachments - Staff recommends approval) 
 
  Motion by Commissioner Clark, second by Commissioner Green to rescind the Nov. 

 13, 2006 moratorium on installation of irrigation meters. Motion carried by  unanimous 
 vote.  

 
4. ADJOURN 
 Upon a motion by Commissioner Green, second by Commissioner Strickland the meeting was 
adjourned. 
 
         CITY COMMISSION 

         CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
 
 S E A L 
              
ATTEST:       Ed Wolf, Mayor 
  Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
 
IMPORTANT DATES (No Attachments) 
a. March 4, 2013 – (Monday) - SPECIAL CALLED CITY COMMISSION WORKSHOP MEETING to discuss the Champagne Farms 
Well Site – 6:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
b. March 8, 2013 – (Friday) – Gourmet Food Truck Night – 6:00 PM to 9:00 PM – City Hall Front Courtyard, Oxford & Wonders 
Streets 
c. March 11, 2013  – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
d. March 16, 2013 – (Saturday) – Wildwood Rotary’s Ides of March…Madness 5k run/walk – 8:00 AM – Starts & ends at City Hall 
e. March 23, 2013 – (Saturday) – Opening Ceremonies for Wildwood Dixie Youth – 10:00 AM – Millennium Park Ball Fields 
f. March 25, 2013  – (Monday) – City Commission Meeting – 7:00 PM – City Hall Commission Chamber 
g. March 30, 2013 – (Saturday) – 4th Annual Easter Eggstravaganza – 9:00 AM – Millennium Park Baseball Fields 
h. April 5 & 6, 2013 – (Friday & Saturday) – Relay for Life – Starts at 6:00 PM April 5 – Ends at 12:00 Noon on April 6 – Wildwood 
Community Center 

3. a. 1. 
Page 6 of 6



 
 
CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 
CITY COMMISSION REPORT Commission Meeting Date: march 11, 2013 
 
Subject: Trailwinds Development 
 
Submitted By:  Bruce H. Phillips, PE, PLS, Utility Director 
 
Department:  Utility Department 
 
 
Staff Recommendation (Motion Ready): Recommend approval of First Addendum to 
Developer’s Agreement between the City of Wildwood and the Word Family, LLC. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

 The City and the Word Family, LLC entered into a Developer’s Agreement 
(Agreement) on January 14, 2013. 

 The Agreement referred to a future Pioneer Agreement which was to detail the 
City and the Developer’s responsibility regarding the extension of water and 
wastewater extensions to the property. 

 
FINDING, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 FINDINGS: The Development requires the following: 

 A 12” water main extension on CR 466A from the intersection of CR 462 
and CR 466A to the southwest corner of the property. 

 An 8” water main extension along CR 462 from parcel no. D32=069 to the 
northwest corner of the Beaumont property (parcel no. D04=051). 

 A 12” wastewater force main from the northwest corner of the Beaumont 
property (D04=051 to the City’s waster water treatment plantat 1290 
Industrial Drive. 

 
 CONCLUSIONS: 

 The opinion of probable cost (OPC) of these extensions if $1,800,000. 
 The Developer has agreed through this document to make an advanced 

payment to the City of $1,800,000 for these infrastructure improvements 
and to obtain water and wastewater TIE fee credits as follows: 

 Water TIE fee credits of 166.25 ERCs based on the OPC of 
$100,000 for the water extensions and the existing rate of 
$601.52/ERC.  

 Wastewater TIE fee credits of 2,579 ERCs based on the OPC of 
$1,700,000 for the wastewater force main and re-pump station at 

3. e. 1. 
Page 1 of 29



the rate of $659.20/ERC. The Developer’s consultant has estimated 
the total wastewater ERCs to be 2,400, therefore the developer will 
receive re-imbursement for 179 ERCs as others tie into and pay the  
wastewater TIE fees for a maximum of 10 years. 

 Developer will be responsible for payment of all water TIE fees exceeding 
th166.25 ERCs and waster water TIE fees exceeding 2,579. 

 Developer will also be responsible for payment of all, water and 
wastewater, connection fees.  

 
 LEGAL REVIEW: 

 City has reviewed and approved the document. 
 
 RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 Staff recommends approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 Staff time only. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

 City could pay for the design, permitting and construction of the infrastructure 
extensions and collect TIE fees as building takes place. 

 
SUPPORT MATERIAL: 

 Copy of the First Amendment to Developer’s Agreement between the City of 
Wildwood and the Word Family, LLC, dated January 14, 2013. 

 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Agenda Items\March 11\Trailwinds 1st Addendum 3-1-13..doc 
 
 
 
 
 

3. e. 1. 
Page 2 of 29



PIONEER AGREEMENT 
FIRST ADDENDUM TO DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 

[CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA – WORD FAMILY, LLC] 
 

THIS FIRST ADDENDUM TO DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT is made and entered 
effective this ___ day of __________, 2012, by and between: 
 

 CITY OF WILDWOOD, a Florida Municipal Corporation (“City”); and 
 WOOD FAMILY, LLC, a Florida Limited Liability Company (“Developer”). 

 
RECITALS: 

A. Developer is the owner of the real property located in Wildwood, Sumter County, Florida 
described on attached Exhibit “A” (“Property”). 

 
B. Developer and City entered into a Developer’s Agreement dated January 14, 2013, which 

was recorded in OR Book ___ at pages ___ through ___ of the Public Records of Sumter 
County, Florida (“Developer’s Agreement”). The terms and provisions of the Developer’s 
Agreement are, by this reference, incorporated into the terms of this First Addendum. 

 
C. The Developer’s Agreement described in Recital B above contemplated that: 

 
i. The Developer desired to procure services, including, but not limited to, water, 

wastewater and reuse water. The City of Wildwood desires to provide water, 
wastewater and reuse water to the Property. 

ii. The Developer, in accordance with paragraph 6.1 of the Developer’s Agreement, 
shall advance to the City the sum of $1,800,000 for the construction of : 

a) A  12” water main extension from the intersection of CR 466A and CR 
462, along CR 466A to the Southwest corner of the Property 
approximately 2,640 feet. 

b) An 8” water main extension southerly along CR 462 from parcel 
D32=069 to the Northwest corner of the Beaumont property (parcel 
D04=051), approximately 700 feet. 

c) A 12” wastewater force- main from the Northwest corner of the 
Beaumont property (parcel D04=051) to the City’s wastewater treatment 
plant at 1290 Industrial Drive. The contemplated route is north and west 
on CR 462 to US Highway 301; continuing westerly to CR 209; south on 
CR 209; then east on Industrial Drive to the wastewater treatment plant, 
total approximate distance of 31,800 feet. The construction will also 
include one (1) re-pump station. 

3. e. 1. 
Page 3 of 29



iii. The City and the developer have agreed that the developer is entitled to receive a 
credit to be applied against the City TIE fees for water and wastewater equal to 
the $1,800,000.00 advanced to the City for construction of water and wastewater 
lines and that $100,000.00 of the $1,800,000.00 shall be assigned as a credit for 
water TIE fees and $1,700,000.00 shall be assigned as a credit for wastewater 
TIE fees. 
 

iv. The City will issue water TIE fee credits to the Developer based on the following 
schedule: 

a) The current water TIE fee rate for  one (1) Equivalent Residential 
Connection (ERC) is $601.52. The rate for estimated cost of the extension 
of water lines listed in paragraph ii., a) and b) above is $100,000, 
providing  for 166.25 Water ERCs ($100,000 ÷ $601.25).  

b) The Developer’s consultant has estimated a need of 720,000 gallons per 
day of water capacity will be required which equates to 2,400 ERCs. Any 
additional ERCs above the 166.25 will require payment of the Water TIE 
fee in effect at the time of acquisition.  

 
v. The City will issue wastewater TIE fee credits to the developer on the following 
schedule: 

a) The current wastewater TIE fee rate forone (1) ERC is $659.20. The 
estimated cost of the extension of waste water lines as identified in paragraph 
ii., c) above is $1,700,000, providing for 2,579 ERCs.  
b)  The Developer’s consultant has estimated 600,000 gallons per day of 
wastewater capacity will be required which equates to 2,400 ERCs.  
c) The Developer needs only an estimated 2,400 ERCs, the additional 179 
ERCs will be known as Pioneer Credits. The City agrees to reimburse the 
Developer for Pioneer Credits from TIE fees of utility customers located 
along the route of the wastewater force-main who connect to and are directly 
benefitted by the force-main construction. The City’s obligation to reimburse 
the Pioneer Credits shall terminate ten (10) years from the date of this First 
Amendment.   
d) Any additional ERCs above the 2579 will require payment of the 
wastewater TIE fees in effect at the time of acquisition. 

 
v. Connection fees for water and wastewater capacity as defined by City ordinance 

shall be paid in accordance with the City Code of Ordinances and shall not be 
impacted by this agreement. Reservation of capacity is based on connection fee 
payment.  

 

3. e. 1. 
Page 4 of 29



1. General Provisions. 
 

1.1. Notices. With respect to any Notices required to be given under the terms of this 
Agreement, such Notices shall be deemed given and effective:  

 
1.1.1. Three (3) calendar days after the date they are deposited in the United States 

Mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the Parties at the 
following respective addresses or such other address as provided by a Party 
pursuant to this Section; or 

 
1.1.2. The date of actual delivery by hand or by a recognized national overnight 

delivery service such as Federal Express, UPS, or Express Mail, addressed to 
the parties at the following respective addresses or such other address as 
provided by a party pursuant to this Section:  

 
AS TO THE CITY: City of Wildwood 
 Attn:_______________ 
 ___________________ 
 ___________________  
  

With Copy To:  City of Wildwood  
      Attn: Bruce Phillips, P.E., Utilities Director 
      100 N. Main Street 
      Wildwood, FL 34785   
    With Additional  

Copy to: Jerri A. Blair, Esquire 
  Wildwood City Attorney 
  131 W. Main Street 
  P.O. Box 130 
  Tavares, FL  32778-0130 
   

AS TO DEVELOPER:  Word Property, LLC 
   Attn: Mr. Tom Word 
   3324 W. University Avenue, #317 
   Gainesville, FL 32607  

       
With Copy To: Steven H. Gray, Esq. 

      Gray, Ackerman & Haines, P.A. 
      125 NE 1st Avenue, Suite 1 
      Ocala, FL 34470 

3. e. 1. 
Page 5 of 29



      (352) 732-8121 
  

Any party may modify the address for notices set forth above by providing notice 
of the change of address to all parties to this Agreement, which notice is to be 
provided in accordance with the requirements of this Section. 

1.2. Negation of Partnership. None of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to create a partnership by or among Developer or City in their respective 
businesses or otherwise, nor shall it cause them to be considered joint venturers or 
members of any joint enterprises. Each Party shall be considered a separate Party, no 
Party shall have the right to act as an agent for another Party and no Party shall the right 
to act as an agent for another Party unless expressly authorized to do so in this 
Agreement.   

 
1.3. Not a Public Dedication. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to be a gift or 

dedication of any portion of the Property to the general public, or for any public use or 
purpose whatsoever. Any portion of the Property which may under the terms of this 
Agreement later may be designated for public use or purposes shall be conveyed by 
Developer to City, as applicable. Except as herein specifically provided no right, 
privileges of immunities of any Party hereto shall inure to the benefit of any third party, 
nor shall any third party be deemed to be a beneficiary of any of the provisions 
contained in this Agreement.   

 
1.4. Default Provisions.  

 
1.4.1. The terms of this Agreement shall not entitle any Party to cancel, rescind, or 

otherwise terminate this Agreement. However, such limitations shall not affect 
in any manner any other rights or remedies which a Party may have hereunder 
or under applicable law by reason of any such breach.  
 

1.4.2. All easements, rights and covenants contained herein shall be enforceable by 
suit for specific performance and mandatory injunctive relief, in addition to any 
other remedy provided by law or equity.   

 
1.4.3. No Party shall be entitled to pursue any action for specific performance, 

injunctive relief, or any other available remedy arising out of a default under 
this Agreement until the non-defaulting Party has provided to the Party alleged 
to be in default a written Default Notice (with, if applicable, a copy to any other 
Party to this Agreement) specifying the specific nature of the default,  and the 
alleged defaulting Party has failed to cure the default within thirty (30) days of 

3. e. 1. 
Page 6 of 29



the effective date of the Default Notice.  In the event the cure of a default 
reasonably requires greater than the thirty (30) day time period specified, the 
grace period granted herein shall, if the defaulting Party has initiated cure of the 
default within the thirty (30) day time period and is continuing to pursue 
completion of the cure with due diligence, extend the reasonable time period 
required for the cure of the default. 

 
1.4.4. In the event of a material default by Developer with respect to its obligations to 

City under this Agreement, and failure of Developer to cure the default within 
the grace period set forth above, in addition to any other remedies available to 
them under the terms of this Agreement City shall be entitled to withhold 
issuance of additional development permits or authorizations until the default 
has been cured.  If Developer has, prior to the occurrence of the default, 
conveyed some or all of the Property to unrelated third parties (such parcel or 
parcels then becoming a “Third Party Parcel”) and the default of Owner is not 
with respect to, or impact City obligations regarding, a Third Party Parcel, the 
right of City to withhold Permits upon a default by Owner shall not extend to 
City Permits pending or to be issued with respect to a successor owner of such 
Third Party Parcel.   

 
1.5. Estoppel Statements.  

 
1.5.1. Each Party agrees that upon written request from time to time of any other Party 

it will timely issue at no charge to a current or prospective lender  to such Party, 
or to a current or prospective purchaser or successor party to such other Party, 
or to another governmental entity requesting or requiring the same, an Estoppel 
Statement stating: 

 
1.5.1.1. Whether the Party to whom the request has been directed knows of any 

default by any Party under this Agreement, and if there are known 
defaults, specifying the nature thereof. 

 
1.5.1.2. Whether this Agreement has been assigned, modified or amended in 

any way by such Party (and if it has, stating the nature thereof).  
 
1.5.1.3. That to the best of the requested Party’s knowledge this Agreement, as 

of the Estoppel Statement date, is in full force and effect.   
 

1.5.1.4. That (if known by the requested Party, if not known by the requested 
Party that Party shall reply only with respect to any monies owed to it) 

3. e. 1. 
Page 7 of 29



to the best of the requested Party’s knowledge there are not any monies 
currently owed by any Party to another Party under the terms of this 
Agreement, or if there are monies owed, the amount and details of all 
monies owed. 

 
1.5.1.5. That, as to the Project or as to a specific parcel therein (as applicable, 

based upon the request) there are no moratoriums or suspensions of the 
right to procure Development Orders, Building Permits, or Certificate 
of Occupancy or other development approvals in effect as of the date of 
the Estoppel Statement.   

 
Such written statement shall act as a waiver of any claim by the Party furnishing 
it to the extent such claim is based on facts contrary to those asserted against a 
bona fide mortgagee or purchaser for value without knowledge of facts to the 
contrary of those contained in the Estoppel Certificate who has acted in 
reasonable reliance upon the statement; however, such statement shall in no 
event suggest the Party furnishing it to any liability whatsoever, notwithstanding 
the negligent or other inadvertent failure of such Party to disclose correct and/or 
relevant information.   

 
1.6. Litigation. In the event of any litigation arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing 

party shall be entitled to recover all reasonable costs incurred with respect to such 
litigation, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, and including reimbursement for such 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred with respect to any bankruptcy, appellate 
or post-judgment proceeding related thereto.  

 
1.7. Binding Effect. The parties to this Agreement represent to each other that each party 

fully understands the facts surrounding this Agreement and each is signing this 
Agreement fully and voluntarily, intending to be bound by it. This Agreement shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto, their respective spouses, 
heirs, executors, administrators and assigns. There are no representations or warranties 
other than those set forth herein.  

 
1.8. Headings. The headings contained within this Agreement are for identification 

purposes only, and shall not be construed to amend, modify, or alter the terms of the 
Agreement. 

 
1.9. Severability.  Except as otherwise set forth herein, in the event any provision or section 

of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such determination 

3. e. 1. 
Page 8 of 29



shall not affect the enforceability or the validity of the remaining provisions of this 
Agreement.  

 
1.10. Survival of Representations and Warranties. All representations and warranties 

contained herein are made in writing by the parties in connection herewith shall survive 
the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 

 
1.11. Successors and Assigns.  

 
1.11.1. All covenants and agreements in this Agreement made by or on behalf of any 

Parties hereto shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors 
and assigns of the Parties hereto, whether so expressed or not. 

 
1.11.2. Upon a sale or other transfer of a Parcel or a portion thereof, the terms and 

provisions of this Agreement, as applicable, shall remain in full force and 
effect as to the Parcel or a portion of the Parcel. 

 
1.12. Applicable Law. This Agreement is being delivered in the State of Florida, and shall 

be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.  The 
venue for any legal proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be Sumter County, 
Florida.  

 
1.13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and it shall not be necessary in 
making proof of this Agreement to produce or account for more than one such 
counterpart. 

 
1.14. Amendment of Agreement. This Agreement cannot be changed, modified or released 

orally, but only by an agreement in writing signed by the parties against whom 
enforcement of said change, modification or discharge is sought. 

 
1.15. Gender. As used in this Agreement, the masculine shall include the feminine and 

neuter, the singular shall include the plural, and the plural shall include the singular as 
the context may require. 

 
1.16. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon completion of its 

execution by all Parties, and the recordation of the Agreement in the Public Records of 
Sumter County, Florida.  

 

3. e. 1. 
Page 9 of 29



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Developer’s Agreement on 
the day and year set forth below their respective signatures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
TO 

PIONEER AGREEMENT 
FIRST ADDENDUM TO DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 

[CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA – WORD FAMILY, LLC] 
 

       CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, 
       A Florida Municipal Corporation 
 
 
       By:_____________________________ 
       Ed Wolf, Mayor 
       Date:__________________, 2013 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

_____________________________________ 
Jerri A. Blair, City Attorney    ATTEST: 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED BY THE WILDWOOD CITY COMMISSION ON _______________, 2013 
 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SIGNATURE PAGES OF  

THE CITY OF WILDWOOD AND WORD FAMILY, LLC 

3. e. 1. 
Page 10 of 29



SIGNATURE PAGE OF WORD FAMILY, LLC 
TO 

PIONEER AGREEMENT 
FIRST ADDENDUM TO DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 

[CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA – WORD FAMILY, LLC] 
 

       WORD FAMILY, LLC, 
       A Florida Limited Liability Company 
 
 
       By:_____________________________ 
       Manager 
 
       Date:____________________, 2013 
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF _______________ 
 
 The foregoing PIONEER AGREEMENT, FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPER’S 
AGREEMENT was acknowledged before me by __________________________ as Manager of 
WORD FAMILY, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, who is: 
 
 ___ Personally known by me, or 
 ___ Produced a driver’s license as identification. 
 
 Dated: this ____ day of _______________, 2013 
 
       Print Name:_______________________ 
       Notary Public, State of Florida 
       Commission Number:_______________ 
       Commission Expires:_______________ 
 
 
 
 
 
C:\Users\bphillips\Documents\Development\Trailwinds - Word Property\Pioneer Agreement 2-4-13.docx     

3. e. 1. 
Page 11 of 29



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
LEGAL – PROPERTY 

 
 
 

THE WEST ½ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ AND THE SOUTHEAST ¼ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ 
OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST AND THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF 
THE NORTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER 
COUNTY, FLORIDA LESS AND EXCEPT RIGHT OF WAY OF CR-466A AND CR 137. 

3. e. 1. 
Page 12 of 29



RECORD: $. _ _ _ _ _ 

Return to: 
City of Wildwood 

This Instrument Prepared by: 
Steven H. Gray 
Gray. Ackerman & Haines. PA 
125 NE First Avenue. Suite 1 
Ocala. FL 34470 

--- -------- --------[SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECOROING DATAI--_________ _ _ 

DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT 
[CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA - WORD FAMILY, LLC] 

This Developer's Agreement. effective the ~ day of IYb.\Tb 
entered into by and between: 

• 2013, is made and 

• THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation ("City"); and 
• WORD FAMILY, LLC. a Florida limited liability company ("Developer"). 

RECITALS: 

A. Developer Agreements strengthen the public planning process. encourage sound capital 
improvements planning, assist in assuring that there are adequate capital facilities for 
development, and encourage private participation and comprehensive planning. 

B. City is a regional water, wastewater, reuse water and municipal services provider. 

C_ Developer owns in fee simple certain real property in Sumter County, Florida, described on 
attached Exhibit "A' (the "Property"). 

D_ Developer desires to procure services, including, but nol limited to, water, wastewater, reuse 
water and other municipal services, from the City for the Property, and City desires to provide 
water, wastewater, reuse water and other municipal services to the Property. 

E. Developer's proposed development requires access to water, wastewater, reuse water and other 
municipal services. 

F. Developer will construct all utility lines, lift stations, roadways, sidewalks, sign age, open space, 
common areas, entrance monuments, amenities, storm water facilities and other similar 
improvements within the Property in accordance with City standards. 

G_ Developer agrees to maintain roadways, sidewalks, signage, open space, common areas, 
entrance monuments, amenities, storm water facilities and other similar improvements within the 
Property in accordance to City standards until such time as all such improvements are conveyed 
to a Homeowners Association established by Developer for the perpetual maintenance of such 
improvements. City will maintain water mains up to and including water meters; gravity sewer 
mains up to the sewer lateral tie to the sewer main; all lift stations; all on-site force mains; and 
reuse lines up to and including the meter. 

Page 1 of 15 
Y:lshglFILESIWord Family, LLC #11 -2245IWilwood Dev. Agt. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agt. 1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 13 of 29

plaw
Typewritten Text
Original Executed Developer's Agreement for Reference



H. Developer will provide to City all ulility easements needed on Property for City maintained 
infraslructure not located within public rights-of-way, subject to the mutual agreemenl of 
Developer and City as to location and width of utility easements, and (if desired by Developer) 
retenlion by Developer of a right to relocate, at Developer's expense, util ities infrastructure 
constructed within such easements, and the easements. 

I. The parties desire to enter into this Agreement confirming their agreement regarding the 
furnishing of municipal services, including but not limited to water, wastewater, reuse water and 
other municipal services for the Property. 

J. This Agreement and all stipulations and covenants made herein are acknowledged to be subject 
to the approval of every County, Regional, State and Federal regulatory agency having 
jurisdiction of the subject matter of this Agreement. 

K. Cily has approved this Agreement and has authorized the proper City officials to execute this 
Agreement by motion passed at a regular City Commission meeting on January 14, 2013. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and undertakings of City and Developer 
and other good and valuable considerations, these parties covenant and agree with each olher as 
follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits. The parties confirm and agree that the above Recitals are 
true and correct, and incorporate their terms and provisions herein for all purposes. The can lents, 
terms and provisions of all Exhibits which are attached to this Agreement and referenced herein are, 
by this reference, incorporated into Ihis Agreement for all purposes. 

2. Definitions. For the purposes of this Agreement, in addition to those terms which are specifically 
defined elsewhere in this Agreement the following terms shall have the following definitions: 

2.1. "Agreement" - This Developer's Agreement, as the same may subsequently amended, 
modified or supplemented pursuant to its terms and provisions. 

2.2. "Connection Fee" - Those charges of the City for a customer's proportionate share of the 
capital costs of the water and wastewater utility plant capacities allocated to a new or modified 
customer connection, as defined in City Ordinances and Resolutions. 

2.3. "County" - Sumter County, Florida, a political subdivision of the State of Florida. 

2.4. "Developer" - Word Family, LLC, and its successors, and assigns in interest, andlor title, 
. including-1he-Homeowners '-Association to be-ereated--by '-6e\leloper-to 'which all eommon
improvements, including the utilities improvements describe~. in this Agreement. will be 

. _~~veyed and under ~hom all future maintenance_~spo_n~!,iliti~ill fall. 

2.5. "Equivalent Residential Connection" - As defined by City Ordinance, also referred to in this 
Agreement as "ERC". 

2.6. "Homeowners' Association" - A Florida not-far-profit Corporation organized and formed by 
Developer for the purpose of serving as the Association for the owners of parcels located within 
the Property to own, maintain, and repair or replace, as required, Common Area improvements 
located on the Property, including but not limited to roadways, sidewalks, signage, open space, 
entrance monuments, amenities, stormwater facilities, and other similar improvements 
constructed on the Property. It is the intent of Developer to create a Homeowners' Association 
for such purposes, and to convey to the Homeowners' Association title to the previously
described improvements which will be constructed on the Property, at which time the 
Homeowners' Association will, by execution of an appropriate agreement with City, assume the 

Page 2 of 15 
Y:lshglFILESIWord Family, LLC #11 -2245IWilwood Dev. Agt. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agt. 1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 14 of 29



Developer's responsibilities for maintenance, repair and replacement of such improvements 
which arise under the terms of this Agreement. 

2.7. "Party or Parties" - Refers to either Developer or City, or (as applicable) to both Developer 
and City. 

2.S. "Point of Connection" - The location within dedicated utility easements where City ownership 
and maintenance of the water, wastewater and reuse water mains ends and private ownership 
and maintenance of said systems begins. 

2.9. "Property" - The real property described on attached Exhibit "A" . 

2.10. "Significant Progress" - The Developer will have achieved substantial progress under the 
terms of this Agreement when storm water basins, roadway bases, curbs and underground 
utilities have been completed or are under construction pursuant to a valid Permit (or Permits) 
issued by City for such worle 

2.11. "Transmission Infrastructure Extension Fee" - Those charges by City for a customer's 
proportionate share of the capital costs of the water, wastewater and reuse water utility main 
lines and connection lines, as defined by City Ordinances and Resolutions, and is also referred 
to herein as a "TIE Fee" or "TIE Fees". 

2.12. "Water Management District" or "SWFWMD" - The Southwest Florida Water Management 
District, an agency of the State of Florida. 

3. Developer's Obligations. 

3.1. TIE Fees, Connection Fees and Capacity. 

3.1 .1. TIE Fees. 

3.1 .1.1. The Transmission Infrastructure Extension (TIE) Fee, when paid, purchases a 
hydraulic share in the water, wastewater and reuse water infrastructure 
extending from the proposed development (the "Property") back to the nearest 
well facility (for water) and wastewater treatment plant (for wastewater and 
reuse water). TIE Fees are based on the equivalent residential volumes, which 
are 300 gallons per day for water consumption and 250 gallons per day for 
wastewater treatment, and also distance (in feet) between the proposed 
development and the applicable water plant or wastewater plant. The standard 
distance for one (1) TIE Fee is 15,000 feet. 

3.1.1.2. The water TIE Fee shall be calculated using City Ordinances and Resolutions 
in effect at the time Developer executes this Agreement. 

3.1 .1.3. The wastewater TIE Fee shall be calculated using City Ordinances and 
Resolutions in effect at the time Developer executes this Agreement. 

3.1 .1.4. The reuse water TIE Fee shall be calculated using City Ordinances and 
Resolutions in effect at the time City commences providing reuse water to the 
development for distribution within the boundaries of the Property. 

3.1.1.5. As of the date of the execution of this Agreement the final design and projected 
cosls of water, wastewater, and reuse water infrastructure to be constructed by 
Developer, which will be subject to the water, wastewater and reuse water TIE 
fees described above, have not been finalized . Upon finalization of the design 
of the infrastructure and determination of the cost of the same, Developer and 

Page 3 of 15 
Y:lshgIFILES\Word Family, LLC #11·2245IWilwood Dev. Agl. • Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agl. 1·30·13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 15 of 29



City shall enter into an agreement, which shall be an Addendum to this 
Developer's Agreement, specifying the amount, date of payment, and (if 
applicable) credits against, the water, wastewater, and reuse water TIE Fees 
owed by Developer under this Agreement. 

3.1 .1.6. Developer acknowledges and agrees that TIE Fees, when paid. are non
refundable 

3.1.1.7. Developer acknowledges that no water or wastewater capacity reservation is 
created, reserved, or implied, without City receiving payment of the applicable 
fees. Reservation of water and wastewater capacity is subject to capacity 
availability. 

3.1.1 .S. Developer understands that any increases in capacity reserved, or any new 
purchase of capacity reservations, will result in additional TIE Fees being due 
from Developer to City. 

3.1.2. Connection Fees and Capacity. 

3.1.2.1 . The water and wastewater Connection Fees shall be calculated according to 
the rate schedule adopted by City and in effect at the time the Developer 
executes this Agreement. However, the parties agree that Developer is not 
obligated to reserve all (or any) of the capacity available at this time, if 
Developer elects to reserve a lesser capacity, the calculations in Exhib~ "B" 
shall be revised accordingly. As of the date of the execution of this Agreement 
by the Parties the amount of the Connection Fees to be initially paid by 
Developer has not been determined by City and Developer. When the amount 
of the Connection Fees to be initially paid by Developer has been finalized 
Developer and City will enter into a written agreement, which shall be an 
Addendum to this Agreement, specifying the amount of Connection Fees to be 
purchased by Developer, and the date or schedule for required payment for the 
same, subject, however to the City's reserved right to adjust Connection Fees 
or other utilities charges which it charges all City utilities customers, including 
Developer, and the applicable charges in effect at the time of any payment 
under this sub-section by Developer, as set forth in Section 3.1.6 below. 

3.1 .2.2. Developer must proceed with due diligence toward the use of all Connection 
Fees purchased. 

3.1 :2.3. C{)nnec!ion Fees are not sold by City on speculation, and may be repurchased 
by the City at the price paid by the Developer if significant progress on 
construction. of Developer's project on the Property is not made within twenty 
four (24) months of the date the purchased connection fee becomes available 
to the Developer. The time for significant progress may be extended pursuant 
to the provisions of this Agreement concerning "Force Majeure". 

3.1.2.4. The following actions must be completed by Developer prior to the reservation 
of water or wastewater ERC's: 

3.1.2.4.1. Developer must complete and file the City's Concurrency 
Determination and Concurrency Reservation applications. 

3.1.2.4.2. This Developer's Agreement, and all attachments, must be fully 
executed by Developer and City. 

3.1.2.5. As of the date of the execution of this Agreement Developer and City have not 
finalized the schedule for Developer's payment of Connection Fees to be 

Page 4 of 15 
Y:IshgIFILESIWord Family, LLC #11-2245IWilwood Dev. Agt. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agt. 1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 16 of 29

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Typewritten Text

plaw
Highlight



purchased by Developer under the terms of this Agreement. It is acknowledged 
by the Parties that as a result of anticipated Developer participation in the 
funding and construction of water, wastewater and reuse water infrastruclure 
construction the schedule for payment of Connection Fees shall be finalized at 
a later date. When such schedule is finalized the Parties will enter into a written 
agreement regarding the schedule, which shall be an Addendum to this 
Agreement. 

3.1.2.6. Capacity is reserved for a particular location, and assumes that City will be 
prepared to serve that capacity according to the agreed-upon availability 
schedule at that location, and no other. 

3.1.3. Until Developer provides City with full payment for all TIE Fees and Connection Fees 
required by Developer for the then-completed development on the Property, and 
completes all other requirements of this Agreement, no water, wastewater or reuse 
water service will be provided to the Property. 

3.1 .4. City reserves the right to determine the number of ERC's it will allow Developer to 
purchase. When the City has determined the number of ERC's it will allow Developer to 
purchase the Parties will enter into a written agreement confirming the same, which 
agreement shall be an Addendum to this Agreement. 

3.1.5. Developer may not transfer any reserved water, wastewater or reuse water capacity 
without written permission from the City. Any such transfer, unless approved by City, 
will void the capacity reservation, the ERC's will revert back to the City, and Developer 
will forfeit any right to any repayment of the Connection Fees paid for the capacity 
reservation. The City shall not unreasonably withhold permission for a transfer of 
capacity to another property or another project. As Developer develops the Property 
and sells portions thereof, such sales and transfers to facilitate such sales shall not be 
deemed a transfer prohibited by this Section. 

3.1.6. The purchase of ERC's does not act to set the price for future purchases, but only as to 
purchases specifically set forth in this Agreement. Any future purchases not 
contemplated by this Agreement will be at the applicable price then being charged by 
City to all of its utilities customers at time of Developer's payment. 

4. Developer's Responsibility after Connection to City's Water, Wastewater and Reuse Water 
Systems. After connection to City's water, wastewater and reuse water systems: 

4.1. Developer shall be responsible for all wastewater lines from the Point of Connection to City's 
wastewater force main. 

4.2. Developer shall be responsible for all water distribution lines from the Point of Connection to 
City's water main. 

4.3. Developer shall be responsible for all reuse water distribution lines from the Point of 
Connection to City's reuse water main. 

5. Kimley-Horn and Avid Reports, etc. City has obtained from its engineering consultant Kimley-Horn 
and Associates, Inc. ("KH") a Report regarding a proposed sewer main extension to provide 
wastewater services for the Property, which includes a recommended route and estimated cost for 
the wastewater main. Developer previously agreed with City that it would reimburse City for the cost 
of the KH Report, and agrees to reimburse City for City's cost of the Report in the amount of 
$ , and has done so which is acknowledged by City. Developer has, independently, 
had its consulting engineers (Avid Engineering, or "Avid") review the KH Report, and consider 
alternative design considerations for extension of the wastewater main. Avid has prepared a Report 

Page 5 of 15 
Y:lshglFILESIWord Family, LLC #11-224SIWilwood Dev. Agt. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agt. 1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 17 of 29



for Developer, dated December 2012 (the "Avid Report"), and a copy of the same has been provided 
to City, and City is currently reviewing the Avid Report in conjunction with the KH Report. Subsequent 
to the date of the execution of this Agreement City and Developer will, jOintly, agree upon the plans 
for the construction of extensions of City's water and wastewater transmission systems, and reuse 
water transmission system. City agrees that it will allow Avid , as Developer's Engineering Consultants 
to complete the design and permitting of the selected wastewater rnain extension, water main 
extension and reuse water main extension, at Developer's cost. City and Developer will enter into a 
written agreement confirming the selected routes for the utility mains, and all details of plans to 
complete design, permitting (all of which shall be at Developer's initial cost), and construction of the 
sanitary sewer and water mains (see Section 6 below) which agreement will be an Addendum to this 
Agreement. 

6. Advanced Funds; Pioneer Agreement. Avid Engineering has provided to Developer and City an 
estimate that the maximum sewer generation volume for the Property (the Property contains 311 
acres) would be 600,000 gallons per day ("GPO"). City and Developer have mutually agreed that the 
route of the sewer force main to be constructed to provide service to Developer's Property and other 
third-party properties along the route of the force main, is the "north route" identified in the Avid study. 
City's provision of potable water and sanitary sewer services for Developer's Property will require 
construction of the force main on this route, and will require construction of an extension of a City 
water main to the Property. City and Developer have agreed to fund the cost of the construction of 
the sanitary sewer main and force main in accordance with the following provisions: 

6.1. Subject to obtaining financing approval, which Developer agrees to pursue with due diligence, 
Developer agrees to provide to City $1 ,800,000.00 in funds for both mains (the "Advanced 
Funds") of which $1,700,000.00 of the advanced funds will be used to pay a portion of the costs 
of a sanitary sewer main on the North route, and $100,000.00 will be used for all or a portion of 
the costs of construction of the water main on the route which has been agreed upon by City and 
Developer. In the event the costs of the sewer main or water main exceed the amount of the 
Advanced Funds being provided by Developer, City agrees that it will, from its funding sources, 
provide the required additional funds to complete construction of the sanitary sewer main and 
water main which is the subject of this Section 6, in a timely manner to facilitate construction 
immediately upon completion of all design and permitting for the infrastructure. 

6.2. It is agreed that, in consideration for contribution of the Advanced Funds to City to participate in 
the construction of the described utilities infrastructure, there shall be available to Developer's 
Property sanitary sewer and potable water transmission in the force main and water main 
facilities constructed capacities necessary to support the anticipated development of the 
Property , based on the projected required utilities capacities set forth in the Avid report. 

6.3. City agrees that, upon receipt of Advanced Funds from Developer, it will immediately commence 
and ·thereafter pursue completion of the due diligence the design, permitting and. construction of 
the sewer main and water main described above, and City will bear any additional costs incurred 
for the design, permitting and construction of the utilities infrastructure in excess of the Advanced 
Funds contributed by Developer under the terms of this Agreement. 

6.4. At the time of Developer's contribution of Advanced Funds to City, City and Developer will enter 
into a Pioneer Agreement, which shall constitute an addendum to this Agreement, which will 
include terms generally standard to Pioneer Agreements used in the Sumter County area, and 
the following specific terms: 

6.4.1 . City agrees that upon completion of the sewer force main and water main and their 
placement into service, if City collects any TtE Fees or connection fees from third-party 
users connecting to or making use of either main constructed with the Advanced Funds, 
City will , subject to the limitations on reimbursement set forth below, pay to Developer 
immediately upon receipt of City's collection of such TIE or connection fees, as 
reimbursement of the Developer's Advanced Funds. 

Page 6 of 15 
Y:\shg\FILES\Word Family, LLC #11-2245\Wilwood Dev. Agl. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agl. 1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 18 of 29



6.4.2. City's obligation to reimburse Developer for any non-reimbursed Advanced Funds 
terminates ten (10) years after the date of this Agreement. 

6.4.3. All Advanced Funds shall be considered pre-paid TIE Fees (either sanitary sewer or 
potable water TIE fees, as the Advanced Funds are used). When advanced by 
Developer the funds will create a Credit Account for the benefit of the Developer in the 
amount of the Advanced Funds. Reimbursement or use of the Credit Account shall 
occur as follows: 

6.4.3.1 . If Developer (directly) buys utility capacities for lands located within the 
Property, Developer would be entitled to use available credits in the Credit 
Account for applicable TIE fees or connection fees , (until the Credit Account is 
fully depleted). 

6.4.3.2. Subject to the provisions of Section6.4.3.2 below If a third-party, either for 
land located on the Property which is the subject of this Agreement or 
elsewhere on the sanitary sewer or water mains partially funded by the 
Advanced Funds, buys utilities capacity, the third-party will pay to the City the 
normal applicable TIE Fees or connection fees, with City then reimbursing 
Word from collected TIE Fees until the Credit Account is fully depleted. 
Reimbursement payments shall be made to Developer not less frequently 
than quarterly, if there are reimbursement funds owed. City shall maintain 
and provide to Developer an accounting of reimbursements of Advanced 
Funds owed and collection of applicable TIE and connection fees from which 
reimbursement must be made by City. 

6.4.3.3. Notwithstanding any of the provisions of the preceding Section 6.4.3.2, when 
a third party pays to City TIE Fees with respect to the usage of the sanitary 
sewer main or water main constructed with the Advanced Funds, City's 
obligation to reimburse Developer's for its Advanced Funds shall not 
commence with respect to such third-party payments until City has collected 
third-party TIE Fees (from third-parties making use of the sanitary sewer main 
or water main as applicable) in an amount equal to the funds City expends (if 
applicable) for the construction of the sanitary sewer main and force main to 
cover costs of the mains in excess of the Advanced Funds provided by 
Developer. Upon City's recovery of its funds from the third-party TIE Fees the 
City's obligation to use collected third-party TIE Fees to reimburse Developer 
for the Advanced Funds shall them commence and continue until (if 
applicable) Developer has been reimbursed for all Advanced Funds. 

7. Extensions - - Water and Wastewater Mains. It is acknowledged by Developer and City that City 
provision of water and wastewater services for the Property will require extensions of the City's 
current water and wastewater systems. City does not currently have budgeted funds for the 
construction of the utilities extensions. Upon completion of plans and designs for required extensions 
of water and wastewater mains, and development of a cost estimate for the utilities infrastructure, 
Developer and City will use their best efforts to finalize an Agreement regarding the funding of the 
required utilities infrastructure construction. In the event Developer agrees to advance funds for 
construction, or pay TIE Fees or reserve ERU capacities to generate sufficient funds for the 
construction (or combinations of such actions) it is agreed by the Parties that such advances would 
be made under the terms of a Pioneer Agreement under which Developer would receive 
reimbursements for Developer's advanced funds upon the connection to and use of any constructed 
water main extension or wastewater main extension by third parties upon payment by the third parties 
to City of TIE Fees or any other Capacity Reservation Fees. The terms of such a Pioneer Agreement 
would be those normally and customarily used by the City for similar cases of privately advanced 
funds for construction of utilities infrastructure. 

Page 7 of 15 
Y:lshgIFILESIWord Family, LLC #11 -224SIWilwood Dev. Agt. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agt. 1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 19 of 29



8. Miscellaneous Terms. 

8.1. Developer acknowledges that City has advised it that reuse water will be provided by City to 
Developer based on current agreements City has with respect to use and distribution of reuse 
water. References in this Agreement to provision of reuse Water shall not constitute a 
commitment of City to provide reuse water to Developer, provision of such reuse water will be 
subject to City's ability to provide reuse water to Developer for use on the Property. 

B.2. City's Land Development Regulations require dual systems for irrigation, Florida Friendly 
landscaping, energy efficient construction, energy efficient appliances, and underground 
utilities. These Land Development Regutations will apply to Development of the Property. 

8.3. Fire fiow volumes and pressures are limited by City's potabte water extension service 
infrastructure. The fire fiow volumes and pressure fiow which will be provided by City are 
appropriate for single family homes. Requirements for enhanced fire fiow volumes, and 
pressures, over extended time periods may require Developer construct a storage tank with 
pressure pumps, or otherwise supplement existing potable water delivery, at Developer's 
expense. City shall not reduce its fire fiow volumes and pressures after Developer has 
commenced development of the Property. 

B.4. Developer, any Homeowners Association created for the Property, and individual property 
owners of portions of the Property must comply with the City of Wildwood Residential Design 
Standards and any other applicable Ordinances or Land Development Regulations. 

B.S. Developer will be responsible for costs associated with the recording of this document in the 
Sumter County Public Records. 

B.6. All utility easements to be provided by Developer to City must be twenty feet (20') in width and 
refiected and noted on the approved site plans and plats as subm itled by the Developer. If the 
Developer needs to relocate any existing utility main lines within the existing easement for any 
reason, the design and realignment must be approved by the City, and Developer must provide 
any additional easement required , which must be executed and recorded. All costs of the 
relocated utility lines will be the responsibility of the Developer including, but not limited to, 
design, review, permitting, materials, labor and equipment. A complete set of as-built drawings 
for the relocated utility mains must be provided to the City prior to the issuance of the final 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

9. General Provisions. 

9.1 . Notices. With respect to any Notices required to be given under the terms of this Agreement, 
such Notices shall be deemed given and effective: 

9.1.1. Three (3) calendar days after the date they are deposited in the United States Mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the Parties at the following 
respective addresses or such other address as provided by a Party pursuant to this 
Section; or 

9.1.2. The date of actual delivery by hand or by a recognized national ovemight delivery 
service such as Federal Express, UPS, or Express Mail, addressed to the parties at the 
following respective addresses or such other address as provided by a party pursuant 
to this Section: 

Page B of 15 
Y:lshglFILESIWord Family, LLC #11-224SIWilwood Dey. Agt. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agl. 1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 20 of 29



AS TO THE CITY: City of Wildwood 
Attn : _ _ ___ _ 

With Copy To: City of Wildwood 
Attn : Bruce Phillips, P.E., Utilities Director 
100 N. Main Street 
Wildwood, FL 34785 

AS TO DEVELOPER: Word Property, LLC 
Attn: Mr. Tom Word 
3324 W. University Avenue, #317 
Gainesville, FL 32607 

With Copy To: Steven H. Gray, Esq. 
Gray, Ackerman & Haines, P.A. 
125 NE 1" Avenue, Suite 1 
Ocala, FL 34470 
(352) 732-8121 

Any party may modify the address for notices set forth above by providing notice of the 

change of address to all parties to this Agreement, which notice is to be provided in 

accordance with the requirements of this Section. 

9.2. Negation of Partnership. None of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed 
to create a partnership by or among Developer or City in their respective businesses or 
otherwise, nor shall it cause them to be considered joint venturers or members of any jOint 
enlerprises. Each Party shall be considered a separate Party, no Party shall have the right to 
act as an agent for another Party and no Party shall the right to act as an agent for another 
Party unless expressly authorized to do so in this Agreement. 

9.3. Not a Public Dedication. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication 
of any portion of the Property to the general public, or for any public use or purpose 
whatsoever. Any portion of the Property which may under the terms of this Agreement later 
may be designated for public use or purposes shall be conveyed by Developer to City, as 
applicable. Except as herein specifically provided no right, privileges of immunities of any Party 
hereto shall inure to the benefit of any third party, nor shall any third party be deemed to be a 
beneficiary of any of the provisions contained in this Agreement. 

9.4. Default Provisions. 

9.4.1. The terms of this Agreement shall not entitle any Party to cancel, rescind, or otherwise 
tenminate this Agreement. However, such limitations shall not affect in any manner any 
other rights or remedies which a Party may have hereunder or under applicable law by 
reason of any such breach. 

9.4.2. All easements, rights and covenants contained herein shall be enforceable by suit for 
specific performance and mandatory injunctive relief, in addition to any other remedy 
provided by law or equity. 

Page 9 of 15 
Y:IshgIFtLESIWord Family, LLC #1 1-2245IWilwood Dev. Agt. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agt. 1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 21 of 29



9.4.3. No Party shall be entitled to pursue any action for sP~cific performance. injunctive 
relief. or any other available remedy arising out of a defa lJlt under th is Agreement until 
the non-defaulting Party has provided to the Party alleged to be in default a written 
Default Notice (with. if applicable. a copy to any other Party to this Agreement) 
specifying the specific nature of the default, and the alleged defaulting Party has failed 
to cure the default within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the Default Notice. In 
the event the cure of a default reasonably requires greater than the thirty (30) day time 
period specified, the grace period granted herein shall. if the defaulting Party has 
initiated cure of the default within the thirty (30) day time period and is continuing to 
pursue completion of the cure with due diligence. extend the reasonable time period 
required for the cure of the default. 

9.4.4. In the event of a material default by Developer with respect to its obligations to City 
under this Agreement, and failure of Developer to cure the default within the grace 
period set forth above, in addition to any other remedies available to them under the 
terms of this Agreement City shall be entitled to withhold issuance of additional 
development permits or authorizations until the default has been cured . If Developer 
has, prior to the occurrence of the default. conveyed some or all of the Property to 
unrelated third parties (such parcel or parcels then becoming a "Third Party Parcel") 
and the default of Owner is not with respect to, or impact City obligations regarding, a 
Third Party Parcel, the right of City to withhold Permits upon a default by Owner shall 
not extend to City Permits pending or to be issued with respect to a successor owner of 
such Third Party Parcel. 

9.5. Estoppel Statements. 

9.5.1. Each Party agrees that upon written request from time to time of any other Party it will 
timely issue at no charge to a current or prospective lender to such Party, or to a 
current or prospective purchaser or successor party to such other Party, or to another 
governmental entity requesting or requiring the same, an Estoppel Statement stating: 

9.5.1.1. Whether the Party to whom the request has been directed knows of any 
default by any Party under this Agreement, and if there are known defaults, 
specifying the nature thereof. 

9.5.1.2. Whether this Agreement has been assigned, modified or amended in any way 
by such Party (and if it has, stating the nature thereof). 

9.5.1.3. That to the best of the requested Party's knowledge this Agreement, as of the 
Estoppel Statement date. is in full force and effect. 

9.5.1.4. That (if known by the requested Party, if not known by the requested Party 
that Party shall reply only with respect to any monies owed to it) to the best of 
the requested Party's knowledge there are not any monies currently owed by 
any Party to another Party under the terms of this Agreement, or if there are 
monies owed, the amount and details of all monies owed. 

9.5.1.5. That. as to the Project or as to a specific parcel therein (as applicable, based 
upon the request) there are no moratoriums or suspensions of the right to 

Page100f15 
Y:IshgIFILESIWord Family, LLC #11-2245IWilwood Dev. Agl. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agl. 1-30-1 3.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 22 of 29



procure Development Orders, Building Penmits, or Certificate of Occupancy or 
other development approvals in effect as of the date of the Estoppel 
Statement. 

Such written statement shall act as a waiver of any claim by the Party furnishing it to 
the extent such claim is based on facts contrary to those asserted against a bona fide 
mortgagee or purchaser for value without knowledge of facts to the contrary of those 
contained in the Estoppel Certificate who has acted in reasonable reliance upon the 
statement; however, such statement shall in no event suggest the Party furnishing it to 
any liability whatsoever, notwithstanding the negligent or other inadvertent failure of 
such Party to disclose correct andlor relevant infonmation. 

9.6. Litigation. In the event of any litigation arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall 
be entitled to recover all reasonable costs incurred with respect to such litigation, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees, and including reimbursement for such reasonable attorneys' fees 
and costs incurred with respect to any bankruptcy, appellate or post-judgment proceeding 
related thereto. 

9.7. Binding Effect. The partes to this Agreement represent to each other that each party fully 
understands the facts surrounding this Agreement and each is signing this Agreement fully and 
voluntarily, intending to be bound by it. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the Parties hereto, their respective spouses, heirs, executors, administrators and 
assigns. There are no representations or warranties other than those set forth herein. 

9.8. Headings. The headings contained within this Agreement are for identification purposes only, 
and shall not be construed to amend, modify, or alter the tenms of the Agreement. 

9.9. Severability. Except as otherwise set forth herein, in the event any provision or section of this 
Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the 
enforceability or the validity of the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

9.10. Survival of Representations and Warranties. All representations and warranties contained 
herein are made in writing by the parties in connection herewith shall survive the execulion and 
delivery of this Agreement. 

9.11 . Successors and ASSigns. 

9.11 .1. All covenants and agreements in this Agreement made by or on behalf of any Parties 
hereto shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors and assigns of 
the Parties hereto, whether so expressed or not. 

9.1 1.2. Upon a sale or other transfer of a Parcel or a portion thereof, the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement, as applicable, shall remain in full force and effect as to 
the Parcel or a portion of the Parcel. 

9.12. Applicable Law. This Agreement is being delivered in the State of Florida, and shall be 
construed and enforced in accordance wilh the laws of the State of Florida. The venue for any 
legal proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be Sumter County, Florida. 

Page 11 of 15 
Y:\ShgIFILESIWord Family, LLC #11-2245IWilwood Dev. Agt. - Sewer Main Ex\ensionIDev. Agt.1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 23 of 29



9.13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously i" several counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this 
Agreement to produce or account for more than one such counterPart. 

9.14. Amendment of Agreement. This Agreement cannot be changed, modified or released orally, 
but only by an agreement in writing signed by the parties against whom enforcement of said 
change, modification or discharge is sought. 

9.15. Gender, As used in this Agreement, the masculine shall include the feminine and neuter, the 
singular shall include the plural, and the plural shall include the singular as the context may 
require. 

9.16. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon completion of its execution by all 
Parties, and the recordation of the Agreement in the Public Records of Sumter County, Florida. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this Developer's Agreement on the day and 
year set forth below their respective signatures. 

SEE ATIACHED SIGNATURE PAGES OF 
THE CITY OF WILDWOOD AND WORD FAMILY, LLC 

Page 12 of 15 
Y:lshgIFILESIWord Family, LLC #11-224SIWilwood Dev. Agt. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agt. 1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 24 of 29



SIGNATURE PAGE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

TO 
DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT 

[CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA - WORD FAMILY, LLC] 
BETWEEN CITY OF WILDWOOD AND WORD FAMILY, LLC 

CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA, a Florida 
Municipal Corporation 

Title: -~~ti.~~~Y-=I=:=:1013-Date: ,2013 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

APPROVED BY THE WILDWOOD CITY COUNCIL ON ~? II , 2013. 

Page 13 of 15 
Y:IshgIFILESIWord Family, LLC #1 '-224SIWilwood Dev. Ag\. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Ag\. '-30-' 3.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 25 of 29



SIGNATURE PAGE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 

TO 
DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT 

[CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA - WORD FAMILY, LLC] 
BETWEEN CITY OF WILDWOOD AND WORD FAMILY, LLC 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ____ _ 

WORD FAMILY, LLC., a Florida Limited Liability 
Company 

By: ___ _ -;-:-_______ _ 
, Manager 

Date: ________ , 2013 

The foregoing DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT was acknowledged before me by ___ ~~ _ 
___ as of WORD FAMtLY, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, who is: 

__ Personally known by me, OR 
Produced a driver's license as identification . 

Dated: this __ day of _______ " 2013. 

Print Name: --:::-:--_ -,-",..--,-,-__ _ 
Notary Public, State of Florida 
Commission number: _____ _ 
Commission expires: _____ _ 

Page140f15 
Y:lshglFILESIWord Family, LLC #11-224SIWilwood Dev. Agt. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agt. 1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 26 of 29



SIGNATURE PAGE OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA 
TO 

DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT 
[CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA - WORD FAMILY, LLC] 

BETWEEN CITY OF WILDWOOD AND WORD FAMILY, LLC 

STATE OF FLORIDA _ 

COUNTYOF~ 

WORD FAMILY, LLC., a Florida Limited Liability 
Company 

By :----f~-P.~~-----
ger 

Date: ---=LJc..::..t----" 2013 

The fOfc~ingDEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT was acknowledged before me b.,. :;iAbmO& 
W ~ as ~13,J2A-::of WORD FAMILY, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, who is: 

_j;ersonally known by me, OR 
_V_ P Pnroduced a driver's license as identification. 

Dated : this p,ay of Yn~ , 2013. 

SUSAN C, BRINGlE 
Notary Public, State of Rorida 

I.fr.; comm. expires October 13, 2016 
Comm. No. EE 835579 

Print Name: ~ ~ 
Notary Publl6~ 
Commission number: _____ _ 
Commission expires: 

Page 14 of 15 
Y:IshgIFILESIWord Family, LLC #11 -2245IWilwood Dev. Agt. - Sewer Main ExtensionlDev. Agt. 1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 27 of 29



SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT REFERENCE DESCRIPTION 

A Recital C Legal - Property 

Page 15 of 15 
Y:IshgIFILESIWord Family. LLC #11-2245IWilwood Dev. AgL - Sewer Main Ex\ensionIDev. AgL 1-30-13.docx 

3. e. 1. 
Page 28 of 29



EXHIBIT "Au 
LEGAL - PROPERTY 

THE WEST Yo OF THE NORTHEAST Yo AND THE SOUTHEAST Yo OF THE NORTHEAST Y. OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST AND THE SOUTHWEST Y. OF THE NORTHWEST Yo OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 23 EAST, SUMTER COUNTY, FLORIDA LESS AND EXCEPT RIGHT OF WAY OF CR-466A AND CR 137. 

3. e. 1. 
Page 29 of 29



CITY COMMISSION-LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT
1 Bank of America Florida League of Cities Registration - J Green 300.00$         
2 Sumter Electric Electric Service - Baker House 53.62$           

CITY MANAGER-EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT
3 Payroll February 24, 2013 Pay Period - 2 Employees 6,101.88$      
4 Bank of America Techies Aid 119.99$         
5 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 5.25$             

CITY CLERK-FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT
6 Payroll February 24, 2013 Pay Period - 4 Employees 10,206.74$    
7 Besco Electric Bulbs 10.27$           
8 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 5.49$             
9 IMS Monthly Computer Maintenance 413.00$         
10 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 80.73$           
11 Martronics Batteries 7.92$             
12 ModSpace Storage Pod Rental 121.29$         
13 Office Depot Office Supplies 5.17$             
14 Progress Energy Electric Service 100.12$         
15 Unifirst Rugs 23.76$           
16 Villages Technology Solutions Group Technical Support - All General Fund Departments 487.50$         
17 Waste Management 6 Yard Dumpster - Annex 184.07$         
18 Wildwood Ace Hardware Toilet Cap, Velcro, Threadlock, Joint Cement, Paint 28.11$           

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
19 Payroll February 24, 2013 Pay Period - 4 Employees 8,800.65$      
20 CDW Apple Ipad Mini WiFi 364.00$         
21 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 5.25$             
22 Office Depot Office Supplies 1.72$             

HUMAN RESOURCES
23 Payroll February 24, 2013 Pay Period - 1 Employees 2,014.84$      
24 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 5.25$             
25 Office Depot Office Supplies 1.72$             

26 Payroll February 24, 2013 Pay Period - 29 Employees 62,006.68$    
27 Bank of America Gamma Tech, Badge Wall, Amazon Marketplace 753.25$         
28 Central Sumter Utility LLC Electric Service 38.58$           
29 Chief Law Enforcement Repl Strb 52.99$           
30 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 355.97$         
31 George Nahas Chevrolet, Inc Sensor 14.47$           
32 Jiffy Exhaust Systems, Inc. Muffler and Clamp 108.49$         
33 L3 Communications In Car Video System 4,943.00$      
34 Danielle Lair Personal Vehicle Use 42.38$           
35 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 42.24$           
36 Martronics Batteries 219.96$         
37 Office Depot Office Supplies 79.56$           
38 Progress Energy Electric Service 882.70$         
39 Shell Gasoline 61.47$           
40 Sirchie Megawand, Photo Adhesive, Specimen Kit, Etc. 247.39$         
41 Southern Custom Creations Graphics Kits 1,950.00$      
42 Sumter Electric Electric Service 192.32$         
43 Wildwood Ace Hardware Nozzle Gun, Hose, Padlock, Master Key, Ring Key Spl 109.14$         

BILLS FOR APPROVAL
City of Wildwood, Florida

March 11, 2013

POLICE DEPARTMENT

3. f. 1. 
Page 1 of 3



March 11 2013
Page 2

STREET DEPARTMENT
44 Payroll February 24, 2013 Pay Period - 9 Employees 16,212.06$    
45 City Electric Supply Company CES Bulbs 80.94$           
46 Culligan Cooler Rental and Bottled Water 18.37$           
47 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 1.08$             
48 Harris Tree Service, Inc Removal of Trees and Stump Grinding 800.00$         
49 Hi-Way Sign Company Galvanized Channel Post 408.48$         
50 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 26.42$           
51 Office Depot Office Supplies 4.59$             
52 PowerPlan Highland Tractor Part 359.86$         
53 Progress Energy Electric Service 4,369.93$      
54 Stone Petroleum Products, Inc Measuring Stick 14' 21.19$           
55 Unifirst Uniforms 259.10$         
56 UPS Postage 6.36$             
57 Waste Management Tipping Fee 827.56$         
58 Wildwood Ace Hardware Concrete Mix, Nylon, Posthole Digger, Grab Hook, Etc 238.05$         

FLEET SERVICES
59 Payroll February 24, 2013 Pay Period - 2 Employees 5,062.07$      
60 Culligan Cooler Rental and Bottled Water 18.37$           
61 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 1.08$             
62 Progress Energy Electric Service 79.78$           
63 Unifirst Uniforms 239.22$         
64 Wildwood Ace Hardware Electric Engraver, Weld Wire, Duct Tape, Reducers 71.75$           

COMMUNITY RE-DEVELOPMENT
65 Bill Gregory Excavating, Inc Demo of Old Library and Drive Way 13,128.00$    
66 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 5.28$             

PARKS AND RECREATION
67 Payroll February 24, 2013 Pay Period - 5 Employees 7,105.03$      
68 Bank of America Walmart 29.94$           
69 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 5.25$             
70 John Deere Landscapes Paint Tourn Bulk White 272.50$         
71 Logan Sitework Contractors, Inc Ball Clay 135.00$         
72 Martronics Batteries 36.36$           
73 Nature Calls Inc Port O Let Rental 505.00$         
74 Progress Energy Electric Service 115.15$         
75 Unifirst Uniforms 205.40$         
76 Wildwood Ace Hardware Car Wax, Grease, Bleach, Chlorine, Master Key, Etc 221.34$         

COMMUNITY CENTER & OXFORD COMMUNITY CENTER
77 Century Link Telephone Service 400.82$         
78 Amanda Clements Rental Refund - MLK Building 92.80$           
79 Anytime Fitness Portable Stage 400.00$         
80 City Electric Supply Company CES Bulbs 109.44$         
81 J. Angel Crozier Rental Deposit Refund - Oxford Community Center 50.00$           
82 Reida Glenn Rental Deposit Refund - Oxford Community Center 50.00$           
83 Dianne Gudaitis Cancellation Deposit Refund - Wildwood Community Center 131.25$         
84 Luis Guerrero Rental Deposit Refund - Wildwood Community Center 675.00$         
85 Alicia McCray Rental Deposit Refund - Oxford Community Center 50.00$           
86 Bill Rogers Rental Deposit Refund - Wildwood Community Center 90.00$           
87 Unifirst Rugs 63.38$           

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT
88 Payroll February 24, 2013 Pay Period - 3 Employees 5,058.35$      
89 Besco Electric Bulbs 10.27$           
90 Business Basics Etc., LLC. Water Bills, Work Orders 1,116.00$      

3. f. 1. 
Page 2 of 3



March 11 2013
Page 3

91 Century Link Telephone Service 41.44$           
92 Paula Corbin Personal Vehicle Use 14.13$           
93 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 5.25$             
94 IMS Monthly Computer Maintenance 115.00$         
95 Maggio Enterprises, Inc Paper Products 80.73$           
96 Office Depot Office Supplies 242.59$         
97 Postmaster Postage - Utility Billing 867.00$         
98 Unifirst Rugs 23.76$           
99 Villages Technology Solutions Group Technical Support - All Enterprise Fund Departments 487.50$         
100 Wildwood Ace Hardware Toilet Cap, Velcro, Threadlock, Joint Cement, Paint 28.09$           

UTILITY DEPARTMENT 
101 Payroll February 24, 2013 Pay Period - 21 Employees 41,153.39$    
102 Acton Mobile Industries Lease on Modular Building 600.27$         
103 Bank of America Florida Surveying and Maps 198.00$         
104 Brenntag Liquid Chlorine 988.56$         
105 Century Link Telephone Service 70.31$           
106 Dept of Management Services Telephone Service 3.80$             
107 Florida City & County Management Membership Dues 264.00$         
108 FL. Industrial Pretreatment Assoc. Membership Application Jan-Dec 2013 30.00$           
109 Fort Bend Services, Inc Polymer 2,064.15$      
110 Jared Fort Personal Vehicle Use 6.25$             
111 HACH Sensor Cap Assy, DO Probe 693.95$         
112 Interstate Electrical Services Coleman Prison Plant Repair 29,682.06$    
113 Martronics Batteries 55.92$           
114 MMD Computers Repair on Bruce and Shelley's Machines 205.00$         
115 Odyssey Manufacturing Co. Hypochlorite Solutions 2,057.57$      
116 Office Depot Office Supplies 6.27$             
117 Bruce Phillips Professional Engineers Pd on Personal Card 255.00$         
118 Progress Energy Electric Service 94.25$           
119 Sumter Electric Electric Service 2,386.10$      
120 Test America Environmental Testing 84.00$           
121 The Dumont Company, Inc Hypochlorite Solutions, Clear Flow 2,825.50$      
122 TurfMasters and Associates, Inc Lawn Fertilization and Pest Control - 10 Ball Fields 2,465.00$      
123 Unifirst Uniforms 735.05$         
124 UPS Postage 17.78$           
125 Jeff Webster Personal Vehicle Use 5.77$             
126 Wildwood Ace Hardware Fasteners, Couplers, Cable Ties, Wheel, Utility Blade 163.68$         

ATTORNEYS/CONSULTANTS/SURVEYORS
127 CRI Carr Riggs & Ingram Progress Billing on 2012 Audit 15,000.00$    

FUEL INVENTORY
128 Stone Petroleum Products, Inc. Unleaded and Diesel Gasoline 10,952.99$    

TOTAL  275,686.86$  

CITY COMMISSION
CITY OF WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

S E A L 
                                                                                                                       
ATTEST:_______________________ Ed Wolf, Mayor

Joseph Jacobs, City Clerk

3. f. 1. 
Page 3 of 3



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: Request to purchase City Property – a portion of Millennium Park 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Commission direction regarding request. 

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 3/11/13 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
Multiple requests have been requested to purchase a portion of City-owned property, a portion of 
parcel IDs G08=018, G08=039, and G08=047, which are contiguous to property owned by the 
requestors, as noted on the attached map.  It is generally located to the southwest of the intersection 
of Powell Road and Huey Street.  The total area is approximately sq. ft., or 0.45 ac. MOL. 
 
Staff is requesting direction from the Commission to set a price for and authorize the sale of the 
property; to decline the sale; or to obtain a professional appraisal of the property that accurately 
reflects current market conditions prior to sale.  Due to the redirection of Huey Street to the south, any 
option to sell the property must also come with direction to obtain a professional survey in order to 
establish the boundaries of the property to be sold. 
 
Under the terms of the grant utilized to acquire Millennium Park, the proceeds of any sale must be 
directed back to the Parks and Recreation Department. 
 

 
Melanie Peavy 
Development Services Director 
 
 

3. g. 1.  
Page 1 of 2



3. g. 1.  
Page 2 of 2



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: SP 1301-02 Windward at Lakeside Landings – Improvement Plan 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Improvement Plan approval (SP 1301-02)  

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 3/11/2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant seeks Improvement Plan approval from the City Commission for the Windward at 
Lakeside Landings Plat to subdivide a portion of parcel D21=003 into twenty-five lots with shared 
infrastructure.  This subdivision is a continuation of the Lakeside Landings Planned Development (PD) 
and reduces the number of living units from the conceptual plan from 32 duplexes to 25 single family 
homes.  Staff recommends approval of the Improvement Plan for the Windward at Lakeside 
Landings Plat (case SP 1301-02), subject to approval, exemption or permitting of the project by 
all agencies of competent jurisdiction. 
 
Case SP 1301-02 was considered by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate on Tuesday, 
March 5, 2012.  The Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable recommendation 
of the Improvement Plan to the City Commission. 
 

 
Melanie D. Peavy, Director 
Development Services Director 
 

3. g. 2. 
Page 1 of 7



City of Wildwood 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

 
 
The case below was heard on Tuesday, March 5, 2013 by the Special Magistrate.  The 
applicant seeks approval and favorable recommendation from the Wildwood Planning 
and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate for Improvement Plan approval of the Windward 
at Lakeside Landings Plat to subdivide a portion of parcel D21=003 into twenty-five lots 
with shared infrastructure.  The site is generally located to the east of N US 301 and 
south of C-472. 
 
Case:   SP 1301-02 
 
Parcel: A portion of D21=003 
 
Owner: Power Corporation 
 
Applicant: John Agnelli 
 
Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval and favorable recommendation of the Improvement Plan for the 
Windward at Lakeside Landings Plat, project number SP 1301-02, to the City 
Commission subject to approval, exemption, or permitting by all agencies of competent 
jurisdiction.  The Engineer of Record is Jeffrey A. Head with Farner, Barley & 
Associates, of Wildwood, Florida. 
 
 
Dated:  March 6, 2013 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Archie O. Lowry, Jr. 
Special Magistrate, City of Wildwood 

3. g. 2. 
Page 2 of 7



CITY OF WILDWOOD 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

 
Case No:  SP 1301-02 – Improvement Plan (Plat) – Windward at Lakeside Landings 
 
Owner:  Power Corporation 
  
Applicant: John Agnelli 
 
Parcel: D21=003, et.al. 
 
The applicant seeks improvement plan approval under the subdivision (plat) process and 
favorable recommendation from the City of Wildwood Planning and Zoning Board/Special 
Magistrate for the next phase of their approved planned development, Windward at Lakeside 
Landings. 
 
The applicant has responded to and satisfied all comments and concerns raised at the Project 
Review Committee meeting. The project meets the minimum requirements of the Land 
Development Regulations and the Project Review Committee recommended the Project be 
placed on the Planning and Zoning Board agenda for consideration. 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning & Zoning Board forward a recommendation to the 
City Commission for approval of the site plan, subject to approval, exemption or permitting 
of the project by all agencies of competent jurisdiction. 
 
Under subsection 1.7 (B)(1) of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), the Planning and 
Zoning Board/Special Magistrate has a duty to make a recommendation to the City Commission 
on all proposed improvement plans under the subdivision process in accordance with the 
procedure outlined in subsection 1.14 (B)(4)(b) and the criteria for the approval of improvement 
plans as defined in section 5.5 of the LDRs.  
 
This office has duly noticed this meeting as prescribed by City of Wildwood Code for PUBLIC 
NOTICES. Notice has been posted on the notice board at City Hall and on the bulletin board at 
the Wildwood Post Office.  A notice of this meeting was published in a newspaper of general 
circulation (Daily Commercial) on Friday, February 22, 2013. 
 
 

DATED:  February 27, 2013    
 Melanie D. Peavy  
 Development Services Director 

3. g. 2. 
Page 3 of 7



WINDWARD AT LAKESIDE LANDINGS
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

FEBRUARY 2013 IMPROVEMENT PLAN

LOCATION MAP
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - W

ind
wa

rd 
at 

La
ke

sid
e L

an
din

gs
.m

xd
 - 2

/28
/20

13
 3:

11
:37

 PM
 - t

on
ea

l

CR-472

301

CR-114

301

Legend
City of Wildwood

Windward at Lakeside Landings

3. g. 2. 
Page 4 of 7



3. g. 2. 
Page 5 of 7



3. g. 2. 
Page 6 of 7



3. g. 2. 
Page 7 of 7



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: SP 1301-03 Harry Harmer Lot 4 Block A Site Plan 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Site Plan approval (SP 1301-03) to construct a 4,200 sq. ft. 
warehouse building on Lot 4 Block A in the South Wildwood 
Industrial Park (Parcel G30D001).  

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 3/11/2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant seeks Site Plan approval from the City Commission to construct a 4,200 sq. ft. 
warehouse building on Lot 4 Block A in the South Wildwood Industrial Park with paved parking and 
driveway.  The building will be used for commercial / industrial warehouse space.  Staff recommends 
approval of the Site Plan, subject to approval, exemption or permitting of the project by all 
agencies of competent jurisdiction. 
 
Case SP 1301-03 was considered by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate on Tuesday, 
March 5, 2013.  The Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable recommendation 
of the Site Plan to the City Commission. 
 

 
Melanie D. Peavy, Director 
Development Services Director 
 

3. g. 3. 
Page 1 of 9



City of Wildwood 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

 
 
The case below was heard on Tuesday, March 5, 2013 by the Special Magistrate.  The 
applicant seeks approval and favorable recommendation from the Wildwood Planning 
and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate for the construction of a 4,200 sq. ft. building in 
the South Wildwood Industrial Park with associated improvements and parking.  The 
property is generally located to the west of US Hwy 301 on NE 37th Drive. 
 
Case:   SP 1301-03 
 
Parcel: G30D001 
 
Owner: Harry Harmer 
 
Applicant: Bill Keen 
 
Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval and favorable recommendation of the Harry Harmer Lot 4  
Block A Site Plan, project number SP 1301-03, to the City Commission subject to 
approval, exemption, or permitting by all agencies of competent jurisdiction.  The 
Engineer of Record is David Springstead, Springstead Engineering, of Leesburg, 
Florida. 
 
 
Dated:  March 6, 2013 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Archie O. Lowry, Jr. 
Special Magistrate, City of Wildwood 

3. g. 3. 
Page 2 of 9



CITY OF WILDWOOD 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

 
Case No:  SP 1301-03 – Harry Harmer Lot 4 Block A 
 
Owner:  Harry Harmer 
  
Applicant: Bill Keen 
 
Parcels: G30D001 
 
The applicant seeks site plan approval and favorable recommendation from the City of 
Wildwood Planning and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate for the construction of a 4,200 sq. ft. 
building in the South Wildwood Industrial Park with associated improvements and parking. 
 
The applicant has responded to and satisfied all comments and concerns raised at the Project 
Review Committee meeting. The project meets the minimum requirements of the Land 
Development Regulations and the Project Review Committee recommended the Project be 
placed on the Planning and Zoning Board agenda for consideration. 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning & Zoning Board forward a recommendation to the 
City Commission for approval of the site plan, subject to approval, exemption or permitting 
of the project by all agencies of competent jurisdiction. 
 
Under subsection 1.7 (B)(1) of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), the Planning and 
Zoning Board/Special Magistrate has a duty to make a recommendation to the City Commission 
on all proposed Site Plans in accordance with the procedure outlined in subsection 1.14 (B)(5) 
and the criteria for the approval of site plans as defined in section 4.4 of the LDRs.  
 
This office has duly noticed this meeting as prescribed by City of Wildwood Code for PUBLIC 
NOTICES. Notice has been posted on the notice board at City Hall and on the bulletin board at 
the Wildwood Post Office.  A notice of this meeting was published in a newspaper of general 
circulation (Daily Commercial) on Friday, February 22, 2013. 
 
 

DATED:  February 27, 2013    
 Melanie D. Peavy  
 Development Services Director 

3. g. 3. 
Page 3 of 9



HARRY HARMER
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

February 2013 Site Plan

LOCATION MAP
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - H

arr
y H

arm
er.

mx
d -

 2/
27

/20
13

 4:
37

:09
 PM

 - t
on

ea
l

Legend
City of Wildwood

Harry Harmer Property

NE 37th Pl

301

3. g. 3. 
Page 4 of 9



3. g. 3. 
Page 5 of 9



3. g. 3. 
Page 6 of 9



3. g. 3. 
Page 7 of 9



3. g. 3. 
Page 8 of 9



3. g. 3. 
Page 9 of 9



CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WILDWOOD 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

SUBJECT: SP 1302-03 Villages of Legacy Park – Preliminary Plan 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
Preliminary Plan approval (SP 1302-03)  

 
  Work Session (Report Only) DATE OF MEETING: 3/11/2013 
  Regular Meeting  Special Meeting  
  

 
  

CONTRACT:  N/A Vendor/Entity:   
 Effective Date: _____________ Termination Date:   
 Managing Division / Dept:   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 

 Annual 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 
 

 Capital EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT:  
 N/A  

 

 
 

HISTORY/FACTS/ISSUES: 
  
The applicant seeks Preliminary Plan approval from the City Commission for the Villages of Legacy 
Park Plat to subdivide parcels D30=003, D30=004, and D30=006 into 112 lots with shared 
infrastructure for single-family detached residences.  Staff recommends approval of the 
Preliminary Plan for the Villages of Legacy Park Plat (case SP 1302-03), subject to approval, 
exemption or permitting of the project by all agencies of competent jurisdiction. 
 
Case SP 1302-03 was considered by the Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate on Tuesday, 
March 5, 2013.  The Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate gave a favorable recommendation 
of the Preliminary Plan to the City Commission. 
 

 
Melanie D. Peavy, Director 
Development Services Director 
 

3. g. 4. 
Page 1 of 7



City of Wildwood 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

 
 
The case below was heard on Tuesday, March 5, 2013 by the Special Magistrate.  The 
applicant seeks approval and favorable recommendation from the Wildwood Planning 
and Zoning Board/Special Magistrate for Preliminary Plan approval of the Villages of 
Legacy Park Plat to subdivide parcels D30=003, D30=004, and D30=006 into one 
hundred twelve lots with shared infrastructure.  The site is generally located to the west 
of N US 301 and south of C-222 behind Peppertree Apartments. 
 
Case:   SP 1302-03 
 
Parcels: D30=003, D30=004, and D30=006 
 
Owner: R. William Futch, Trustee 
 
Applicant: Gary Thurston, Advanced Holdings LLC 
 
Based upon the testimony and information presented, the Special Magistrate 
recommends approval and favorable recommendation of the Preliminary Plan for the 
Villages of Legacy Park Plat, project number SP 1302-03, to the City Commission 
subject to approval, exemption, or permitting by all agencies of competent jurisdiction.  
The Engineer of Record is Michael W. Radcliffe with Radcliffe Engineering, of Ocala, 
Florida. 
 
 
Dated:  March 6, 2013 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Archie O. Lowry, Jr. 
Special Magistrate, City of Wildwood 
 

3. g. 4. 
Page 2 of 7



CITY OF WILDWOOD 
Planning & Zoning Board/Special Magistrate 

 
Case No:  SP 1302-03 – Preliminary Plan (Plat) – Villages of Legacy Park 
 
Owner:  R. William Futch, Trustee 
  
Applicant: Gary Thurston, Advanced Holdings, LLC 
 
Parcel: D30=003, D30=004, D30=006 
 
The applicant seeks preliminary plan approval under the subdivision (plat) process and 
favorable recommendation from the City of Wildwood Planning and Zoning Board/Special 
Magistrate for the first phase of their new development, Villages of Legacy Park. 
 
The applicant has responded to and satisfied all comments and concerns raised at the Project 
Review Committee meeting. The project meets the minimum requirements of the Land 
Development Regulations and the Project Review Committee recommended the Project be 
placed on the Planning and Zoning Board agenda for consideration. 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning & Zoning Board forward a recommendation to the 
City Commission for approval of the site plan, subject to approval, exemption or permitting 
of the project by all agencies of competent jurisdiction. 
 
Under subsection 1.7 (B)(1) of the Land Development Regulations (LDRs), the Planning and 
Zoning Board/Special Magistrate has a duty to make a recommendation to the City Commission 
on all proposed preliminary plans under the subdivision process in accordance with the 
procedure outlined in subsection 1.14 (B)(4)(a) and the criteria for the approval of preliminary 
plans as defined in section 5.4 of the LDRs.  
 
This office has duly noticed this meeting as prescribed by City of Wildwood Code for PUBLIC 
NOTICES. Notice has been posted on the notice board at City Hall and on the bulletin board at 
the Wildwood Post Office.  A notice of this meeting was published in a newspaper of general 
circulation (Daily Commercial) on Friday, February 22, 2013. 
 
 

DATED:  February 27, 2013    
 Melanie D. Peavy  
 Development Services Director 

3. g. 4. 
Page 3 of 7



VILLAGES OF LEGACY PARK
WILDWOOD, FLORIDA

FEBRUARY 2013 PRELIMINARY PLAN

LOCATION MAP
City of Wildwood

100 North Main Street
Wildwood, FL 34485

Phone: (352) 330-1330
www.wildwood-fl.gov

I
0 190 380

Feet

I:\T
err

i\G
IS\

Ma
ps

\Lo
ca

tio
n\L

oc
ati

on
 - V

illa
ge

s o
f L

eg
ac

y P
ark

2.m
xd

 - 2
/28

/20
13

 3:
12

:50
 PM

 - t
on

ea
l

CR-462

301

301

301

3. g. 4. 
Page 4 of 7



3. g. 4. 
Page 5 of 7



3. g. 4. 
Page 6 of 7



3. g. 4. 
Page 7 of 7


	Agenda-Pg. 1
	Agenda-Pg. 2
	Agenda-Pg. 3
	1.a. Ten Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan - Ordinance No. O2013-01 WSP_Adoption_Agenda Item
	Ordinance No. O2013-01
	City of Wildwood 10-Year Water SupplyFacilities Work Plan

	1.b. Text Amendment - Villages of Wildwood - Ordinance No. O2013-02 VOW__Adoption_Agenda Item
	Ordinance No. O2013-02

	1.c. Hughes Brothers_Annexation Ordinance No. 2013-06
	ORDINANCE NO. 2013-06
	LOCATION MAP

	1.d. O2013-07 Williams_Annexation Agenda Item
	ORDINANCE NO. 2013-07
	LOCATION MAP

	1.e. Village at Legacy Park_Annexation
	ORDINANCE NO. 2013-08
	LOCATION MAP

	2.b.1. Reschedule Champagne Farms Workshop Meeting
	2.d.1. COMMUNICATIONS SVCS AGREEMENT-2013
	2.g.1. 2013.03.01 Letter - Robert Hannah - Wildwood Community Development Center
	3.a.1. Minutes
	3.e.1. Trailwinds - Word Family Pioneer Agreement
	PIONEER AGREEMENTFIRST ADDENDUM TO DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT
	ORIGINAL DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT FOR REFERENCE

	3.f.1. Bills
	3.g.1. ES - Request to Sell a Portion of Millennium Park
	Location Map

	3.g.2. SP 1301-02 PLAT Improvement Plan Windward Lakeside Landings
	Special Magistraterecommendation
	Case No: SP 1301-02 – Improvement Plan (Plat) – Windward at Lakeside Landings
	LOCATION MAP
	Aerial Photograph
	Master Development Plan
	Site Geometry Plan

	3.g.3. SP 1301-03 Site Plan Harry Harmer Lot 4 Block A
	Special Magistraterecommendation
	Case No: SP 1301-03 – Harry Harmer Lot 4 Block A
	LOCATION MAP
	Site Plans

	3.g.4. SP 1302-03 Plat - Preliminary Villages of Legacy Park
	Special Magistraterecommendation
	Case No: SP 1302-03 – Preliminary Plan (Plat) – Villages of Legacy Park
	LOCATION MAP
	Aerial Photograph
	Preliminary Plan


	Button1: 
	Button2: 


